rs

A__F

Commission Meetingu '
Agenda |

i

CITY OF === ——

Hobbs

NEW MEXICO

Mayor
Samuel D. Cobb

City Commission

R. Finn Smith — District 1
Christopher R. Mills — District 2
Larron B. Fields — District 3
Joseph D. Calderén — District 4
Dwayne Penick — District 5
Don R. Gerth — District 6

City Manager
Manny Gomez

,=I|§I

January 8, 2024



_

CITY OF =

Hobbs

NEW MEXICO 2

Hobbs City Commission

Regular Meeting
City Hall, City Commission Chamber
200 E. Broadway, 1%t Floor Annex, Hobbs, New Mexico

Monday, January 8, 2024 - 6:00 p.m.

Sam D. Cobh, Mayor

R. Finn Smith Christopher R. Mills Larron B. Fields
Commissioner — District 1 Commissioner — District 2 Commissioner — District 3
Joseph D. Calderén Dwayne Penick Don R. Gerth
Commissioner — District 4 Commissioner — District 5 Commissioner — District 6

City Commission Meetings are
Broadcast Live on KHBX FM 99.3 Radio and
Available via Livestream at www.hobbsnm.org

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Minutes of the December 18, 2023, Regular Commission Meeting (Jan
Fletcher, City Clerk)

PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS OF MERIT

2. None

PUBLIC COMMENTS (Citizens who wish to speak must sign the Public Comment

Registration Form located in the Commission Chamber prior to the beginning of the
meeting.)



CONSENT AGENDA (The consent agenda is approved by a single motion. Any

member of the Commission may request an item to be transferred to the regular agenda
from the consent agenda without discussion or vote.)

3. Resolution No. 7430 - Stating the Reasonable Notice Procedures for the City
of Hobbs Pursuant to the New Mexico Open Meetings Act (Valerie Chacon,
City Attorney)

4, Consideration of Approval of the Paid Time Off (PTO) Payout for Calendar
Year 2023 (Toby Spears, Finance Director)

5. Resolution No. 7431 — Authorizing the Execution of a Grant Agreement with
the New Mexico Aging and Long Term Services Department in the Amount
of $10,000.00 for the Hobbs Senior Center (Doug McDaniel, Recreation
Directfor)

DISCUSSION

6. None

ACTION ITEMS (Ordinances, Resolutions, Public Hearings)

7.

10.

Resolution No. 7432 — Authorizing the Execution of a Grant Agreement with
the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration in the Amount of
$600,000.00 for the New Mexico Regional Recreation Centers & Quality of
Life Grant (Doug McDaniel, Recreation Director)

Resolution No. 7433 — Authorizing the Execution of a Grant Agreement with
the New Mexico Aging and Long Term Services Department in the Amount
of $60,500.00 for the Hobbs Senior Center (Doug McDaniel, Recreation
Director)

Resolution No. 7434 — Approving the Vacation/Replat of Block 37, New
Hobbs Addition, Located Southeast of the Intersection of Harden and Linam
(Kevin Robinson, Planning Department)

Resolution No. 7435 — Approving the Final Plat for Desert Vista Estates as
Requested by Tammie Teague, Located Northwest of the Intersection of
Kansas and Rolling Meadows Within the City of Hobbs Extra-Territorial
Jurisdiction (Kevin Robinson, Planning Department)



COMMENTS BY CITY CONIMISSIONERS, CITY MANAGER

11. Next Meeting Date:

» City Commission Regular Meetings:
* Monday, January 22, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.
» Monday, February 5, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.
= Tuesday, February 20, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT

If you are an individual with a disability who needs a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of
auxitiary aid or service to attend or participate in the above meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (575) 397-9200 at
least 72 hours prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided
in various accessible formats. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed.



CITY OF HOBBS

CITY OF = %

H Zé COMMISSION STAFF SUMMARY FORM

MEETING DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: City Commission Meeting Minutes

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: City Clerk’s Office
DATE SUBMITTED: January 2, 2024
SUBMITTED BY: Jan Fletcher, City Clerk

Summary:

The following minutes are submitted for approval:

»  Regular City Commission meeting held on December 18, 2023

Fiscal Impact: Reviewed By:

N/A

Finance Department

Attachments:

Minutes as referenced under “Summary”.

\

Legal Review: Approved As To Form:
City Attorney
Recommendation:
Motion to approve the minutes as presented.
Approved For Submittal By: CITY CLERK'S USE ONLY
COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN
U_-
Z/ L - B Resolution No. Continued To:
Ordinance No. Referred To:
Depan‘ment Director Agproved Seniad

Other File No.

City Manager




Minutes of the regular meeting of the Hobbs City Commission held on Monday,
December 18, 2023, in the City Commission Chamber, 200 East Broadway, 1%t Floor
Annex, Hobbs, New Mexico. This meeting was also broadcast via Livestream on the
City’s website at www.hobbsnm.org.

Call to Order and Rolil Call

Mayor Sam D. Cobb called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and welcomed everyone
to the meeting. The City Clerk called the roll and the following answered present:

Absent:

Also present;

Mayor Sam D. Cobb
Commissioner R. Finn Smith
Commissioner Larron B. Fields
Commissioner Joseph D. Calderén
Commissioner Don Gerth
Commissioner Dwayne Penick

Commissioner Christopher Mills

Manny Gomez, City Manager

Valerie Chacon, City Attorney

Bobby Arther, Municipa! Judge

Mark Doporto, Fire Chief

Shane Blevins, Deputy Police Chief

Danny Garrett, Police Captain

Ricky Guerrero, Police Captain

Marina Barrientes, Police Captain

Chad Wright, Police Captain

Toby Spears, Finance Director

Todd Randall, City Engineer

Tim Woomer, Utilities Director

Bryan Wagner, Parks and Open Spaces Director
Doug McDaniel, Recreation Director

Matt Hughes, Rockwind Superintendent
Nicholas Goulet, Human Resources Director
Tracy South, Assistant HR Director

Shelia Baker, General Services Director
Selena Estrada, Risk Management
Shannon Arguello, Court Administrator
Matt Blandin, Assistant |.T. Director
Meghan Mooney, Communications Director
Julie Nymeyer, Executive Assistant

Jan Fletcher, City Clerk

Amelia Maldonado, Deputy City Clerk

11 citizens



City Commission Meeting
December 18, 2023 Page 2

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

Commissioner Fields delivered the invocation and Commissioner Penick led the Pledge
of Allegiance.

Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Calderén moved the minutes of the regular meeting of November 20,
2023, and the minutes of the special meeting of November 28, 2023, be approved as
written. Commissioner Fields seconded the motion and the vote was recorded as
follows: Smith yes, Penick yes, Fields yes, Calderon yes, Gerth yes, Cobb yes. The
motion carried.

Proclamations and Awards of Merit

Mr. Manny Gomez, City Manager, recognized the following employees for their
Milestone Service Awards for the Month of December, 2023:

» 5 years — Dalton Hacker, Hobbs Police Department
» 10 years — Victoria Lerma, Hobbs Fire Depariment
» 20 years — Cynthia Guzman, Utilities Department

Mr. Gomez reviewed highlights about the work of each employee. He stated the
employees are the most important resource in the organization. Mr. Gomez expressed
gratitude to each employee for their hard work and also thanked the employees’ families
for their contributions to the organization.

Mr. Gomez stated this is the last meeting of the year for 2023. During the year, 67
employees were recognized for a total of 780 years of service. He stated the General
Services Department led the year with a total of 165 years of service followed by the
Hobbs Police Department with 160 years and the Ultilities Department with 130 years.

Public Comments

Mr. T. J. Parks, a citizen, expressed thanks on behalf of his family for the 2023 Tree
Lighting Ceremony and all of the downtown activities. He stated it was a great event,
and he thanked the Hobbs Police Department, Hobbs Fire Department and all of the
City Departments who gave up their weekend to put the event together. He stated all
of the efforts did not go unnoticed.

Mayor Cobb specifically thanked Ms. Meghan Mooney and her team for organizing the
event.



City Commission Meeting
December 18, 2023 Page 3

Consent Agenda

None
Discussion

Discussion of Lea County Event Center Renovation

Mr. Mike Gallagher, Lea County Manager, Mr. Edmundo Lara, Lea County Facilities
Director, and architects from Dekker Perich Sabatini presented two proposed designs
for the remodel of the County’s proposed $38 million master plan remodel of the Lea
County Event Center. Mr. Gallagher stated the plan is moving forward but County
officials are looking for input on how to proceed between two potential designs. The
design for the remodel began in January of this year and has come down to two
potential options named the “Beacon Concept” and “Walking Beam Concept.”

Mr. Jon Stern with Dekker Perich Sabatini said each of the potential designs try to
incorporate aspects of the area’s history and economy to best represent the unique
character of Lea County. Those aspects locally include oil and gas production and
ranching. Mr. Stern continued and stated Lea County is the No. 1 oil producing county
in the country and they are trying to instill some of that meaning into the building design.

Mayor Cobb commented the farming aspect of the area was left out of the two designs.
He suggested it should be included moving forward to open the possibility of
agriculture-oriented events like the farming and ranching shows being held locally. He
stated it would be very beneficial to go after the agricultural industry as there are a
huge number of people that are involved from a standpoint of trying to draw people in,
generate gross receipts and put heads in beds.

Mr. Stern continued and stated both options of the remodel include adding new
meeting rooms, VIP rooms and spaces that increase the functionality of the facility.
Among the improvements inciude a media mesh that would be along the northwest
portion of the building which would be reworked into the main entrance. The media
mesh could display ads, short videos or be lit up to incorporate holiday color schemes.
Possible picnic tables and a plaza are also in the conceptual design as well as an
outdoor stage feature that could be used for concerts or other events.

Mr. Brad Jackson with Dekker Perich Sabatini said the facility, as designed now in both
cases, is short of enough parking spaces to meet Hobbs City Code. Preliminary
numbers put the available seating at 6,000. With actual seats available of 4,500
requires 1,300 needed parking spaces and the current design is only around 1,100
parking spaces.



City Commission Meeting
December 18, 2023 Page 4

A discussion was held on possibly offering to provide City land from the walking trail
along the Lovington Highway to help make up the shortfall of needed parking spaces.
There is approximately 75 feet of frontage along the trail that couid be used without
noticeably impacting the width of the trail. Usage of that space would require vacating
a portion of the four-lane street that runs between the Event Center and the walking
trail.

Mr. Gallagher stated a joint use parking agreement with the New Mexico Junior College
would allow usage of their parking lot.

Mr. Gallagher stated an updated cost estimate for the project is forthcoming and the
County anticipates putting the designs out for public comment by the end of February.

Members of the City Commission expressed their likes and dislikes of the two proposed
concepts. It was discussed that the rustic look of the “Walking Beam Concept” is
similar to a newly-constructed local apartment complex which garnered many negative
comments from the community. It was further discussed a complimentary iook to the
CORE and a safe and accessible pedestrian access between the NMJC, CORE and
Event Center would be especially important.

Mayor Cobb thanked the County for their presentation and information.

Mr. Gallagher thanked the Commission for the feedback on the project.

Action Hems

Consideration of Approval of a CES Contract with D & D Electric for Replacement of
the Fire Alarms at the Hobbs Police Department, 300 North Turner Street, in the
Amount of $55,991.30

Mr. Shane Blevins, Deputy Police Chief, requested approval of a CES contract with
D & D Electric for the replacement of the fire alarm system at the Hobbs Police
Department, 300 North Turner, in the amount of $55,991.30. The current system has
experienced faults that took days for certified technicians to troubleshoot due to
unconventional wiring. The new system will replace all wiring and all new hardware
consisting of pull stations, strobe lights, heat detectors, main alarm panel and four
annunciators. The new system will also be capable of sending any alerts via email.

Deputy Chief Blevins stated $200,000.00 is allocated in the FY 24 budget for muitiple
fire alarm system replacements. The projected cost of this project is under budget at
$55,991.30.



City Commission Meeting
December 18, 2023 Page 5

There being no discussion, Commissioner Penick moved {o approve the CES contract
with D & D Electric as submitted. Commissioner Gerth seconded the motion and the
vote was recorded as follows: Penick yes, Smith yes, Calderdn yes, Fields yes, Gerth
yes, Cobb yes. The motion carried. Copies of the supporting documentation are
attached and made a part of these minutes.

Consideration of Approval of a CES Contract with D & D Electric for Replacement of
the Fire Alarms at the Hobbs Police Department Annex, 301 North Dalmont Street, in
the Amount of $53,075.41

Deputy Chief Blevins reguested approval of a CES contract with D & D Electric for the
replacement of the fire alarm system at the Hobbs Police Department Annex, 301 North
Dalmont, in the amount of $53,075.41. The current system appears to be original to
the facility and is no longer serviceable. The new system will replace all wiring and all
new hardware consisting of pull stations, strobe lights, heat detectors, main alarm
panel and five annunciators. It will provide significant fire alarm monitoring in the jall
area, including monitoring the jail kitchen hood fire suppression system. The new
system will also be capable of sending any alerts via email.

Deputy Chief Blevins stated $200,000.00 is allocated in the FY 24 budget for multiple

fire alarm system replacements and the projected cost of this project is under budget
at $53,075.41.

There being no discussion, Commissioner Smith moved to approve the CES contract
with D & D Electric. Commissioner Gerth seconded the motion and the vote was
recorded as follows: Penick yes, Smith yes, Calderon yes, Fields yes, Gerth yes, Cobb
yes. The motion carried. Copies of the supporting documentation are attached and
made a part of these minutes.

Mr. Manny Gomez stated in addition to the explanations provided by Deputy Chief
Blevins, it is required by the International Fire Code for the Hobbs Police Department
to have operable fire alarm systems.

Comments by City Commissioners, City Manager

Mr. Gomez recognized six police cadets that completed the 17-week difficult and very
strenuous police academy: Mr. Tomadre Harris, Mr. Andrew Lane, Mr. Casey Dawson,
Mr. Daniel Sepulveda and Mr. Erica Montoya. He stated Mr. Adam Marinovich,
Captain/Fire Inspector, also completed the course and is now a Commissioned Officer.
Mr. Gomez stated there are six more individuals ready to go into the next academy.



City Commission Meeting
December 18, 2023 Page 6

Mr. Gomez also recognized the Parks and Open Spaces Department and Director, Mr.
Bryan Wagner, for his proactive new training approach in organizing Roadway Safety
Training classes. He stated 26 employees attended the training and certification
classes.

Mr. Gomez wished everyone Happy Holidays from all of the City Staff.

Commissioner Gerth apologized for his absence from the last Commission meeting as
he was sick. He stated he does not like to miss meetings.

Commissioner Fields stated it was a privilege and an honor to be a part of the Cemetery
Memorial Service. He also wished everyone Happy Holidays and a Merry Christmas.

Commissioner Calderdn wished everyone Happy Holidays.

Commissioner Penick thanked Mr. Gallagher and the architects for the update on the
Lea County Event Center. He also wished everyone Happy Holidays and a Merry
Christmas.

Commissioner Smith wished everyone and his feliow Commissioners a Merry
Christmas.

Mayor Cobb wished everyone Happy Holidays and safe travels.

Mr. Gomez introduced the new Fire Training Officer for the Hobbs Fire Department,
Mr. Chris Henry.

There being no further business or comments, Commissioner Calderén moved that the
meeting adjourn. Commissioner Smith seconded the motion and the vote was recorded
as follows: Smith yes, Penick yes, Calderon yes, Fields yes, Gerth yes, Cobb yes. The
motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m.

SAM D. COBB, Mayor

ATTEST:

JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk



CONSENT
AGENDA




. CITY OF HOBBS

_
—)126 COMMISSION STAFF SUMMARY FORM
i 10 S MEETING DATE: _January 8, 2024

NEW MEXICO ol

SUBJECT: A RESOLUTION STATING THE REASONABLE NOTICE PROCEDURES FOR THE CITY
OF HOBBS PURSUANT TO THE NEW MEXICO OPEN MEETINGS ACT

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Legal Department
DATE SUBMITTED: January 4, 2024
SUBMITTED BY: Valerie S. Chacon, City Attorney

Summary:

NMSA 1978, §10-15-1(D), provides that the public body shall determine at least annually in a public meeting
what notices for public meetings are reasonable. This Resolution is adopted annually by the governing body
setting forth the City of Hobbs’ notice procedures for all public meetings pursuant to New Mexico’s Open
Meetings Act (NMSA 1978, §10-15-1, et seq.).

. .

Fiscal Impact: Reviewed By: _—" 72/;%/""" )

< _—Finance Department
There is no fiscal impact associated with this Resolution.
Attachments:
Proposed Resolution
Legal Review: Approved As To Form: Ll u"” .

City Attorney

Recommendation:

The Commission should consider this statutorily required Resolution.

Approved For Submittal By: c C?l\lllTl\Il SCé.l%I?\lKl’\S&%ENOTI\;I\IIZEN

| ! ]
Y AL L Resolution No. Continued To:

De ent Director Ordinance No. Referred To:
: Approved Denied
Other File No.

p
~———<"City Manager )

/



CITY OF HOBBS

RESOLUTION NO. __ 7430

A RESOLUTION STATING THE REASONABLE NOTICE PROCEDURES FOR THE
CITY OF HOBBS PURSUANT TO THE NEW MEXICO OPEN MEETINGS ACT

WHEREAS, The City of Hobbs City Commission met in regular session at the City
Hall, City Commission Chambers located at 200 E. Broadway, 1%t Floor Annex, Hobbs,
New Mexico, on January 8, 2024, at 6 p.m. as required by law; and

WHEREAS, Section 10-15-1(B) of the Open Meetings Act (NMSA 1978, §§ 10-15-
1 through 10-15-4) states that, except as may be otherwise provided in the Constitution
or the provisions of the Open Meetings Act, all meetings of a quorum of members of any
board, council, commission, administrative adjudicatory body or other policymaking body
of any state or local public agency held for the purpose of formulating public policy,
discussing public business or for the purpose of taking any action within the authority of
or the delegated authority of such body, are deciared fo be public meetings open to the
public at all times; and

WHEREAS, all persons desiring shall be permitted to attend and listen to the
deliberations and proceedings of all public meetings; and

WHEREAS, any meetings subject to the Open Meetings Act at which the
discussion or adoption of any proposed resolution, rule, regulation or formal action occurs
shall be held only after reasonable notice to the public; and

WHEREAS, Section 10-15-1(D) of the Open Meeting Act requires the City of

Hobbs City Commission to determine annually what constitutes reasonable notice of its



public meetings;
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF HOBBS, NEW MEXICO that:

1. All meetings shall be held at City Hall, City Commission Chambers, 200 E.
Broadway, 1%t Floor Annex, Hobbs, New Mexico at 6 p.m., or as otherwise
indicated in the meeting notice.

2. Unless otherwise specified, regular meetings shall be held each month on the
first and third Monday of the month. The agenda will be available from the City
Clerk's Office, whose office is located at City Hall, 200 E. Broadway, in Hobbs,
New Mexico, at least seventy-two hours prior to the meeting. The agenda will
also be posted on the Public Notice Board located on the first floor of City Hall,
and on the City of Hobbs’ website at www.hobbsnm.org.

3. Special meetings may be called by the Mayor and any two (2) members of the
commission, or by any three (3) members of the commission at any time, by
written notice to all members of the commission. In the event a special meeting
is called, three days’ written notice must be given to the members of the
commission of the calling of such special meeting. The notice for a special
meeting shall include an agenda for the meeting or information on how a copy
of the agenda may be obtained. The agenda will be available at least seventy-
two hours before the mesting and posted on the City of Hobbs' website at
www.hobbsnm.org.

4. Emergency meetings will be called only under unforeseen circumstances that



demand immediate action to protect the health, safety and property of citizens
or to protect the public body from substantial financial loss. The City of Hobbs
City Commission will avoid emergency meetings whenever possible.
Emergency meetings may be called by the Mayor or a majority of the members
with twenty-four hours prior notice, unless threat of personal injury or property
damage requires less notice. The notice for all émergency meetings shall
include an agenda for the meeting or information on how the public may obtain
a copy of the agenda. Within ten days of taking action on an emergency matter,
the City of Hobbs City Commission will notify the Attorney General's Office.

. Forthe purpose of regular meetings described in Paragraph 2 of this resolution,
notice requirements are met if notice of the date, time, place and agenda is
placed in newspapers of general circulation in the state and posted in the
following locations: on the Public Notice Board located on the first floor of City
Hall, and the City of Hobbs' website at www.hobbsnm.org. Copies of the written
notice shali also be mailed to those broadcast stations licensed by the Federal
Communications Commission and newspapers of general circulation that have
made a written request for notice of public meetings.

. For the purposes of special meetings and emergency meetings described in
Paragraphs 3 and 4, notice requirements are met if notice of the date, time,
place and agenda is provided by telephone fo newspapers of general
circulation in the state and posted on the Public Notice Board located on the

first floor of City Hall. Telephone notice also shall be given to those broadcast



stations licensed by the Federal Communications Commission and

newspapers of general circulation that have made a written request for notice

of public meetings.

. In addition to the information specified above, all notices shall include the

following language:

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier,

gualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service

to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact The City

Clerk's Office at City Hall located at 200 E. Broadway, Hobbs, New Mexico, or

by calling (575) 397-9200 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting or as soon as

possible. Public documents, inciuding the agenda and minutes, can be
provided in various accessible formats. Please contact The City Clerk’s Office
if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed.

. The City of Hobbs City Commission may close a meeting to the public only if

the subject matter of such discussion or action is excepted from the open

meeting requirement under Section 10-15-1(H) of the Open Meetings Act.

(a) If any meeting is closed during an open meeting, such closure shall be
approved by a majority vote of a quorum of the City of Hobbs City
Commission taken during the open meeting. The authority for the closed
meeting and the subjects to be discussed shall be stated with reasonable
specificity in the motion to close and the vote of each individual member on

the motion to close shall be recorded in the minutes. Only those subjects



specified in the motion may be discussed in the closed meeting.

(b) If a closed meeting is conducted when the City of Hobbs City Commission
is not in an open meeting, the closed meeting shall not be held until public
notice, appropriate under the circumstances, stating the specific provision
of law authorizing the closed meeting and the subjects to be discussed with
reasonable specificity, is given to the members and to the general public.

(c) Following completion of any closed meeting, the minutes of the open
meeting that was closed or the minutes of the next open meeting if the
closed meeting was separately scheduled, shall state whether the matters
discussed in the closed meeting were limited only to those specified in the
motion or notice for closure.

(d) Except as provided in Section 10-15-1(H) of the Open Meetings Act, any
action taken as a result of discussions in a closed meeting shall be made
by vote of the City of Hobbs City Commission in an open public meeting.

9. As provided by NMSA 1978, §10-15-1(C), a member of the public body may
participate in a meeting of the public body by means of a conference telephone
or other similar communications equipment when it is otherwise difficult or
impossible for the member to attend the meeting in person, provided that each
member participating by conference telephone can be identified when
speaking, all participants are able to hear each other at the same time and
members of the public attending the meeting are able to hear any member of

the public body who speaks during the meeting. Additionally, the City of Hobbs



City Commission may hold “virtual” meetings in response to a public heaith
threat or corresponding public health orders from the State of New Mexico,
provided that all measures advisable and necessary are implemented to ensure
public access and participation.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 8th day of January, 2024.

SAM D. COBB, Mayor
ATTEST:

JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk



I CITY OF HOBBS

» I
0555 COMMISSION STAFF SUMMARY FORM
NEW MEXICO ¥ © MEETING DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: PTO Payout

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: City Manager

DATE SUBMITTED: December 28, 2023
SUBMITTED BY: Toby Spears, Finance Director

Summary:

Section 2.56 of the Hobbs Municipal Code, Article 8 sets the Paid Time Off Cap at 320 hours for all general
employees and 456 hours for all fire department employees and allows police the option to buy down to 320
from their 456 cap. At the end of the calendar year, any employee who is over his/her Paid Time Off Cap
shall be paid for every hour over his/her Paid Time Off Cap.

Article 8 additionally states that in the event the city's general fund cash reserve dips below 20% at the end
of a fiscal year, the city may elect to increase Paid Time Off Caps until the following year in which general
fund cash reserve is above 20%.

The budgeted general fund reserve after BAR #1 is currently 56%.

The City of Hobbs would like to proceed with the PTO Payout for the current calendar year.
= P

Fiscal Impact: Reviewed By: W

Financé Department
The current PTO Payout would be between $267,234.17 and $291,230.44 depending on potential police
buy-down options. The FY23 budget for the annual PTO Payout is currently set to $229,712.66. There are
adequate funds in the salary budget to cover the difference.

Attachments:

Valerie S. Chacon ?

Legal Review: Approved As To Form:

City Attorney

Recommendation:

Motion to approve.

Approved For SubmitfalBy: CITY CLERK'S USE ONLY
COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Department Director Resolution No. Continued To:

W Ordinance No. Referred To:
Approved Denied
City Wf Other File No.




PTO Buyout FY24

REGULAR EMPLOYEE PAYOUT

tast First Table OVER PTO BUYOUT

toc Emp # Name Name Desc SOY Balance Earned Used Balance Liability Limit HR RATE LIVIT AMT

4610 2481RAY TODD PTO REG 508.00 240.00 236.00 512.00 28,753.92 320.00 56.16 192.00 10,782.72
4220 2969 ENRIQUEZ |ADRIAN  |PTO FIRE 592.12 339.48 208.12 723.48 28,794.50 456.00 39.80 267.48 10,645.70
0110 1652 |GOMEZ |MANUEL PTORG 382.00 240.00 198.00 424.00 39,885.68 320.00 94.07 104.00 9,783.28
0140 4504 |CORRAL |DEBORAH {PTO REG 420.00 192.00 168.00 444.00 29,468.28 320.00 66.37 124.00 8,229.88
0202 4632 | GUERRERG RICKY PTO REG 466.00 182.00 198.00 460.00 25,382.80 320.00 : 55.18 140.00 7,725.20
4630 3069 |LEWIS DEBRA PTO REG 386.00 | 240.00 146.00 480.00 20,481.60 320.00 42.67 160.00 6,827.20
0145 4742| BLANDIN {MATTHEW PTO REG 451.00 192.00 185.00 448.00 21,611.52 320.00 48.24 128.00 6,174.72
0220 2149 WILLIAMS (SHAWN  |PTO REG 438.00 245.00 239.00 439.00 22,516.31 320.00 51.29 119.00 6,103.51
4315 3653 HUGHES MATTHEW|PTO REG 378.00 216.00 171.00 423.00 24,766.65 320.00 58.55 103.00 6,030.65
0220 4531 MARINOVI|ADAM PTO REG 539.89 175.00 268.8% 446.00 21,225.14 320.00 47.59 126.00 5,996.34
0220 5269 | CONTRERA/ JUAN PTO FUNICQ 694.68 228.74 238.68 684.74 16,707.53 4568.00 24.40 228.74 5,581.13
0310 3108 | HAMILTON ROBERT PTO REG 309.00 240.00 104.00 445.00 19,108.30 | 320.00 42.94 125.00 5,367.50
0145 3833 |SANFORD |JEFFREY PTO REG 390.00 ¢ 216.00 155,50 450.50 18,429.96 320.00 40.91 130.50 5,338.76
4610 4710|GUTIERREZ MARTIN |PTC REG 379.25 152.00 101.25 470.00 16,642.70 320.00 3541 150.0¢ 5,311.50
0420 1281 BOWEN [ TERRY PTO REG 445,21 240.00 236.21 449,00 18,188.99 320.00 40.51 129.0¢ 5,225.79 ¢
4370 3601  BROTHERTIKENNETH |PTO REG 461.00 216.00 224.00 453.00 17,254.77 320.00 38.09 133.0C 5,065.97
4620 4502  MAYNARD i CHRISTOPHPTQ REG 327.50 192.00 45.50 474.00 15,471.36 320.00 32.64 154.00 5,026.56
4315 4597 ANDERSONJOEL PTO REG 325.75 192.00 8.25 509,50 13,389.66 320.00 26.28 189.50 4,980.06
0420 19371 TREVINO |EDWARD |PTO REG 310.00 240.00 102.00 448.00 17,028.48 320.00 38.01 128.00 4,865.28
0320 3516 WARNER |NANCY PTO REG 406.25 216.00 124,25 498.00 13,480.85 320.00 27.07 178.00 4,818.46
0423 3465 |USSERY  |BRYAN PTO REG 469.00 216.00 248.75 436.25 17,502.35 320.00 40,12 116.25 4,663.95
0413 2871|ADCOCK |WALTER  PTO REG 504.00 240.00 232.00 512.00 12,400.64 320,00 . 24,22 192.00 4,650.24
0330 5115|HUGHES |MICHAL |PTO REG 331.00 168.00 79.00 420.00 19,202.40 320.00 45,72 100.00 4,572.00
4017 5433|PUCCIO  IMARY PTO REG 384.25 168.00 118.25 434.00 16,995.44 320.00 39.16 114.00 4,464.24
0207 3369 CLAY TENNIE |PTO REG 468,75 216.00 216.00 469.75 13,763.68 320.00 29.30 149.75 4,387.68
0422 5882 WILLIAMS JERRY PTO REG 427.25 157.00 130.50 453.75 14,525.08 320.00 32.02 133.75 4,282.68
0220 4728 |SMITH RODNEY |PTO FUNIO 525.24 272,28 213.24 ; 584.28 19,403.94 456,00 33.21 128.28 4,260.18
4016 2549 DOMINGU|ELENA PTO REG 290.75 164.00 12.75 442.00 14,373.84 320.00 32.52 122.00 3,967.44
0145 2688 |BELYEU  |CHRISTA |PTO REG 431.00 240.00 283.00 388.00 22,092.72 320.00 56.94 68.00 3,871.92
0220 2985 | PRUDENCI{MICHAEL (PYO REG 430.75 192.00 223.75 399.00 19,323.57 320.00 48.43 79.00 3,825.97
0145 3508 AMADQR |JOSEFF PTC REG 427.50 216.00 215.50 424.00 14,700.08 320.00 34.67 104.00 3,605.68 !
0204 4588/ SANTA SUSAN PTO REG 484.25 192.00 196,25 480.00 10,329.60 320.00 21.52 160.00 3,443.20
0220 3523 |NELSON  'MICHAEL |PTO FIRE 453.64 282.08 184.00 551.72 19,801.23 456,00 35.89 95.72 3,435.39
4410 3140 RANDALL THOMAS |PTORG 310.00 240.00 191.00 335.00 31,380.19 320.00 87.41 30.00 3,408.99
0140 2844 SPEARS  TOBY PTO TS 303.00 240.00 184.00 359.00 31,322.75 320.0C 87.25 39,00 3,402.75
0110 3480:NYMEYER jJULIE PTO REG 364.87 216.00 168.87 412.00 15,165.72 320.00 36.81 92,00 3,386.52
0220 4619 RENDON |RICHARD [PTO FIRE 420.58 272.28 141.00 551.86 19,480.66 456.00 35.30 95.36 3,383.86
4370 2955|GRIFFIN  [WILLIAM :PTO REG 388.00 182.00 194.00 386.00 19,211.22 320.00 45.77 66.00 3,284.82
0410 3491|CAMPOS |JACOB PTO REG 332.00 216.00 119.50 428.50 12,803.58 320.00 29.88 108.50 3,241.98 :
0220 3425(BILANO  [JONATHAN PTO FIRE 512.28 286.28 252.92 545.64 19,228.35 456.00 35.24 89.64 3,158.91
4016 5702 | MUNIZ BARRY PTO REG 424,00 163.00 173.00 414.00 13,864.86 320.00 33.49 94.00 3,148.06
4370 4912 |KIBAD ROGER PTO REG 284.50 173.00 28.00 429.50 12,227.87 320.00 28.47 109.50 3,117.47
0330 3652 | DUNFORD | BARBARA 'PTO REG 493.74 216.00 229.74 480.00 8,515.20 320.00 17.74 | 160.00 2,838.40

Page 1of 3




PTO Buyout FY24

4685 4081 |ZACHARIAY PETER !PTO REG 350.00 | 192.00 159.00 383.00 16,687.31 320.00 | 43.57 63.00 2,744.91
0125 3650 HENRY JULIA |PTO REG 456.25 | 216.00 243.25 429.00 9,867.00 320.00 23.00 105.00 2,507.00
4315 5539 |VITT DOUGLAS |PTO REG 312.75 168.00 20.50 460.25 7,861.07 320.00 17.08 140.25 2,395.47
0415 4781|YOUNGBL({SCOT PTO REG 442.75 168.00 | 223.25 387.50 13,516.00 320.00 34.88 67.50 2,354.40
0220 4932|CREED  |LONNIE |PTO FUNIO 611.04 238.68 | 322.68 527.04 17,425.21 456.00 33.07 71.04 2,349.29
0190 2599 | DE LA CRU: IRENE PTO REG 370.00 240.00 230.00 380.00 13,984.00 320.00 36.80 | 60.00 2,208.00
0203 3196/ QUIROZ |JESSICA  |PTO REG 406.00 192.00 206.00 392.00 11,952.08 320.00 30.49 72.00 2,195.28
0145 5829 PORRAS |FRANCISCC/PTO REG 286.00 158.00 65.75 378.25 14,093.60 320.00 37.26 58.25 | 2,170.40
0208 3853 | FUNK MELISSA |PTO REG 391.00 215.00 225.00 | 381.00 12,207.24 320.00 32.04 61.00 1,954.44
4017 3564 | OWENS ROSIANNA|PTO REG 369.25 168.00 122.25 415.00 | 8,320.75 | 320.00 20.05 95.00 1,904.75
0423 2872 MARQUEZ |PAUL PTO REG 350.25 240.00 208.25 382.00 | 11,708.30 320.00 | 30.65 62.00 1,900.30
4640 3629 VALDEZ |RAYNALDOPTO REG 415.50 | 207.00 211.00 411.50 8,217.66 320.00 19.97 91.50 1,827.26
0220 5484 EDWARDS |CUTTER  |PTO FUNIO 403.78 | 238.68 112.00 530.46 11,415.50 456.00 21.52 74.46 1,602.38
0203 3763 MUNRO | MARK PTO REG 413.00 216.00 | 273.00 356.00 14,528.36 320.00 40.81 36.00 1,469.16 |
0320 2443 RAMIREZ |PLACIDO |PTO REG 441.75 230.00 314.25 357.50 12,408.83 320.00 34.71 37.50 1,301.63 \
0423 3864 FINNEY |ROYCE PTO REG 444.00 213.00 294.00 363.00 10,929.93 320.00 30.11 | 43.00 1,294.73 |
0326 2369|JUAREZ MARCOS |PTO REG 317.75 240.00 207.25 350.50 14,668.43 320.00 41.85 | 30.50 1,276.43 |
0320 4930 MALDONA|LOU PTO REG 192.50 168.00 8.00 | 352.50 12,901.50 320.00 36.60 32.50 | 1,189.50
4316 5441 |KIRKES BENJAMIN|PTO REG 264.25 168.00 80.00 | 352.25 12,850.08 320.00 36.48 32.25 1,176.48
0220 6246 (SALMON [LUCAS PTO FUNIO 335.52 204.48 24.00 516.00 | 9,896.88 456.00 19.18 60.00 1,150.80
4630 3014 |MARTINEZ|DELMA  |PTO REG 341.25 240.00 210.25 371.00 8,295.56 320.00 | 22.36 51.00 1,140.36
0201 3503|BLEVINS |[SHANE |PTO REG 395.50 | 216.00 275.50 336.00 21,500.64 320.00 63.99 16.00 1,023.84
0140 5520|TRICE DEBORAH |PTO REG 307.00 | 168.00 133.00 342.00 14,757.30 320.00 43.15 22.00 949.30
4630 3138| TARANGO |CECILIA PTO REG 376.00 234.00 | 252.00 358.00 8,019.20 320.00 22.40 38.00 851.20 |
0320 4577/ MORA LUIS PTO REG 241.50 152.00 | 78.25 355.25 7,204.47 320.00 20.28 35.25 714.87 |
0421 5682 PALMER |AARON PTO REG 343.25 167.00 171.75 338.50 12,602.36 320.00 37.23 18.50 688.76 |
0423 3793 SPROUSE | TERRY PTO REG 332.00 216.00 204.00 344.00 9,731.76 320.00 28.29 | 24.00 678.96
0423 3691 GALVAN |GUILLERM(PTO REG 375.75 216.00 251.75 340.00 10,244.20 320.00 30.13 | 20.00 602.60
4370 | 6224 MURRISH |CLAYTON |PTO REG ‘ 355.50 144.00 152.50 | 347.00 7,450.09 320.00 21.47 27.00 579.69
0130 | 2148|FLETCHER JENNIFER |PTOREG | 324.00 240.00 238.00 326.00 21,066.12 320.00 64.62 6.00 387.72
0209 [ 4909 |SILVA JESSICA PTO REG 224,75 173.00 68.00 329.75 | 11,399.46 320.00 34.57 9.75 337.06
0220 3615 |VASQUEZ |JOSEPH |PTO FIRE 277.35 305.88 123.60 459.63 18,486.12 456.00 | 40.22 3.63 145.80
29,538.19 15,969.86 13,114.70 32,393.34 1,222,408.99 25,360.00 2,870.09 7,033.34 260,755.28 [

PART TIME EMPLOYEE PAYOUT |
Loc Emp # Last Name First Name Table Desc| SOY Balance| Earned Used Balance Liability Limit HR RATE OVER LIMIT PTO BUYOUT AMT
4016 6371/ BARRETT |JORDAN |PTO REG 125.25 72.00 8.00 189.25 3,151.01 160.00 16.65 29.25 487.01—|

| 125.25 72.00 8.00 189.25 3,151.01 160.00 16.65 29.25 487.01

| |

|

Page 2 of 3




PTO Buyout FY24

POLICE EMPLOYEE PAYOUT | |
Loc Emp # Last Name  First Name Table Desc| SOY Balance| Earned Used Balance Liability Limit HRRATE | OVERLIMIT PTO BUYOUT AN OVER 320 POSSIBLE BUYOUT
0206 3236 BUTLER |STEVEN |PTO POLIC 528.50 222.00 215.50 535.00 20,437.00 456.00 38.20 79.00 3,017.80 215.00 8,213.00
0202 5081 SEAY DUSTIN  |PTO POLIC 572.00 168.00 222.00 518.00 18,259.50 456.00 35.25 62.00 | 2,185.50 198.00 6,979.50
0202 4440 BERDOZA |ERIC PTO POLIC 377.00 180.00 83.00 | 474.00 20,765.94 456.00 43,81 18.00 788.58 | 154.00 6,746.74
0204 3999 | BLANCHAR|ROBERT | PTO POLICI 437.06 168.00 196.56 408.50 15,874.31 456.00 38.86 88.50 3,439.11
0202 5110 MANN NIKOLAS [PTO POLICI 618.00 168.00 365.50 420.50 | 14,128.80 456.00 | 33.60 100.50 3,376.80
0206 4015 |ENGLISH |MILDRED |PTO POLICI 352.50 | 201.00 198.00 355.50 | 10,241.96 456.00 28.81 35.50 1,022.76
0202 6394|TEAGUE |JAMES  |PTO POLIC 243.25 | 144.00 60.00 327.25 9,490.25 456.00 | 29.00 7.25 210.25
3,128.31 1,251.00 |  1,340.56 3,038.75 109,197.76 3,192.00 | 247.53 159.00 5,991.88 798.75 29,988.16
HOURS Range 1
Payout - all to 320 7,861.34  291,230.44 i
| Payout - pd to 456 267,234.17 \

Page 30of3




e CITY OF HOBBS

i
WO 5 5 5 COMMISSION STAFF SUMMARY FORM

NEW MEXICO MEETING DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: Resolution to Execute a Grant Agreement with the New
Mexico Aging and Long Term Services Department

DEPT. OF ORIGIN:  Recreation Department

DATE SUBMITTED: January 2, 2024

SUBMITTED BY: Doug McDaniel, Recreation Director

Summary:

The City of Hobbs has received funding in the amount of $10,000.00 from the New Mexico
Aging and Long Term Services Division. The grant will be used to purchase freshly
harvested local produce and allowable food items for distribution to the members of the
Hobbs Senior Center. This appropriation does not require matching funds. Funds for this
grant must be fully expended by May 30, 2024.

Fiscal Impact: Reviewed By: ALM@QL

Grant Agreement Amount: $10,000.00

A request will be made in an upcoming BAR to include this revenue in the FY24 Budget
with an associated expenditure of funds in the same amount.

Attachments:
Resolution, Grant Agreement

Legal Review: Approved As To Form: M/ZZ?)%M%_/

City Attorney
Recommendation: 7
Motion to approve the resolution
Approved For Submittal By: CITY CLERKS USE ONLY
COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN
{ : :
L . . Resolution No. Continued To:
7 . P —
be@”e”{D’ tor | Ordinance No. Referred To:
Approved Denied
Other File No.




CITY OF HOBBS

RESOLUTION NO. 7431

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO
AGING AND LONG TERM SERVICES DEPARTMENT
FOR FY24 NEW MEXICO GROWN PROGRAM FOR
PURCHASE OF FRESHLY HARVESTED LOCAL PRODUCE/ALLOWABLE FOOD ITEMS

WHEREAS, a New Mexico Grown Program Appropriation has been awarded fo the Hobbs
Senijor Center; and

WHEREAS, this grant appropriation in the amount of $10,000.00 is to purchase a freshly
harvested local produce and allowable food items; and

WHEREAS, the City of Hobbs Senior Center is identified as the recipient of these funds
and the Grant will be administered by the New Mexico Aging and Long Term Services
Department; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
HOBBS, NEW MEXICO, that the Mayor be and hereby is authorized and direcied to take all
necessary and appropriate action to effectuate this Resolution for a Grant Agreement with the
State of New Mexico, Aging and Long Term Services Department for the FY24 New Mexico
Grown Program, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8" day of January, 2024.

SAM D. COBB, Mayor

ATTEST:

JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk



FY24 New Mexico Grown Program Grant
SCOPE OF WORK
City of Hobbs (Provider)

A. PURPOSE

The New Mexico Aging & Long-Term Services Department (ALTSD) believes farm to
senior center or nutrition site are essential to the senior meal nutrition programs in New
Mexico. The goal of this funding is to strengthen the connections between senior centers
local farms, farm organizations and ranchers so that freshly harvested local food items
become an essential component in New Mexico seniors’ diet.

The purpose of the Agreement is to allocate funds in support of the provision of
congregate and home delivered meals provided under Title IIIC of the Older Americans
Act (OAA). The Senior Center Service Provider, and its sub-contractors, must be
recipients of Title Il funding or Title III matching funds to participate.

B. AREAS TO BE SERVED
The Senior Center Service Provider shall be responsible for the provision of freshly
harvested local produce and allowable food items in the following locations:

° Hobbs Senior Center

C. TARGET POPULATION

Target population includes persons aged 60 or older. Per the Older Americans Act,
an effort must be given to serving eligible persons with the greatest social or
economic need, with particular attention to minority individuals with low incomes.
Additionally, efforts must be made to target individuals residing in rural areas,
individuals with limited English proficiency, and individuals with Alzheimer’s
disease and related disorders, with severe disabilities or at-risk of institutionalization
and their caregivers.

D. RESPONSIBILTIES OF THE SENIOR CENTER SERVICE PROVIDER
Administrative Requirements:
i.  Allocate funds received from ALTSD under the New Mexico Grown Program
Grant to nutrition providers that provide congregate and home-delivered
meals under the Older Americans Act.
ii.  Require that meals are served to clients eligible for Older Americans Act
funded congregate and home-delivered meals programs.
iii.  Purchase directly from New Mexico farmers, farm organizations and
ranchers listed on the Farmers Market Association’s “Approved Supplier
List”, accessible here: https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1U4Dj-
7sNXsDmCw9Tpnn8910Ga9ifqa0S7I1G 1mOn9ZU/edit#gid=951775219,
which certifies that the product originated on farms and ranches that practice
sound food safety practices in the State of New Mexico. The following
spreadsheet contains a list of all permissible food items
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1U4Dj-
7sNXsDmCw9Tpnn8910Ga9ifqa0S711G1mOn9ZU/edit#igid=951775219. Both lists




v,

vi.

Vii.

viii.

ix.

X1,

Xii.

are live and should be accessed through the links provided, please do not
downloaded the documents,
It is recommended that 10% of the providers allocation go toward purchasing
New Mexico locally grown produce and meat from small farmers and
ranchers. A small farmer comprises of farmers cultivating on two acres or
less.
Maintain documented:
a. Meal Counts
b. Number of Pounds of Produce and Meat Purchased
¢. Total Number of Unduplicated Consumers that Received Meals
Integrated with New Mexico Grown local produce, local meat,
and allowable food items by recording monthly in the Revver
Database. Data must be accurate, and unduplicated.
Ensure in all cases that all produce, meat, and allowable food items are
guaranteed to be grown, harvested, and processed in New Mexico and are
accompanied by documentation proving origin, including farm or ranch name
and location.
Ensure that all meat purchased is packaged with the USDA FSIS inspection
stamp on the packaging from a USDA FSIS inspected processor.
Ensure that New Mexico Grown Program Grant funds are to be used
exclusively for the purchase of local produce, local meat, and allowable local
food items. The funds may not be used for meal preparation or '
administrative costs. Transportation and/or Delivery Fees are allowable and
must be factored into the final price per unit agreed upon by your senior
center and applicable vendor,
Senior Center Service Providers must submit monthly invoices for
reimbursement by the 10" day of the month, for the prior month’s
expenditures until all funds are spent, unless otherwise authorized by ALTSD
at its sole discretion.
All monthly invoices for reimbursement must be accompanied by supporting
receipts or invoices from vendors whom purchases were made. A receipt
and/or invoice from New Mexico farmers, farm organizations or rancher
must include the following:
a. the vendor’s name, address, and contact information
b. internal transaction number, or invoice number
c. the purchased items with a description of each product along with the
corresponding quantity
d. the price for each item and any applicable discount
e. the total amount of the sale items
f. senior center or meal site (s) to which will receive the delivery, then
full name, address, and other contact information
ALTSD has the discretion to request documentation related to compliance at
any time for any reason.
Each quarter's reimbursement request must reflect the expenditure of at least
one-quarter of the allocated funds until all tunds have been spent. Failure to
withdraw at least one-quarter of the allocated awarded amount each quarter
(until all funds are spent) may result in a reduction in the allocated award for
failure to meet fiscal responsibilities.



E. COMPENSATION

ALTSD shall pay the Senior Center Service Provider in full for New Mexico local food
items purchased satisfactorily in accordance with the deliverables established in this
Scope of Work. The total amount payable to the Senior Center Service Provider
under this Agreement, including gross receipts tax and expenses, shall not exceed
$10,000. Senior Center Providers may spend up to 40% of their funding on New
Mexico local USDA stamped meat from vendors on the New Mexico Farmers Market
Approved Suppliers List. The purchase of local New Mexico raised, processed USDA
stamped meat may not exceed the budgeted amount of $10,000. The purchase of New
Mexico locally grown produce and allowable New Mexico food items must not exceed
budgeted amount of $10,000,

Funding for this awarded amount must be fully expended by May 30, 2024.

F. DEPARTMENT OVERSIGHT

ALTSD will monitor the monthly invoicing to verify all produce purchased 1s
allowable under the New Mexico Grown Program Grant. ALTSD will provide
technical assistance to providers as needed.

G. SERVICE PROVISION/PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Each Senior Center Service Provider will submit a monthly data sheet detailing the
total number of pounds of New Mexico grown produce, local meat, and allowable
local food items integrated in the total number of meals provided for the senior meal
program, as well as the total number of unduplicated consumers that received meals
integrated with New Mexico Grown local produce, local meat, and allowable food
items. Data must be accurate, and unduplicated.

H. ADMINISTRATION COSTS — N/A

EXECUTED AND AGREED TO BY SIGNATURE(s) BELOW:

Hobbs Senior Center Director
Name (Provider) Title
/QW 12/12/2023
Digital-Sigfature Date
Name (ALTSD)  Denise King Tifle A8ng Network Division Director
Digital-Signature Z A ’? Date  12/14/23




Doug McDaniel

From: Mary E. Puccio ' ’

Sent: Tuesday, December 12, 2023 8:38 AM '

To: Deborah Corral

Cc: Doug McDaniel

Subject: FW: EXTERNAL: FY24 NM Grown Mini Grant Award Letter - Hobbs Senior Center
Attachments: NM Grown FY24 Mini Grant SOW Hobbs-signed.pdf

Good morning,

I've received the email regarding the NM Grown Mini Grant and it looks like we were awarded $10,000 this year. I've
also attached the SOW that | sighed and will be returning. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Mawy Puccio
Nulritiov Specialist
Hobby Senior Center
(575) 397-9301

From: Sill, Duncan, ALTSD <duncan.sill@altsd.nm.gov>

Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 10:49 AM

To: Mary E. Puccio <MPuccio@hobbsnm.org>

Cc: King, Denise, ALTSD <Denise.King@altsd.nm.gov>; Steppe, Ophelia, ALTSD <Ophelia.Steppe@altsd.nm.gov>
Subject: EXTERNAL: FY24 NM Grown Mini Grant Award Letter - Hobbs Senior Center

Security Awareness Learn more

X

€) The email came from an external source.
@ The email was sent from a known contact.
£ The email was sent from a top domain.

Mary:
Hi! | will be working with you on the NM Grown activities. See award amount and information below.
TO: Mary Puccio, Hobbs Senior Center

FROM: Aging & Long-Term Services Department (ALTSD)

RE: FY24 New Mexico Grown Program



Thank you for your interest in providing fresh fruits and vegetables grown right here in New Mexico to seniors
in your service area. Your application has been approved, and your senior center(s) will recetve state funding
to support the New Mexico Grown Program The funds may only be used to purchase fresh produce grown in
New Mexico, as well as allowable food items for use in your senior meal program.

Senior Centers in New Mexico can purchase locally in the following ways:

» Purchase directly from New Mexico Farmers/Farm Organizations and New Mexico Ranchers on the
Approved Suppliers List.

» Purchase through established contracts with broad-line distributors or primary vendors who sell fresh
fruits and vegetables grown in New Mexico, as well as allowable food items.

All locally grown produce that meets USDA standards for inclusion in senior meals, including shelf stable
products like pinto beans, hominy, and chile — as well as cultural foods like corn meal — is eligible for purchase,
only if the food item is listed on the Allowable Product List. Transportation expenses are allowable and should
be factored into the final price per unit agreed upon by your senior center and applicable vendors.

A Scope of Work (SOW) will be sent to you in a separate email and will require your execution and remittance
to us; a purchase order can then be issued.

The allocation for FY24 NM Grown Program is in the amount of $10,000, this indicates your approved budget
through the Aging & Long-Term Services Department (ALTSD). As NM Grown Awardee’s expand their meal
program through outreach ALTSD will reevaluate its funding distribution and offer additional funds only if
further funding becomes available.

Senior Center Service Providers must purchase produce and allowable food items before requesting
reimbursement from ALTSD.

Please adhere to the following timelines and requirements for budgeting, spending, and submission of your
Request for Reimbursements (RFR):

» Submit a monthly invoice and data sheet in the Revver Database System by the 10th of the month for
the prior month's locally grown produce and allowable food item expenditures until all funds are spent.

» Include documentation certifying that the produce and allowable food items were purchased from
vendors on the Farmers Marketing Association Approved Supplier List, which certifies that the product
originated on farms and ranches in the state of New Mexico that practice sound food safety practices
(for example, the vendors invoice).

» Funding for this awarded amount must be fully expended by May 30, 2024.

» Purchasing can begin upon approved purchase order from ALTSD.

We will also reach out to conduct a training session to review the NM Grown Program guidelines, the approved
suppliers list and allowable food items, answer any questions, and go through how to upload the necessary
monthly documents.

The Approved Suppliers List is linked below, you may start contacting vendors to discuss the food items you
would like to purchase in FY24 and to discuss placing the vendor in your financial system. The link to the
allowable food items is also below. Both lists are updated monthly; if a food item you are seeking is not listed
check back periodically it may be added.



APPROVED SUPPLIERS LIST: https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1U4Dj-
7sNXsDmCw9Tpnn8910Ga9ifga0S71IG1mOn9ZU/editH#gid=951775219
|

4|
ALLOWABLE FOOD ITEM LIST: :
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1nLcvkhixB2bYFqFUQQfDBCY9PVEwW c7hn/edit#qid=424591837

If you have any questions about the program, please contact Duncan Sill, Food Security Coordinator, at
Duncan.sill@altsd.nm.gov, or Ophelia Steppe, ALTSD State Nutritionist, at Ophelia.Steppe@altsd.nm.gov, or
Denise King, ALTSD Aging Network Division Director, at Denise.King@altsd.nm.gov.

Congratulations!

Thank you for participating in the NM Grown Program.

Duncan Sill, Food Security Coordinator

Aging Network Division

New Mexico Aging and Long Term Services Department
2550 Cerrillos Rd.

Santa Fe, NM 87505

505-629-9966 (cell)

Duncan.Sill@altsd.nm.gov
https://nmaging.state.nm.us/

This email has been scanned by Inbound Shield.






o CITY OF HOBBS

j{‘
?{ 665 COMMISSION STAFF SUMMARY FORM

NEW MEXICO MEETING DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: Resolution to Execute a Grant Agreement with the New
Mexico Department of Finance and Administration

DEPT. OF ORIGIN:  Recreation Department

DATE SUBMITTED: January 2, 2024

SUBMITTED BY: Doug McDaniel, Recreation Director

Summary:

The City of Hobbs is the Sub-Recipient for $600,000.00 from the New Mexico Regional
Recreation Centers & Quality of Life Grants Awards. The grant will be used to assist with
costs related to planning and design of an outdoor Multi-Generational Family Aquatics
Center using funds made available by the United States Department of Treasury. The grant
appropriation will be administered by the State of New Mexico Department of Finance
Administration. This appropriation does not require matching funds. The grant has a
reversion date of June 30, 2024 unless the Legislature votes to extend this date.

Fiscal Impact: Reviewed By: WM

Grant Agreement Amount: $600,000.00

A BAR will be made to include the revenue from the grant, $600,000.00, in the FY24
Budget with an associated expenditure of funds in the same amount.

Attachments:
Resolution, Grant Agreement

Legal Review: Approved As To Forﬂg-/Mf]jﬂ//M,—/

dity Attorney
Recommendation:
Motion to approve the resolution
Approved For Submittal By: CITY CLERKS USE ONLY

COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

("> ,36(1/\.40
A‘!/{Mb Resolution No. Continued To:

ment Director Ordinance No. Referred To:

~ Approved Denied

W Other File No.
~ City Ma@gia/




CITY OF HOBBS
RESOLUTION NO. _7432

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
FOR AGREEMENT NUMBER 23-ZH5053-27
FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN
OF A MULTI-GENERATIONAL FAMILY AQUATICS CENTER

WHEREAS, a State of New Mexico 2023 Regional Recreation Centers & Quality of Life
Grants Awards has been awarded to the City of Hobbs; and

WHEREAS, this grant appropriation in the amount of $600,000.00 is to assist with funding
for the planning and design of a new, outdoor Multi-Generational Family Aquatics Center for
Hobbs in L.ea County; and

WHEREAS, the City of Hobbs is identified as the SubRecipient for funds made available
by the United States Department of Treasury, and Manny Gomez is identified as the Official
Representative of the Grantee; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
HOBBS, NEW MEXICO, that the Mayor be and hereby is authorized and directed to take all
necessary and appropriate action to effectuate this Resolution for a Grant Agreement with the
State of New Mexico, Department of Finance and Administration for Agreement Number 23-
ZH5053-27, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8™ day of January, 2024.

SAM D. COBB, Mayor
ATTEST:

JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk



STATE OF NEW MEXICO SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT

FOR

THE REGIONAL RECREATION CENTERS QUALITY OF LIFE PROGRAM

COVER PAGE

State Agency
Department of Finance and Administration

Agreement Number
23-ZH5053-27

Subrecipient Name
City of Hobbs

Subrecipient Unique Entity Identifier (UEI)
T6JWFFISWNW3

Subaward Period of Performance
Start Date
July 1, 2023

End Date
June 30, 2024

Subaward Amount
$ 600,000.00

(This amount reflects the amount of federal
funds obligated by this action and the current
financial obligation)

Subaward Budget Period
Start Date

July 1, 2023

End Date

June 30, 2024

Subaward Project Description (Purpose)

Grant of Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to plan and design the multi-
general family aquatics center in Hobbs, in Lea County.

Exhibits

The following are Exhibit and Attachments are included within this Agreement:

Exhibit A, Federal Award Information
Exhibit B, Scope of Work and Budget
Exhibit C, Federal Provisions

Ok o thuts B =

7. Exhibit G, CSFRF Quarterly Reports

Exhibit D, Assurances of Compliance with Civil Rights Requirements
Exhibit E, Davis-Bacon Act Requirements (If Applicable)
Exhibit F, Eligible and Restricted Uses of CSFRF Funds

Contact Information
Pass-Through Entity (State):

Subrecipient:

Agency Name: Local Government Division of Name: City of Hobbs

Department of Finance and Administration
Representative: Nicole Silva

Address: 407 Galisteo Street

Address: Room 202

City, State Zip: Santa Fe, NM 87501
Email: Nicole.Silva@dfa.nm.gov

Representative: Manny Gomez
Title: City Manager

Address: 200 E. Broadway
Hobbs NM, 88240

Email: Mgomez@hobbsnm.org

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 1 of 63




FEDERAL AWARD IDENTIFICATION

In accordance with the Code of Federal Regﬁlations (C.F.R.), 2 C.F.R. Part 200.332 requires that
the following information be provided to any Subrecipient of a federal award:

Federal Awarding Office United States Department of the Treasury
Grant Program Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund
Assistance Listing Number 21.027

Federal Award Date June 9, 2021

Award End Date October 31, 2026

Indirect Cost Rate

Research and Development Award? No

Federal Statutory Authority Title VI of the Social Security Act, Section 602
Total Amount in Federal Award (this is not

the amount in the grant agreement) $1,751,542,935.00

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 2 of 63




SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
AND
City of Hobbs

THIS SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT is hereby made and entered into this 20th day of
November 2023, by and between the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration
(“DFA”) (hereinafter referred to as “STATE™), and City of Hobbs (hereinafter referred to as
“SUBRECIPIENT").

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Treasury (hereinafter referred to as “Treaswry” or
“GRANTOR™) has made federal funds available to the STATE under the Coronavirus State and
Local Fiscal Recovery Fund (“CSLFRF”) Program (Assistance Listing Number (“ALN”) 21.027);

WHEREAS, Recipients under the CSLFRF Program are the eligible entities identified in sections
602 and 603 of the Social Security Act as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act
of 2021 that receive a CSLFRF award. Subrecipients under the CSLFRF Program are entities that
receive a subaward from a recipient to carry out the purposes {program or project) of the CSLFRF
award on behalf of the recipient;

WHEREAS, Recipients are accountable to Treasury for oversight of their subrecipients, including
ensuring their subrecipients comply with the CSLFRF statute, CSLFRF Award Terms and
Conditions, Treasury’s Interim Final Rule, and reporting requirements, as applicable; and,

WHEREAS, this Agreement addresses the flow of funds from the Treasury above to the STATE
who will then provide the same referenced subaward funds to the SUBRECIPIENT, as legally
allowed by the relevant law and regulations, for any approved scope of work as further discussed
in Section 1 of this agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, the STATE and the SUBRECIPIENT do mutually agree to the following
terms and conditions of this agreement:

1. Definitions

a. “Agreement Funds” means the funds that have been appropriated, designated,
encumbered, or otherwise made available for payment by the State under this Agreement.

b. “Agreement” means this agreement, including all attached Exhibits, all documents
incorporated by reference, all referenced statutes, rules and cited authorities, and any future
modifications thereto.

c. “Award” means an award by a Recipient to a Subrecipient funded in whole or in part by a
Federal Award. The terms and conditions of the Federal Award flow down to the Award
unless the terms and conditions of the Federal Award specifically indicate otherwise.

d. “Breach of Agreement” means the failure of a Party to perform any of its obligations in
accordance with this Agreement, in whole or in part or in a timely or satisfactory manner.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 3 of 63



m,

The institution of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar
law, by or against State, or the appointment of a receiver or similar officer for State or any
of its property, which is not vacated or fully stayed within 30 days after the institution of
such proceeding, shall also constitute a breach.

“Budget” means the budget for the Work described in Exhibit B.

“Business Day” means any day in which the State is open and conducting business, but
shall not include Saturday, Sunday or any day on which the State observes one of the legal
public holidays.

“Effective Date” means the date on which this Agreement is approved and signed by the
New Mexico agency, as shown on the Signature for this Agreement.

“Exhibits” means the exhibits and attachments included with this Agreement as shown on
the Cover Page for this Agreement.

“Federal Award” means an award of Federal financial assistance or a cost-reimbursement
Agreement, under the Federal Acquisition Regulations or by a formula or block grant, by
a Federal Awarding Agency to the Recipient. “Federal Award” also means an agreement
setting forth the terms and conditions of the Federal Award. The term does not include
payments to an Agreement or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a Federal
program.

“Federal Awarding Agency” means a Federal agency providing a Federal Award to a
Recipient. The US Department of the Treasury is the Federal Awarding Agency for the
Federal Award, which is the subject of this Agreement.

“Goods” means any movable material acquired, produced, or delivered by State as set forth
in this Agreement and shall include any movable material acquired, produced, or delivered
by the State in connection with the Services.

“Grant Funds” means the funds that have been appropriated, designated, encumbered, or
otherwise made available for payment by the State under this Agreement.

“STATE” means the State agency shown on the Signature and Cover Page of this
Agreement, for the purposes of this Federal Award.

“Incident” means any accidental or deliberate event that results in or constitutes an
imminent threat of the unauthorized access, loss, disclosure, modification, disruption, or
destruction of any communications or information resources of the State, which are
included as part of the Work. Incidents include, without limitation, (i) successful attempts
to gain unauthorized access to a State system or State Records regardless of where such
information is located; (ii) unwanted disruption or denial of service; (iii) the unauthorized
use of a State system for the processing or storage of data; or (iv) changes to State system

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 4 of 63



hardware, firmware, or software characteristics without the State’s knowledge, instruction,
or consent. ‘

“Initial Term” means the time period defined in the agreement.

“IPRA” means the Inspection of Public Records Act, a New Mexico state law that provides
the public and media access to public information. The law requires open access to almost
all public records in state and local government, with few exceptions

“Matching Funds” means the funds provided the State as a match required to receive the
Grant Funds.

“Party” means the State or STATE, and “Parties” means both the State and Subrecipient.

“PCI” means payment card information including any data related to credit card holders’
names, credit card numbers, or other credit card information as may be protected by state
ot federal law.

“PHI” means any protected health information, including, without limitation any
information whether oral or recorded in any form or medium: (i) that relates to the past,
present, or future physical or mental condition of an individual; the provision of health care
to an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care to
an individual; and (ii) that identifies the individual or with respect to which there is a
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. PHI
includes, but is not limited to, any information defined as Individually Identifiable Health
Information by the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.

“PIF” means personally identifiable information including, without limitation, any
information maintained by the State about an individual that can be used to distinguish or
trace an individual’s identity, such as name, social security number, date and place of birth,
mother’s maiden name, or biometric records; and any other information that is linked or
linkable to an individual, such as medical, educational, financial, and employment
information.

“Services” means the services to be performed by Subrecipient as set forth in this
Agreement and shall include any services to be rendered by Subrecipient in connection
with the Goods.

. “State Confidential Information” means any and all State Records not subject to
disclosure under IPRA. State Confidential Information shall include, but is not limited to,
PIT, PHI, PCI, Tax Information, CJI, and State personnel records not subject to disclosure
under IPRA. State Confidential Information shall not include information or data
concerning individuals that is not deemed confidential but nevertheless belongs to the
State, which has been communicated, furnished, or disclosed by the State to Subrecipient
which (i) is subject to disclosure pursuant to IPRA; (it) is already known to Subrecipient
without restrictions at the time of its disclosure to Subrecipient; (iii) is or subsequently

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 5 of 63



becomes publicly available without breach of any obligation owed by Subrecipient to the
State; (iv) is disclosed to Subrecipient, without confidentiality obligations, by a third party
who has the right to disclose such information; or {v) was mdependently developed without
reliance on any State Confidential Information.

x. “State Fiscal Year” means a 12-month period beginning on July 1 of each calendar year
and ending on June 30 of the following calendar year. If a single calendar year follows the
term, then it means the State Fiscal Year ending in that calendar year.

y. “State Records” means any and all State data, information, and records, regardless of
physical form, including, but not limited to, information subject to disclosure under IPRA.

z. “Subcontractor” means third parties, if any, engaged by Subrecipients to aid in
performance of the Work.

aa. “Tax Information” means federal and State of New Mexico tax information including,
without limitation, federal and State tax returns, return information, and such other tax-
related information as may be protected by federal and State law and regulation. Tax
Information includes, butis not limited to all information defined as federal tax information
in Internal Revenue Service Publication 1075.

bb. “Uniform Guidance” means the Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards.

ce. “Work Product” means the tangible and intangible results of the Work, whether finished
or unfinished, including drafts. Work Product includes, but is not limited to, documents,
text, software (including source code), research, reports, proposals, specifications, plans,
notes, studies, data, images, photographs, negatives, pictures, drawings, designs, models,
surveys, maps, materials, ideas, concepts, know-how, information, and any other results of
the Work. “Work Product” does not include any material that was developed prior to the
Effective Date that is used, without modification, in the performance of the Work.

dd. “Work” means the Goods delivered and Services performed pursuant fo this Agreement.

ee. Any other terim used in this Agreement that is defined in an Exhibit shall be construed and
interpreted as defined in that Exhibit.

2. Scope of Work

The GRANTOR has provided funds, through its CSLFRF Program, to the STATE who is then
providing this same funding to the SUBRECIPIENT in accordance with this Agreement.
Information related to the federal award is attached as “Exhibit A.”. The SUBRECIPIENT shall
perform the services and necessary tasks required in order to accomplish the objectives of the
GRANTOR’S Program which have been agreed to by the STATE, as outlined in “Exhibit B.”

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 6 0of 63



SUBRECIPIENT’S full and timely performance of Exhibit B-Scope of Work shall include strict - :
compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws, regulations and administrative policies
as they relate to the SUBRECIPIENT’S specific approved project including but not limited to the
references above as well as the following: -

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)
6

(&)

()

)

SUBRECIPIENT will comply with 31 C.F.R. Part 35 Subpart A ~ Coronavirus State and
Local Fiscal Recovery Funds.

SUBRECIPIENT will comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 200 - Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards as well as
any specific federal departmental grant requirement in other sections of the C.F.R.

SUBRECIPIENT will adhere to both the Federal Procurement Laws contained in 2 CF.R.
Part 200.318 to 200.326 as well as the State Procurement Laws for Political Subdivisions
contained in the New Mexico Procurement Code.

SUBRECIPIENT will adhere to the requirements of the GRANTOR’S CSLFRF
Program.

SUBRECIPIENT will adhere to the Scope of Work and Budget in Exhibit B.

SUBRECIPIENT will comply with Universal Identifier and System for Award
Management (SAM), 2 C.F.R. Part 25 where applicable.

SUBRECIPIENT will incorporate, where applicable, the contractual provision
requirements outlined in 2 C.F.R. Part 200.326 which is further discussed in Section 7 of
this agreement.

SUBRECIPIENT will comply, when applicable, with any applicable National Policy
Requirements for federal grants which is further discussed in Section 7 of this agreement.

SUBRECIPIENT will not pay any contractor who is listed by the federal government as
debarred and/or suspended which is further discussed in Section 7 of this
agreement. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to alert the STATE immediately if a contractor
working for the SUBRECIPIENT becomes debarred or suspended.

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that the STATE is a “recipient” of CSLFRF
funds as such term is used in the CSLFRF regulations, and SUBRECIPIENT shall
provide, upon the reasonable request of the STATE, financial and performance reports
sufficient to demonstrate SUBRECIPIENT’S compliance with CSLFRF and as otherwise
necessary for STATE to satisfy the subrecipient monitoring and management
requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 200.331 to 200.333.

Pursuant to information submitted to the STATE for inclusion in the GRANTOR’S CSLFRF
Program, the SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the following tasks:

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 7 of 63



Properly procure and complete the project substantially as described in Exhibit B,
Scope of Work and Budget. Any and all expenses associated with the project are the
sole responsibility of the SUBRECIPIENT. The ownership of any property furnished
hereunder will be the property of the SUBRECIPIENT. The SUBRECIPIENT shail
have the sole responsibility to maintain possession of the said property, maintain the
property, repair the property when needed and maintain any applicable insurance
amounts. Any future costs related to these requirements remain the sole responsibility
of the SUBRECIPIENT.

In compliance with the above, the SUBRECIPIENT agrees to notify the STATE and federal
GRANTOR, in writing, and request the preferred method of disposition for any propetty or
equipment purchased with federal funds if said property or equipment is no longer of use to the
SUBRECIPIENT. In addition, if an annual inventory is requested by the STATE then the
SUBRECIPIENT will provide prompt access to all inventory records. |

3. Term of Agreement

The term of this agreement shall become effective upon execution by DFA for the period of July
1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. All funds must be obligated by the SUBRECIPIENT by June 1,
2024, and all funds must be expended by June 30, 2024, and reimbursement requested by the
SUBRECIPIENT to the STATE by July 15, 2024,

4. Payment Terms of Grant Funding
a. The maximum budget for the scope of work identified in Section 1 above:
$600,000.00 (Six Hundred Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents)

b. Taxes. Subaward, budget amount includes applicable New Mexico tax, including but not
limited to the New Mexico Gross Receipts and Compensating Tax at N.M.S.A. (1978) §
7-9-1 et seq. (“NMGRT”). The SUBRECEIPENT is subject to and shall be liable for
payment of all applicable New Mexico taxes, at the prevailing rate, for all work performed
under Exhibit B—Scope of Work. The SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for the
payment of all applicable New Mexico taxes.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 8 of 63



¢. Payment Procedures

(1) The STATE shall pay the SUBRECIPIENT in the amounts and in accordance with the
schedule and other conditions set forth in Exhibit B. SUBRECIPIENT segregate, on
each invoice, the applicable New Mexico tax.

(2) SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate payment requests by invoice to the STATE, in a form
and manner approved by the STATE.

(3) The STATE shall pay each invoice within forty-five (45) days following the STATE’s
receipt of that invoice, so long as the amount invoiced correctly represents Work
completed by the SUBRECIPIENT and previously accepted by the STATE during the
term that the invoice covers. If the STATE determines that the amount of any invoice
is not correct, then SUBRECIPIENT shall make ali changes necessary to coirect that
invoice.

{4) The acceptance of an invoice shall not constitute acceptance of any Work performed
or deliverables provided under this Agreement.

Advancement of funds, under this Agreement, is contingent upon the SUBRECIPIENT
complying with all of the requirements for allowable uses for funds under the CSLFRF
Program and providing sufficient documentation to the STATE as reasonably determined
by the STATE. The SUBRECIPIENT is responsible for payment to its vendors unless
otherwise specifically approved by the STATE.

d. Financial Documentation

The SUBRECIPIENT will provide copies of all related financial documentation to the
STATE with the first quarterly report, supplying sufficient documentation to meet the
reporting requirements of the CSLFRF Program. Any questioned costs which may occur
at any point in this process (including the five (5) year period after grant closeout by the
federal GRANTOR) will be the sole responsibility of the SUBRECIPIENT with respect to
any activity covered by this agreement.
If this agreement extends beyond the current fiscal year and notwithstanding anything to the
contrary and when applicable, both parties acknowledge and agree that pursuant to the applicable
state law, this agreement is subject to an ammual appropriation dependency requirement to the effect
that the renewal of this agreement is contingent upon the appropriation of funds by either party to
fulfill any future payment requirements of this agreement. If either party fails to appropriate
sufficient monies to provide for any future payment requirements under this agreement, this
agreement shall terminate on the last day of the last fiscal year for which funds were appropriated.

Subrecipient Agreement - City of Hobbs
Page 9 of 63



5. Reporting, Moniforing, and Review
a. Requirements

The SUBRECIPIENT is required to participate in monitoring and review activities necessary
to assess the work performed under the Subaward and determine whether the Subrecipient has
timely achieved the Scope of Work stated in Exhibit B to this Subaward. The ongoing
monitoring of the SUBRECIPIENT will reflect its assessed risk and include monitoring,
identification of deficiencies, and follow-up to ensure appropriate remediation.

b. Risk Assessment

The risk assessment may include factors such as prior experience in managing Federal funds,
previous audits, personnel, and policies or procedures for award execution and oversight.

¢. Monitoring

Monitoring and review activities will be detailed in a Monitoring Plan based on the STATE’S
risk assessment of the SUBRECIPIENT and will be provided to the SUBRECIPIENT. The
Monitoring Plan may include, but not be limited to, the SUBRECIPIENT’S technical progress
compared to the intended milestones and deliverables; the SUBRECIPIENT’S actual
expenditures compared to the approved budget, review of SUBRECIPIENT’S reimbursement
requests including detailed backup documentation, or other subject matter specified by the
STATE.

d. Performance and Final Status

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit all financial, performance and other reports to the STATE no
later than 45 calendar days after the end of the Initial Term if no Extension Terms are exercised,
or the final Extension Term exercised by the STATE, containing an evaluation and review of
SUBRECIPIENT’s performance and the final status of SUBRECIPIENT’s obligations
hereunder.

e. Violations Reporting

SUBRECIPIENT shall disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to the State and the Federal
Awarding Agency, all violations of federal or State criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or
gratuity violations potentially affecting the Federal Award. The STATE or the Federal
Awarding Agency may impose any penalties for noncompliance allowed under 2 C.F.R. Part
180 and 31 U.S.C. 3321, which may include, without limitation, suspension or debarment.

f. Inspection
SUBRECIPIENT shall permit the STATE, the federal government, and any other duly

authorized agent of a governmental agency to audit, inspect, examine, excerpt, copy and
transcribe SUBRECIPIENT Records during the Record Retention Period. SUBRECIPIENT

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 10 of 63



shall make SUBRECIPIENT Records available during normal business hours at
SUBRECIPIENT’s office or place of business, or at other mutually agreed upon times or
locations, upon no fewer than two Business Days’ notice from the STATE, unless the STATE

determines that a shorter period of notice, or no notice, is necessary to protect the interests of
the STATE.

g. Final Audit Report

SUBRECIPIENT shall promptly submit to the STATE a copy of any final audit report of an
audit performed on SUBRECIPIENT’s records that relates to or affects this Agreement or the
Work, whether the audit is conducted by SUBRECIPIENT or a third party. Additionally, if
SUBRECIPIENT is required to perform a single audit under 2 C.F.R. Part 200.501, et seq.,
then SUBRECIPIENT shall submit a copy of the results of that audit to the STATE within the
same timelines as the submission to the federal governinent.

6. Amendments and Assignments

If there is a need to review and/or revise this agreement, the requesting party shall submit a written
amendment to the other party, with the understanding that no amendment to this agreement shall
be valid unless it is agreed and signed by both parties. This agreement shall not be assignable by
either party without written consent of the other, except for assignment resulting from merger,
consolidation, or reorganization of the assigning party.

7. Records, Audits, and Other Grant Compliance Issues

It is understood that this agreement may be utilized as part of the American Rescue Plan Act
(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Relief Fund — ALN 21.027) and therefore both parties agree
to maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, and financial records, adequately
to identify and account for all costs pertaining to this agreement and to ensure full compliance with
the requirements of the above program. The SUBRECIPIENT will comply with all applicable
federal law, regulations, executive orders, grant policies, procedures, and directives. Even though
federal funding may be available, the Federal Government is not a party to this agreement and is
not subject to any obligations or Habilities to the STATE, SUBRECIPIENT, or any other party
pertaining to any matter resulting from the agreement.

a. Work Product Information

(1) The SUBRECIPIENT may receive from the STATE work product information that the
STATE utilizes. The SUBRECIPIENT assumes sole responsibility for verification of
the accuracy of all information and for legal compliance with all rules and instructions
required herein. The SUBRECIPIENT further acknowledges that the STATE makes and
assumes no representations or warranties with regard to the work product information.
Work product information may include, but is not limited to, procurement policies,
procurement forms, contractor insurance requirements, various standard contracts,
specific grant program forms or other relevant documents.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 11 of 63



(2) With respect to the SUBRECIPIENT’S use of any work product transmitted by or
originally created by the 'STATE, the SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges it is the
SUBRECIPIENT’S decision to act accordingly. The SUBRECIPIENT has the option to
either adopt such product as the SUBRECIPIENT’S own or the SUBRECIPIENT may
utilize the following other options available to the SUBRECIPIENT:

i. Modify the STATE’S work product appropriate to the SUBRECIPIENT’S own needs;

i1. Create and adopt the SUBRECIPIENT’S own work product separate from the STATE’S
waork products; or,

iii. Adopt a work product created by other State or Federal agencies when applicable to the
SUBRECIPIENT’S needs.

(3) If the SUBRECIPIENT utilizes any of the STATE’S work products in any way then the
SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that the STATE makes no representations or warranties
with regard to the same.

b. Audit

For audit purposes, all records will be made available by both parties to any authorized
representative of either party and said records will be maintained and retained for five (5)
years after closeout of the grant program. If any confidential information is obtained during
the course of this agreement, both parties agree not to release that information without the
approval of the other party unless instructed otherwise by court order, grantor, auditor,
public information request or as required by law.

¢. Records

The STATE and SUBRECIPIENT agree that all records shall be made available to either
party at no additional charge for such information. The SUBRECIPIENT also agrees to
provide the STATE, the Government Accountability Office (GAO), the Treasury’s Office
of Inspector General (OIG), Pandemic Relief Accountability Committee (PRAC), or any
of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of
the SUBRECIPIENT which are directly pertinent to this agreement for the purposes of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The SUBRECIPIENT agrees
to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy
excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed at no additional charge.

In compliance with grantor and national policy requirements, including the above referenced
federal grant requirements, both parties agree to adhere to the following regulations, where

applicable:

(a) Federally Required Contractual Provisions:

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 12 of 63



(D

2)

()

)

(5)

(6)

(7)

®)

Administrative, Contractual or Legal Remedies are required in all contracts in excess
of the simplified acquisition threshold amount that are funded with federal funds and
are addressed in various sections of this Agreement;

Termination Provision requires all contracts in excess of $10,000 to contain a
provision for termination of the contract for cause or convenience and this provision is
addressed in Section 8 of this Agreement;

For all contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in
41 CFR Part 60-1.3, Equal Employment Opportunity, including Executive Order
11246 which was further amended by Executive Order 11375, which requires equal
opportunity for all persons, without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin,
employed or seeking employment with government contractors or with contractors
performing under federally assisted construction contracts (See Exhibit C);

For all applicable contracts in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers, Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Aect which
prohibits certain unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous working conditions and requires
that wages of every mechanic and laborer to be on the basis of a standard work week of
forty hours with any work in excess of forty hours per week to be compensated at a rate
of not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay (See Exhibit C);

For all contracts that meet the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. Part
401.2(a) and involve a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization
regarding the assignment or performance of experimental, developmental or research
work must comply with the Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or
Agreement contained in 37 C.F.R. Part 401 (See Exhibit C);

All contracts, subcontracts and sub-grants in excess of $150,000 must contain a
provision which requires compliance with all applicable standards, orders or regulations
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act
(See Exhibit C);

Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689 and 2 C.F.R. Part
180) which prohibit the contracting with any party listed on the “System for Award
Management” (SAM), formerly identified as the “Excluded Parties List System”
(EPLS.gov), which identifies all parties that have active exclusions (i.e., suspensions,
debarments) imposed by a federal agency (See Exhibit C);

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Prohibition (31 U.S.C. 1352) prohibits the use of federal funds
to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting in influence anyone with
any federal contract, grant or other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352 and also requires
that Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding $100,000 where federal funds
are used must file the required certification stating that the parties will not and have not
used federal funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempiing to

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 13 of 63



©)

(10)

(11)

(12)

influence anyone with any federal contract, grant, or other award covered by 31 U.S.C.
1352 (See Exhibit C);

For all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 and required by federal grant -
regulations, the Davis Bacon Act which requires payments of wages for laborers and
mechanics at a rate not less than the minimum wages specified in a wage determination

made by the Secretary of Labor and said wage payments will be made at least weekly
(See Exhibit E);

Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or
Equipment wherein 2 C.F.R. Part 200.216 prohibits use of federal grant or loan funds
to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of
any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered
telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei
Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affihate
of such entities);

Domestic Preferences for Procurements for when federal funds are utilized, and
where appropriate and to the extent consistent with other laws and regulations, 2 C.F.R.
Part 200.322 allows a federal award to provide a preference for the purchase,
acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States
(including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured
products); and,

Procurement of Recovered Materials as required by 2 C.F.R. Part 200.323 which
requires procurements in excess of $10,000 to contain the highest percentage of
recovered materials practicable while consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of
competition.

(b)National Policy Requirements:

M

(2)

&)

(4)

Civil Rights Act of 1964, including Title VI, which states that no person shall on the
grounds of race, color or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, be
refused the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program
or activity receiving federal financial assistance;

Age Discrimination Act of 1975 which prohibits discrimination based on age in
programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance;

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, with respect to building construction or
alteration, prohibits discrimination based on a disability defined as a physical or mental
impairment that substantially limits a major life activity;

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, if specifically required by the federal
agency, which prohibits the exclusion of an otherwise qualified individual because of a

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 14 of 63



()

(6)

)

(8)

©)

(10)

(1)

(12)

disability in.programs receiving federal financial assistance including program
accessibility, accessible new construction and alterations, reasonable accommodations
and effective communication with hearing and visually disabled (this 1equnement may
vary with each federal agency);

For all construction or repair contracts, Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act which
requires all contracts and sub-grants for construction or repair to contain a provision that
prohibits a contractor or sub-contractor from inducing, by any means, any person
employed in the construction, completion or repairs of public work to give up any part
of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled;

Energy Policy and Conservation Act which require the confractors to comply with the
mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in
the state energy conservation plan;

Reporting Provision requires that all contracts should include a requirement that the
SUBRECIPIENT assist the STATE, when applicable, with any awarding agency
requirements and regulations pertaining to reporting;

Record Retention Provision requires that any contract executed must include a
provision that all required records will be maintained by the contractor/firm for a
minimum period of three years after the STATE formally closes out each federal
program (STATE and SUBRECIPIENT grant managers should verify the three-year
record retention period with each respective grant agency to ensure that a longer period
is not required);

2013 National Defense Authorization Act (41 United States Code (U.S.C.) 4712,
Pilot Program for Enhancement of Recipient and Subrecipient Employee
Whistleblower Protection) subjects any subawards and contracts over the federal
simplified acquisition threshold to the provisions of the above act regarding rights and
remedies for employee whistleblower protections;

National Ilood Insurance Act of 1968 and Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973
which require recipients of federal grants that are acquiring, constructing or repairing
property in a special flood hazard area, and with an estimated cost in excess of $10,000,
to purchase flood insurance;

Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 which protects components or potential
components of the national wild and scenic rivers system,;

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act which requires proper handling and
disposal of solid waste;

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 15 of 63



(13) Toxic Substance Control Act which places restrictions on chemicals that pose
unreasonable risks, such as surfaces that could be covered with lead-based paint;

(14) Federal Agency Seal(s), Logos, Crests, or Reproductions of Flags or Likeness of
Federal Agency Officials are prohibited from being utilized without specific federal
agency pre-approval;

(15) TFalse Claims Act and 32 U.S.C. Chapter 38 (Administrative Remedies) which
prohibits the submission of false or fraudulent claims for payment to the federal

government identifying administrative remedies for false claims and statements made
which the CONTRACTOR herein acknowledges; and,

(16) Section 603 Title VI of the Social Security Act which establishes the Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund and identifies eligible and ineligible uses for the
Fund monies (See Exhibit E).

In compliance with Section 7(a)(7) above, the SUBRECIPIENT agrees to verify that all
contractors or subcontractors employed are not parties listed as active exclusions (i.e., suspensions,
debarments) on the “System for Award Management” (SAM) for parties debarred, suspended or
otherwise excluded from contracting on any projects involving federal funds. SUBRECIPIENT
agrees to require the contractor to provide immediate notice, but in no case later than three (3)
business days, after being notified that the contractor, or any subcontractor, has been added to the
SAM or otherwise been debarred from contracting on any projects involving federal funds.

In no event shall the SUBRECIPIENT allow any contractor to utilize a subcontractor at any time
during the duration of this agreement who has been debarred from contracting on any projects
involving federal funds. Ifthe contractor is prohibited in any way from contracting on any projects
involving federal funds at any time during the duration of this agreement, then both the
SUBRECIPIENT and STATE must be notified. STATLE may, at its sole discretion, immediately
implement the termination provisions discussed in Section 12 below if the SUBRECIPIENT
decides to continue with the project using a “debarred” or “active exclusion” contractor or
subcontractor.

. Liability and Indemnity

. Liability

This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the STATE and the SUBRECIPIENT and does not
confer any rights upon any other third parties. All rights by and between the STATE and the
SUBRECIPIENT are limited to the actions outlined in the applicable local, state and federal laws,
regulations and policies,

. Indemnity

The SUBRECIPIENT will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the STATE, including the

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 16 of 63



STATE’S employees and agents, from and against any and all claims or liabilities arising from the
fault of the SUBRECIPIENT, its employees or agents in carrying out the SUB RECIPIENT’S
duties and obligations under the terms of this agreement. The STATE will indemnify, defend, and
hold harmiess the SUBRECIPIENT, including the SUBRECIPIENT’S employees and agents,
from and against any and all claims or liabilities arising from the fault of the STATE, its employees
or agents in carrying out the STATE’S duties and obligations under the terms of this agreement,
Notwithstanding the forgoing, in no event shall SUBRECIPIENT be liable for, and shall not
indenmmify, defend or hold harmless STATE for, any loss or liability resulting from the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of STATE. This section will survive the termination of this
agreement. In the event that either party takes any action to enforce this mutual indemnity
provision, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees and cosfs
arising as a result thereof.

. Imsurance

SUBRECIPIENT shall obtain and maintain, and ensure that each Subcontractor shall obtain and
maintain, insurance as specified in this section at all times during the term of this Agreement. All
insurance policies required by this Agreement that are not provided through self-insurance shall
be issued by insurance companies as approved by the STATE.
A. Workers’ Compensation
Workers’ compensation insurance as required by state statute, and employers’ liability
insurance covering all SUBRECIPIENT or Subcontractor employees acting within the
course and scope of their employment.
B. General Liability
Commercial general liability insurance covering premises operations, fire damage,
independent contractors, products and completed operations, blanket contractual liability,
personal injury, and advertising liability with minimum limits as follows:
i. $1,000,000 each occurrence;
i, $1,000,000 general aggregate;
iti.  $1,000,000 products and completed operations aggregate; and
iv.  $50,000 any one fire.
C. Automobile Liability

Automobile liability insurance covering any auto (including owned, hired and non-owned
autos) with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident combined single limit.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 17 of 63



D. Cyber/Network Security and Privacy Liability

Liability insurance covering civil, regulatory, and statutory damages, contractual damages,
data breach management exposure, and any loss of income or extra expense as a result of
actual or alleged breach, violation, or infringement of right to privacy, consumer data
protection law, confidentiality or other legal protection for personal information, as well as
State Confidential Information with minimum limits as follows:

v.  $1,000,000 each occurrence; and
vi.  $2,000,000 general aggregate.

E. Professional Liability Insurance

Professional liability insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission or any
negligent act with minimum limits as follows:

vii.  $1,000,000 each occurrence; and
viii. $1,000,000 general aggregate.

F. Crime Insurance
Crime insurance including employee dishonesty coverage with minimum limits as follows:

ix. $1,000,000 each occurrence; and
x.  $1,000,000 general aggregate.

B. Additionat Insured

The STATE shall be named as additional insured on all commercial general liability
policies (leases and construction Agreements require additional insured coverage for
completed operations) required of SUBRECIPIENT and Subcontractors. This means
the certificate of insurance shall explicitly state: “The State of New Mexico is an
additional insured.”

C. Primacy of Coverage
Coverage required of SUBRECIPIENT and each Subcontractor shall be primary and
noncontributory over any insurance or self-insurance program carried by
SUBRECIPIENT or the STATE.

D. Cancellation
All commercial insurance policies shall include provisions preventing cancellation or

- non-renewal, except for cancellation based on non-payment of premiums, without at
least 30 days prior notice to SUBRECIPIENT.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 18 of 63



E.  Subrogation Waiver

All commercial insurance policies secured or maintained by SUBRECIPIENT or ifs
Subcontractors in relation to this Agreement shall include clauses stating that each
carrier shall waive all rights of recovery under subrogation or otherwise against
SUBRECIPIENT or the STATE, its agencies, institutions, organizations, officers,
agents, employees, and volunteers.

F. Certificates

For each commercial insurance plan provided by SUBRECIPIENT under this
Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall provide to the STATE certificates evidencing
SUBRECIPIENT’s insurance coverage required in this Agreement within seven (7)
Business Days following the Effective Date. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide to the
STATE certificates evidencing Subcontractor insurance coverage required under this
Agreement within seven Business Days following the Effective Date, except that, if
SUBRECIPIENT’s Subcontractor is not in effect as of the Effective Date,
SUBRECIPIENT shall provide to the STATE certificates showing Subcontractor
insurance coverage required under this Agreement within seven Business Days
following SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of the Subcontractor. No later than fifteen (15)
days before the expiration date of SUBRECIPIENT s or any Subcontractor’s coverage,
SUBRECIPIENT shall deliver to the STATE certificates of insurance evidencing
renewals of coverage. At any other time during the term of this Agreement, upon
request by the STATE, SUBRECIPIENT shall, within seven (7) Business Days
following the request by the STATE, supply to the STATE evidence satisfactory to the
STATE of compliance with the provisions of this section.
10. Breach

In the event of a Breach of Agreement, the aggrieved Party shall give written notice of Breach of
Agreement to the other Party. If the notified Party does not cure the breach, at its sole expense,
within 30 days after the delivery of written notice, the Party may exercise any of the remedies as
described in §11 for that Party. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
the STATE, in its discretion, need not provide notice or a cure period and may immediately
terminate this Agreement in whole or in part or institute any other remedy in this Agreement in
order to protect the public interest of the STATE.

11. Remedies
a. STATE’s Remedies

If SUBRECIPIENT is in breach under any provision of this Agreement and fails to cure such
breach, the STATE, following the notice and cure period set forth in §10, shall have all of the
remedies listed in this section in addition to all other remedies set forth in this Agreement or at
law. The STATE may exercise any or all of the remedies available to i, in its discretion,
concurrently or consecutively.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 19 of 63



i

ii.

Termination for Breach

In the event of SUBRECIPIENT’s uncured breach, the STATE may terminate this entire
Agreement or any part of this Agreement. Additionally, if SUBRECIPIENT fails to comply
with any terms of the Federal Award, then the STATE may, in its discretion or at the
direction of a Federal Awarding Agency, terminate this entire Agreement or any part of this
Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT shall continue performance of this Agreement to the extent
not terminated, if any.

1. Obligations and Rights

To the extent specified in any termination notice, SUBRECIPIENT shall not incur further
obligations or render further performance past the effective date of such notice, and shall
terminate outstanding orders and Subcontractors with third parties. However,
SUBRECIPIENT shall complete and deliver to the STATE all Work not cancelled by the
termination notice, and may incur obligations as necessary to do so within this Agreement’s
terms. At the request of the STATE, SUBRECIPIENT shall assign to the STATE all of
SUBRECIPIENT’s rights, title, and interest in and to such terminated orders or
Subcontractors. Upon termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable and
necessary action to protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT
but in which the STATE has an interest. At the STATE’s request, SUBRECIPIENT shall
return materials owned by the STATE in SUBRECIPIENTs possession at the time of any
termination. SUBRECIPIENT shall deliver all completed Work Product and all Work
Product that was in the process of completion to the STATE at the STATE’s request.

2. Payments

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the STATE shall only pay SUBRECIPIENT for
accepted Work received as of the date of termination. If, after termination by the STATE,
the STATE agrees that SUBRECIPIENT was not in breach or that SUBRECIPIENT s
action or inaction was excusable.

3. Damages and Withholding

Notwithstanding any other remedial action by the STATE, SUBRECIPIENT shall remain
liable to the STATE for any damages sustained by the STATE in connection with any
breach by SUBRECIPIENT, and the STATE may withhold payment to SUBRECIPIENT
for the purpose of mitigating the STATE’s damages until such time as the exact amount of
damages due to the STATE from SUBRECIPIENT is determined. The STATE may
withhold any amount that may be due SUBRECIPIENT as the STATE deems necessary to
protect the STATE against loss including, without limitation, loss as a result of outstanding
liens and excess costs incurred by the STATE in procuring from third parties replacement
Work as cover.

Remedies Not Involving Termination

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 20 of 63



The STATE, in its discretion, may exercise one or more of the following additional
remedies:

1. Suspend Performance

Suspend SUBRECIPIENT s performance with respect to all or any portion of the Work
pending corrective action as specified by the STATE without entitling SUBRECIPIENT
to an adjustment in price or cost or an adjustment in the performance schedule.
SUBRECIPIENT shall promptly cease performing Work and incurring costs in accordance
with the STATE’s directive, and the STATE shall not be liable for costs incurred by
SUBRECIPIENT after the suspension of performance.

2. Withhold Payment
Withhold payment to SUBRECIPIENT until SUBRECIPIENT corrects its Work.

3. Deny Payment

Deny payment for Work not performed, or that due to SUBRECIPIENT’s actions or
inactions, cannot be performed or if they were performed are reasonably of no value to the
state; provided, that any denial of payment shall be equal to the value of the obligations not
performed.

4. Removal

Demand immediate removal of any of SUBRECIPIENT’s employees, agents, or
Subcontractors from the Work whom the STATE deems incompetent, careless,
insubordinate, unsuitable, or otherwise unacceptable or whose continued relation to this
Agreement is deemed by the STATE to be contrary to the public interest or the STATE’s
best interest.

5. Intellectual Property

If any Work infringes, or if the STATE in its sole discretion determines that any Work is
likely to infringe, a patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other intellectual property
right, SUBRECIPIENT shall, as approved by the STATE (i) secure that right to use such
Work for the STATE and SUBRECIPIENT; (ii) replace the Work with noninfringing Work
or modify the Work so that it becomes noninfringing; or, (iii) remove any infringing Work
and refund the amount paid for such Work to the STATE.

b. SUBRECIPIENT’s Remedies

If the STATE is in breach of any provision of this Agreement and does not cure such breach,
SUBRECIPIENT, following the notice and cure period in §10 and the dispute resolution process
in §12, shall have all remedies available at law and equity.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 21 of 63



12. Termination of Agreement and Dispute Resolution

While both parties agree to negotiate all contractual disputes in good faith, the STATE reserves
the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon written notice of termination or if the
SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with the terms of this Agreement, the grant itself or any
applicable law and regulation. All questioned costs are the sole responsibility of the
SUBRECIPIENT.

If the parties are unable to independently and satisfactorily resolve any disagreement, then both
parties agree that any contractual disagreement will be resolved under the jurisdiction of the State
of New Mexico. In the event that court action is necessary then the parties agree that whoever
prevails in the litigation is entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs as fixed by the Court.

13. Conflicts of Interest
a. Actual Conflicts of Interest

SUBRECIPIENT shall not engage in any business or activities, or maintain any
relationships, that conflict in any way with the full performance of the obligations of
SUBRECIPIENT under this Agreement. Such a conflict of interest would arise when a
SUBRECIPIENT or Subcontractor’s employee, officer or agent were to offer or provide
any tangible personal benefit to an employee of the STATE, or any member of his or her
immediate family or his or her partner, related to the award of, entry into or management
or oversight of this Agreement.

b. Apparent Conflicts of Interest

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that, with respect to this Agreement, even the appearance
of a conflict of interest shall be harmful to the STATE’s interests. Absent the STATE’s
prior written approval, SUBRECIPIENT shall refrain from any practices, activities or
relationships that reasonably appear to be in conflict with the full performance of
SUBRECIPIENT’s obligations under this Agreement.

¢. Disclosure to the State

If a conflict or the appearance of a conflict arises, or if SUBRECIPIENT is uncertain
whether a conflict or the appearance of a conflict has arisen, SUBRECIPIENT shall
submit to the STATE a disclosure statement setting forth the relevant details for the
STATE’s consideration. Failure to promptly submit a disclosure statement or to follow
the STATE’s direction in regard to the actual or apparent conflict constitutes a breach of
this Agreement.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 22 of 63



14. Notices and Representatives

Each individual identified as a Principal Representative on the Cover Page for this Agreement
shall be the principal representative of the designating Party. All notices required or permitted to
be given under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be delivered:

a. by hand with receipt required;

b. by certified or registered mail to such Party’s principal representative at the address set forth
below; or

c. as an email with read receipt requested to the principal representative at the email address, if
any, set forth on the Cover Page for this Agreement.

If a Party delivers a notice to another through email and the email is undeliverable, then, unless
the Party has been provided with an alternate email contact, the Party delivering the notice shall
deliver the notice by hand with receipt required or by certified or registered mail to such Party’s
principal representative at the address set forth on the Cover Page for this Agreement. Either Party
may change its principal representative or principal representative contact information or may
designate specific other individuals to receive certain types of notices in addition to or in lieu of a
principal representative, by notice submitted in accordance with this section without a formal
amendment to this Agreement. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, notices shall be
effective upon delivery of the written notice.

15. Rights in Work Product and Other Information
a. Work Product
i.  Copyrights

To the extent that the Work Product (or any portion of the Work Product) would not be
considered works made for hire under applicable law, SUBRECIPIENT hereby assigns to
the STATE, the entire right, title, and interest in and to copyrights in all Work Product and
all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product; all copyright
applications, registrations, extensions, or renewals relating to all Work Product and all
works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product; and all moral rights
or similar rights with respect to the Work Product throughout the world. To the extent that
SUBRECIPIENT cannot make any of the assignments required by this section,
SUBRECIPIENT hereby grants to the STATE a perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free license
to use, modify, copy, publish, display, perform, transfer, distribute, sell, and create
derivative works of the Work Product and all works based upon, derived from, or
incorporating the Work Product by all means and methods and in any format now known
or invented in the future. The STATE may assign and license its rights under this license.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 23 of 63



ii,  Patents

In addition, SUBRECIPIENT grants to the STATE (and to recipients of Work Product
distributed by or on behalf of the STATE) a perpetual, worldwide, no-charge, royalty-iree,
irrevocable patent license to make, have made, use, distribute, sell, offer for sale, import,
transfer, and otherwise utilize, operate, modify and propagate the contents of the Work
Product. Such license applies only to those patent claims licensable by SUBRECIPIENT
that are necessarily infringed by the Work Product alone, or by the combination of the
Work Product with anything else used by the STATE.

iii.  Assignments and Assistance

Whether or not SUBRECIPIENT is under Agreement with the STATE at the time,
SUBRECIPIENT shall execute applications, assignments, and other documents, and shall
render all other reasonable assistance requested by the STATE, to enable the STATE to
secure patents, copyrights, licenses and other intellectual property rights related to the
Work Product. The Parties intend the Work Product to be works made for hire.
SUBRECIPIENT assigns to the STATE and its successors and assigns, the entire right,
title, and interest in and to all causes of action, either in law or in equity, for past, present,
or future infringement of intellectnal property rights related to the Work Product and all
works based on, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product,

b. Exclusive Property of the STATE

Except to the extent specifically provided elsewhere in this Agreement, any pre-existing
STATE Records, STATE software, research, reports, studies, photographs, negatives or other
documents, drawings, models, materials, data and information shall be the exclusive property
of the STATE (collectively, “STATE Materials”). SUBRECIPIENT shall not use, willingly
allow, cause or permit Work Product or STATE Materials to be used for any purpose other
than the performance of SUBRECIPIENT’s obligations in this Agreement without the prior
written consent of the STATE. Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
SUBRECIPIENT shall provide all Work Product and STATE Materials to the STATE in a
form and manner as directed by the STATE.

¢. Exclusive Property of SUBRECIPIENT

SUBRECTPIENT retains the exclusive rights, title, and ownership to any and all pre-existing
materials owned or licensed to SUBRECIPIENT including, but not limited to, all pre-existing
software, licensed products, associated source code, machine code, text images, audio and/or
video, and third-party materials, delivered by SUBRECIPIENT under this Agreement, whether
incorporated in a Deliverable or necessary to wuse a Deliverable (collectively,
“SUBRECIPIENT Property””). SUBRECIPIENT Property shall be licensed to the STATE as
set forth in this Agreement or a STATE approved license agreement: (i) entered into as exhibits
to this Agreement, (ii) obtained by the STATE from the applicable third-party vendor, or (iif)
in the case of open source software, the license terms set forth in the applicable open source
license agreement,

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 24 of 63



16. General Provisions

a,

Assignment

SUBRECIPIENT’s rights and obligations under this Agreement are personal and may not be
transferred or assigned without the prior, written consent of the STATE. Any attempt at
assignment or transfer without such consent shall be void. Any assignment or transfer of
SUBRECIPIENT’s rights and obligations approved by the STATE shall be subject to the
provisions of this Agreement.

Subcontractors

SUBRECIPIENT shall not enter into any subgrant or Subcontract in connection with its
obligations under this Agreement without the prior, written approval of the STATE.
SUBRECIPIENT shall submit to the STATE a copy of each such subgrant or Subcontract upon
request by the STATE. All subgrants and Subcontracts entered into by SUBRECIPIENT in
connection with this Agreement shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and
regulations, shall provide that they are governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico, and
shall be subject to all provisions of this Agreement. If the entity with whom SUBRECIPIENT
enters into a Subcontract or subgrant would also be considered a SUBRECIPIENT, then the
Subcontract or subgrant entered into by SUBRECIPIENT shall also contain provisions
permifting both SUBRECIPIENT and the STATE to perform all monitoring of that
Subcontract in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

Binding Effect

Except as otherwise provided, all provisions of this Agreement, including the benefits and
burdens, shall extend to and be binding upon the Parties’ respective successors and assigns.

Authority

Each Party represents and wairants to the other that the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and the performance of such Party’s obligations have been duly authorized.

Captions and References

The captions and headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, and shall
not be used to interpret, define, or limit its provisions. All references in this Agreement to
sections (whether spelled out or using the § symbol), subsections, exhibits or other
attachments, are references to sections, subsections, exhibits or other attachments contained
herein or incorporated as a part hereof, unless otherwise noted.

Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in multiple, identical, original counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the
same agreement.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 25 of 63



h.

Entire Understanding

This Agreement represents the complete integration of all understandings between the Parties
related to the Work, and all prior representations and understandings related to the Work, oral
or written, are merged into this Agreement. Prior or contemporaneous additions, deletions, or

other changes to this Agreement shall not have any force or effect whatsoever, unless embodied
herein.

Digital Signatures

If any signatory signs this agreement using a digital signature in accordance with the STATE
Grant and Purchase Order Policies regarding the use of digital signatures issued under the State
Fiscal Rules, then any agreement or consent to use digital signatures within the electronic
system through which that signatory signed shall be incorporated into this Agreement by
reference.

Modification

Except as otherwise provided i this Agreement, any modification to this Agreement shall only
be effective if agreed to in a formal amendment to this Agreement, properly executed and
approved in accordance with applicable New Mexico law and State Fiscal Rules. Modifications
permitted under this Agreement, other than Agreement amendments, shall conform to the
policies issued by the STATE,

Statutes, Regulations, Fiscal Rules, and Other Authority

Any reference in this Agreement to a statute, regulation, fiscal policy or other authority shall
be interpreted to refer to such authority then current, as may have been changed or amended
since the Effective Date of this Agreement.

External Terms and Conditions

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the STATE shall not be subject to any
provision included in any terms, conditions, or agreements appearing on SUBRECIPIENT’s
or a Subcontractor’s website or any provision incorporated into any click-through or online
agreements related to the Work unless that provision is specifically referenced in this
Agreement.

Severability

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full
force and effect, provided that the Parties can continue to perform their obligations under this
Agreement in accordance with the intent of this Agreement.

m. Survival of Certain Agreement Terms

Subrecipient Agreement — Cily of Hobbs
Page 26 of 63



Any provision of this Agreement that imposes an obligation on a Party after termination or
expiration of this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement and
shall be enforceable by the other Party.

n. Third Party Beneficiaries

Except for the Parties’ respective successors and assigns described in this Agreement, this
Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or
entity other than the Parties. Enforcement of this Agreement and all rights and obligations
hereunder are reserved solely to the Parties. Any services or benefits which third parties receive
as a result of this Agreement are incidental to this Agreement, and do not create any rights for
such third parties.

0. Waiver

A Party’s failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this Agreement,
whether explicit or by lack of enforcement, shall not operate as a waiver, nor shall any single
or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of
such right, power, or privilege.

p. Standard and Manner of Performance

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the
highest standards of care, skill and diligence in SUBRECIPIENT’s industry, trade, or
profession.

q. Licenses, Permits, and Other Authorizations

SUBRECIPIENT shall secure, prior to the Effective Date, and maintain at all times during the
term of this Agreement, at its sole expense, all licenses, certifications, permits, and other
authorizations required to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and shall ensure that
all employees, agents and Subcontractors secure and maintain at all times during the term of
their employment, agency or Subcontractor, all license, certifications, permits and other
authorizations required to perform their obligations in relation to this Agreement.

r. Compliance with State and Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders
SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all State and Federal law, regulations, executive orders,

State and Federal Awarding Agency policies, procedures, directives, and reporting
requirements at all times during the term of this Grant.

17. Severability, Entire Agreement and Captions

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State New
Mexico. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, void, or unenforceable under any law
or regulation or by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provision will be deemed amended in a

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 27 of 63



manner which renders it valid, or if it cannot be so amended, it will be deemed to be deleted. Such
amendment or deletion will not affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. This
Agreement, any CSLRF Grant Program documentation, any attached documents, and any
referenced documents represent the entire agreement between the STATE and the -
SUBRECIPIENT and supersede all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either
written or oral. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and other documents, the terms
of this Agreement shall control.

Each paragraph of this Agreement has been supplied with a caption to serve only as a guide to the
contents. The caption does not control the meaning of any paragraph or in any way determine its
mterpretation,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the STATE and the SUBRECIPIENT do hereby execute this
Agreement as of the date of signature by the STATE below.

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT has been approved by:

City of Hobbs:

Manny Gomez, City Manager Date

NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND
ADMINISTRATION:

Waesley Billingsley, Local Government Division Date
Director

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 28 of 63



EXHIBIT A

f‘EDERAL AWARD INFORMATION
In accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), 2 CFR Section 200.332 requires that
the following information be provided to any Subrecipient of a federal award:
Federal Award Identification: Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery FFunds
Subrecipient Name: City of Hobbs
Subrecipient Unique Identification (ID) Number: TOJWEFF1SWNW3
Federal Award Identification Number: Coronavirus State and FLocal Fiscal Recovery Funds
Subaward Period of Performance (Start and End Date): July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024
Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to Subrecipient: $600,000.00

Federal Award Project Description (in accordance with Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA): Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Name of Federal Awarding Agency: U.S. Department of the Treasury
Name of Pass-Through Entity and Contact Information:

Department of Finance and Administration

407 Galisteo Street

Santa Fe, NM 87501

(505) 827-4985

Assistance Listing Number (ALN): 21.027

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 29 of 63



EXHIBIT B
SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET

SUBRECIPIENT will use CSLFRF funds to provide full performance of all tasks listed below.
CSLFRF funds will be requested monthly according to the Request for Payment procedures
specified in this Agreement. All funds shall be obligated and expended by SUBRECIPIENT in
accordance with this Agreement. The period of performance to execute work and/or incur costs
against the $600,000.00 subaward funding for this project is July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2024, unless
extended by the New Mexico legislature. Monthly reports shall be provided to the STATE
showing costs incurred to the $600,000.00 subaward funding. -

To plan and design the multi-general family aquatics center in Hobbs, in Lea
County.

L Sionificant Changes to Scope of Work

The SUB RECIPIENT is required to notify and seek written approval of the STATE in advance
of any proposed material changes to the scope of work under this Subaward (i.e., significant
changes to the statement of project objectives or the schedule of technical milestones and
deliverables). Such changes may require the STATE to re-evaluate the eligibility of the work
under this Subaward.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 30 of 63



EXHIBIT C

FEDERAL PROVISIONS

1. APPLICABILITY OF PROVISIONS.

1.1

1.2,

1.3.

1.4.

The Grant to which these Federal Provisions are attached has been funded, in whole or in
part, with an Award of Federal funds. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of
these Federal Provisions, the Special Provisions, the body of the Grant, or any attachments
or exhibits incorporated into and made a part of the Grant, the provisions of these Federal
Provisions shall control.

The State of New Mexico is accountable to Treasury for oversight of their subrecipients,
including ensuring their subrecipients comply with the CSFRF statute, CSFRF Award
Terms and Conditions, Treasury’s Final Rule, and reporting requirements, as applicable.

Additionally, any subrecipient that issues a subaward to another entity (2% tier
subrecipient), must hold the 2™ tier subrecipient accountable to these provisions and
adhere to reporting requirements.

These Federal Provisions are subject to the Award as defined in §2 of these Federal
Provisions, as may be revised pursuant to ongoing guidance from the relevant Federal or
State of New Mexico agency or institutions of higher education.

DEFINITIONS.
2.1.

For the purposes of these Federal Provisions, the following terms shall have the
meanings ascribed to them below.

2.1.1. “Award” means an award of Federal financial assistance, and the Grant setting forth
the terms and conditions of that financial assistance, that a non-Federal Entity
receives or administers.

2.1.2. “Entity” means:
2.1.2.1. aNon-Federal Entity;
2.1.2.2. a foreign public entity;
2.1.2.3. a foreign organization;
2.1.2.4. anon-profit organization;
2.1.2.5. adomestic for-profit organization (for 2 CFR parts 25 and 170 only);
2.1.2.6. a foreign non-profit organization (only for 2 CFR part 170) only);

2.1.2.7.  aFederal agency, but only as a Subrecipient under an Award or Subaward
to a non-Federal entity (or 2 CFR 200.1); or

2.1.2.8. a foreign for-profit organization (for 2 CFR part 170 only).

2.1.3. “Executive” means an officer, managing partner or any other employee in a
management position.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 31 of 63



2.1.4.

2:1.6.
21T,

219,

2.1

2.1
2.1

2:1.10.

2.1.11,

2152

2L15

2.1.14.

“Expenditure Category (EC)” means the category of eligible uses as defined by the
US Department of Treasury in “Appendix 1 of the Compliance and Reporting
Guidance, State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds” report available at
WWWw.treasury.gov.

“Federal Awarding Agency” means a Federal agency providing a Federal Award
to a Recipient as described in 2 CFR 200.1

“Grant” means the Grant to which these Federal Provisions are attached.

“Grantee” means the state identified as such in the Grant to which these Federal
Provisions are attached.

“Non-Federal Entity means a State, local government, Indian tribe, institution of
higher education, or nonprofit organization that carries out a Federal Award as a
Recipient or a Subrecipient.

“Nonprofit Organization” means any corporation, trust, association, cooperative, or
other organization, not including IHEs, that:

9.1. Is operated primarily for scientific, educational, service, charitable, or

similar purposes in the public interest;

9.2, Is not organized primarily for profit; and

9.3, Uses net proceeds to maintain, improve, or expand the operations of the

organization.

“OMB” means the Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and
Budget.

“Pass-through Entity” means a non-Federal Entity that provides a Subaward to a
Subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal program.

“Prime Recipient” means the New Mexico State agency or institution of higher
education identified as the Grantor in the Grant to which these Federal Provisions
are attached.

“Subaward” means an award by a Prime Recipient to a Subrecipient funded in
whole or in part by a Federal Award. The terms and conditions of the Federal
Award flow down to the Subaward unless the terms and conditions of the Federal
Award specifically indicate otherwise in accordance with 2 CFR 200.101. The term
does not include payments to a Contractor or payments to an individual that is a
beneficiary of a Federal program.

“Subrecipient” or “Subgrantee” means a non-Federal Entity (or a Federal agency
under an Award or Subaward to a non-Federal Entity) receiving Federal funds
through a Prime Recipient to support the performance of the Federal project or
program for which the Federal funds were awarded. A Subrecipient is subject to
the terms and conditions of the Federal Award to the Prime Recipient, including
program compliance requirements. The term does not include an individual who is
a beneficiary of a federal program.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs’
Page 32 of 63



2.1. 15 “System for Award Management (SAM)” means the Federal repository into which
an Entity must enter the information required under the Transparency Act, which
- may be found at http://www.sam.gov. “Total Compensation” means the cash and
- noncash dollar value earned by an Executive during the Prime Recipient’s or
Subrecipient’s preceding fiscal year (see 48 CFR 52.204-10, as prescribed in 48

CFR 4.1403(a)) and includes the following:

2.1.15.1. Salary and bonus;

2.1.15.2.  Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights, using the
dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with
respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2005) (FAS 123R), Shared Based
Payments;

2.1.15.3. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans, not including group
life, health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not
discriminate in favor of Executives and are available generally to all salaried
employees;

2.1.15.4. Change in present value of defined benefit and actuarial pension plans;
2.1.15.5. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified;

2.1.15.6. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other compensation
(e.g., severance, termination payments, value of life insurance paid on
behalf of the employee, perquisites or property) for the Executive exceeds
$10,000.

2.1.16. “Transparency Act” means the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
Act of 2006 (Public Law 109-282), as amended by §6202 of Public Law 110-252.

2.1.17. “Uniform Guidance” means the Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards. The terms and conditions of the Uniform Guidance flow down to Awards
to Subrecipients unless the Uniform Guidance or the terms and conditions of the
Federal Award specifically indicate otherwise.

2.1.18. “Unique Entity ID Number” means the twelve-character alphanumeric ID assigned
to an entity by SAM.gov to uniquely identify a business entity. Information on
UEIs can be found at: sam.gov/content/duns-uei

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 33 of 63



3

COMPLIANCE,

3.1

3.2.

Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Transparency Act and
the regulations issued pursuant thereto, all applicable provisions of the Uniform
Guidance, and all applicable Federal Laws and regulations required by this Federal
Award, Any revisions to such provisions or regulations shall automatically become a
part of these Federal Provisions, without the necessity of either party executing any
further instrument. The State of New Mexico, at its discretion, may provide written
notification to Subrecipient of such revisions, but such notice shall not be a condition
precedent to the effectiveness of such revisions.

Per US Treasury Final Award requirements, State programs or services must not
mcelude terms or conditions that undermine efforts to stop COVID-19 or discourage
compliance with recommendations and CDC guidelines,

SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT {SAM) AND UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER (UEID
REQUIREMENTS.

4.1.

SAM. Subrecipient shall maintain the currency of its information in SAM until the
Subrecipient submits the final financial report required under the Award or receives
final payment, whichever is later, Subrecipient shall review and update SAM
information at least annually after the initial registration, and more frequently if
required by changes in its information.

42. UEIL Subrecipient shall provide its UEI number to its State, and shall update
Subrecipient’s information in SAM at least annually after the initial registration, and
more frequently if required by changes in Subrecipient’s information.

TOTAL COMPENSATION.

5.1.  Subrecipient shall include Total Compensation in SAM for each of its five most highly

compensated Executives for the preceding fiscal year if:

5.1.1. The total Federal funding authorized to date under the Award is $30,000 or more;

and

5.1.2. Inthe preceding fiscal year, Subrecipient received:

5.1.2.1,  80% or more of its annual gross revenues from Federal procurement
Agreements and Subcontractors and/or Federal financial assistance Awards
or Subawards subject to the Transparency Act; and

5.1.2.2.  $30,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement
Agreements and Subcontractors and/or Federal financial assistance Awards
or Subawards subject to the Transparency Act; and

5.1.23. 5123 The public does not have access to mnformation about the
compensation of such Executives through periodic reports filed under
section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.
78m(a), 780(d) or § 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 34 of 63



6. REPORTING.

6.1.  Subrecipient shall report data elements to SAM and to the State as required in this
Exhibit. No direct payment shall be made to Subrecipient for providing any reports
required under these Federal Provisions and the cost of producing such reports shall be
inchuded in the Grant price. The reporting requirements in this Exhibit are based on
guidance from the OMB, and as such are subject to change at any time by OMB. Any
such changes shall be automatically incorporated into this Grant and shall become part
of Subrecipient’s obligations under this Grant,

7. EFFECTIVE DATE AND DOLLAR THRESHOLD FOR FEDERAL REPORTING.

7.1.  Reporting requirements in §8 below apply to new Awards as of October 1, 2010, if the
initial award is $30,000 or more. If the initial Award is below $30,000 but subsequent
Award modifications result in a total Award of $30,000 or more, the Award is subject
to the reporting requirements as of the date the Award exceeds $30,000. If the initial
Award is $30,000 or more, but funding is subsequently de-obligated such that the total
award amount falls below $30,000, the Award shall continue to be subject to the
reporting requirements. If the total award is below $30,000 no reporting required; if
more than $30,000 and less than $50,000 then FFATA reporting is required; and,
$50,000 and above CSERF reporting is required.

- 7.2. The procurement standards in §9 below are applicable to new Awards made by the
State as of December 26, 2015. The standards set forth in §11 below are applicable to
audits of fiscal years beginning on or after December 26, 2014.

8. SUBRECIPIENT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.
8.1.  Subrecipient shall report as set forth below.

8.1.1. Subrecipient shall use the CSFRF Subrecipient Quarterly Report Workbook as
referenced in Exhibit F to report to the State Agency within ten (10) days following each
quarter ended September, December, March and June. Additional information on specific
requirements are detailed in the CSFRF Subrecipient Quarterly Report Workbooks and
"Compliance and Reporting Guidance, State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds" report
available at www.ireasury.gov.

EC 1 — Public Health
All Public Health Projects
a) Description of structure and objectives
b) Description of relation to COVID-19
c) Identification of impacted and/or disproportionately impacted communities
d) Capital Expenditures
i. Presence of capital expenditure in project
ii.  Total projected capital expenditure
iii.  Type of capital expenditure
iv.  Written justification
v.  Labor reporting

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 35 of 63



COVID-19 Interventions and Mental Health (1.4, 1.1%, 1.12, 1.13)
a) Amount of total project used for evidence-based programs
b) Evaluation plan description
COVID-19 Small Business Economic Assistance (1.8)
a)  Number of small businesses served
COVID-19 Assistance to Non-Profits {1.9)
a)  Number of non-profits served
COVID-19 Aid to Travel, Tourism, and Hospitality or Other Impacted Industries (1.10)
a) Sector of employer
b) Purpose of funds
EC 2 -- Negative Economic Impacts
All Negative Economic Impacts Projects
a) Description of project structure and objectives
b) Description of project’s response to COVID-19
¢) Identification of impacted and/or disproportionately impacted communities
d) Amount of total project used for evidence-based programs and description of
evaluation plan (nof required for 2.5, 2.8, 2.21-2.24, 2.27-2.29, 2.31, 2.34-2.36)
e) Number of workers enrolled in sectoral job training programs
f)  Number of workers completing sectoral job training programs
g) Number of people participating in summer youth employment programs
h) Capital Expenditures
i. Presence of capital expenditure in project

ii. Total projected capital expenditure
iii. Type of capital expenditure
iv. Written justification
v. Labor reporting
Household Assistance (2.1-2.8)
a) Number of households served
b) Number of people or households receiving eviction prevention services (2.2 & 2.5
only) (Federal guidance may change this requirement in July 2022)
¢) Number of affordable housing units preserved or developed (2.2 & 2.5 only) (Federal
guidance may change this regquirement in July 2022)
Healthy Childhood Environments (2.11-2.13)
a) Number of children served by childcare and early learning (Federal guidance may change
this requirement in July 2022)
b) Number of families served by home visiting (Federal gnidance may change this requirement
in July 2022)

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 36 of 63



Education Assistance (2.14, 2.24-2.27)
a) National Center for Education Statistics (“NCES”) School ID or NCES District ID

b) Number of students participating in evidence-based programs (Federal guidance may.
change this requivement in July 2022) ‘

Housing Support (2.15, 2.16, 2.18)

a) Number of people or households receiving eviction prevention services (Federal
guiidance may change this requirement in July 2022}

b) Number of affordable housing units preserved or developed (Federal guidance may
change this vequirement in July 2022)

Small Business Economic Assistance (2.29-2.33)
a) Number of small businesses served
Assistance to Non-Profits (2.34)
a) Number of non-profits served
Aid to Travel, Tourism, and Hospitality or Other Impacted Industries (2.35-2.36)
a) Sector of employer
b) Purpose of funds
¢) If other than travel, tourism and hospitality (2.36) — description of hardship

EC 3 — Public Health — Negative FEconomic Impact: Public Sector Capacity
Payroil for Public Health and Safety Employees (EC 3.1)
a)  Number of government FTEs responding to COVID-19
Rehiring Public Sector Staff (EC 3.2)
a) Number of FTEs rehired by governments
EC 4 — Premium Pay
All Premium Pay Projects
a) List of sectors designated as critical by the chief executive of the jurisdiction, if
beyond those listed in the final rule
b) Numbers of workers served
c) Employer sector for all subawards to third-party employers
d) Written narrative justification of how premium pay is responsive to essential work
during the public health emergency for non-exempt workers or those making over
150 percent of the state/county’s average annual wage
e) Number of workers to be served with premium pay in K-12 schools

Subrecipient Agreement - City of Hobbs
Page 37 0of 63



EC 5 — Infrastiucture Projects

All Infrastructure Projects
a)  Projected/actual construction start date (month/year)
b) Projected/actual initiation of operations date (month/year)
¢) Location (for broadband, geospatial data of locations to be served)
d) Projects over $10 million

i.

i,
ifl.
iv.

Prevailing wage certification or detailed project employment and local
impact report

Project labor agreement certification or project workforce continuity plan
Prioritization of local hires

Community benefit agreement description, if applicable

Water and sewer projects (EC 5.1-5.18)
a) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Number (if
applicable; for projects aligned with the Clean Water State Revolving Fund)
b)  Public Water System (PWS) ID number (if applicable; for projects aligned with the
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund)
¢)  Median Housebold Income of service area

d) Lowest Quintile Income of the service area
Broadband projects (EC 5.19-5.21)

a) Confirm that the project is designed to, upon completion, reliably meet or exceed
syminetrical 100 Mbps download and upload speeds.

i

ii.

If the project is not designed to reliably meet or exceed symmetrical 100
Mbps download and upload speeds, explain why not, and

Confirm that the project is designed to, upon completion, meet or exceed
100 Mbps download speed and between at least 20 Mbps and 100 Mbps
upload speed, and be scalable to a minimum of 100 Mbps download speed
and 100 Mbps upload speed.

b)  Additional programmatic data will be required for broadband projects and will be
defined in a subsequent version of the US Treasury Reporting Guidance, including,
but not limited to (Federal guidance may change this requivement in July 2022):

i.

Number of households (broken out by households on Tribal lands and
those not on Tribal lands) that have gained increased access to broadband
meeting the minimum speed standards in areas that previously lacked
access to service of at least 25 Mbps download and 3 Mbps upload, with
the number of households with access to minimum speed standard of
reliable 100 Mbps symmetrical upload and download and number of
households with access to minimum speed standard of reliable 100 Mbps
download and 20 Mbps upload

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 38 of 63



ii.

i,

Number of institutions and businesses (broken out by institutions on
Tribal lands and those not on Tribal lands) that have projected increased
access to broadband meeting the minimum speed standards in areas that
previously lacked access to service of at least 25 Mbps download and 3
Mbps upload, in each of the following categories: business, small
business, elementary school, secondary school, higher education
institution, library, healthcare facility, and public safety organization,
with the number of each type of institution with access to the minimum
speed standard of reliable 100 Mbps symmetrical upload and download;
and number of each type of institution with access to the minimum speed
standard of reliable 100 Mbps download and 20 Mbps upload.

Narrative identifying speeds/pricing tiers to be offered, including the
speed/pricing of its affordability offering, technology to be deployed,
miles of fiber, cost per mile, cost per passing, number of households
(broken out by households on Tribal lands and those not on Tribal lands)
projected to have increased access to broadband meeting the minimum
speed standards in arcas that previously lacked access to service of at least
25 Mbps download and 3 Mbps upload, number of households with access
to minimum speed standard of reliable 100 Mbps symmetrical upload and
download, number of households with access to minimum speed standard
of reliable 100 Mbps download and 20 Mbps upload, and number of
institutions and businesses (broken out by institutions on Tribal lands and
those not on Tribal lands) projected to have increased access to broadband
meeting the minimum speed standards in areas that previously lacked
access to service of at least 25 Mbps download and 3 Mbps upload, in
each of the following categories: business, small business, elementary
school, secondary school, higher education institution, library, healthcare
facility, and public safety organization. Specify the number of each type
of institution with access to the minimum speed standard of reliable 100
Mbps symmetrical upload and download; and the number of each type of
institution with access to the minimum speed standard of reliable 100
Mbps download and 20 Mbps upload.

All Expenditure Categories

a)

Program income carned and expended to cover eligible project costs

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 39 of 63



8.1.2. A Subrecipient shall report the following data elements to the State no later than
five (5) days after the end of the month following the month in'which the Subaward was

made.

8.1.2.1.
8.1.2.2.

8.1.2.3.
8.1.2.4.

8.1.2.5.

8.1.2.6.

Subrecipient UE] Number;

Subrecipient UEI Number if more than one electronic funds transfer (EFT)
account;

Subrecipient parent’s organization UEI Number;

Subrecipient’s address, including: Street Address, City, State, Country, Zip
+ 4, and Congressional District;

Subrecipient’s top 5 most highly compensated Executives if the criteria in
&4 above are met; and

Subrecipient’s Total Compensation of top 5 most highly compensated
Executives if the criteria in §4 above met.

8.1.3. To Prime Recipient. A Subrecipient shall report to its State, the following data
elements:

8.1.3.1.
8.1.3.2.

8.1.3.3.

8.1.3.4.

8.1.3.5.

8.1.3.6.

Subrecipient’s UEL Number as registered in SAM.

Primary Place of Performance Information, including: Street Address, City,
State, Country, Zip code + 4, and Congressional District.

Narrative identifying methodology for serving disadvantaged communities.
See the "Project Demographic Distribution” section in the "Compliance and
Reporting. Guidance, State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds" report
available at www.treasury.gov. This requirement is applicable to all
projects in Expenditure Categories | and 2.

Narrative  identifying funds allocated towards evidenced-based
interventions and the evidence base. See the “Use of Evidence” section in
the “Compliance and Reporting Guidance, State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds” report available at www.treasury.gov. See section 8.1.1 for relevant
Expenditure Categories.

Narrative describing the structure and objectives of the assistance program
and in what manner the aid responds to the public health and negative
economic impacts of COVID-19. This requirement is applicable to
Expenditure Categories 1 and 2. For aid to travel, tourism, and hospitality
or other impacted industries (EC 2.11-2.12), also provide the sector of
employer, purpose of funds, and if not travel, tourism and hospitality a
description of the pandemic impact on the industry.

Narrative identifying the sector served and designated as critical to the
health and well-being of residents by the chief executive of the jurisdiction
and the number of workers expected to be served. For groups of workers
(e.g., an operating unit, a classification of worker, etc.) or, to the extent

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 40 of 63



8.1.3.7.

applicable, individual workers, other than those where the eligible worker
receiving premium pay is.earning (with the premium pay included) below
150 percent of their residing state or county’s average ammual wage for all
occupations, as defined by the Bureau of Labor Statistics Occupational
Employement and Wage Statistics, whichever is higher, OR the eligible
worker reciving premium pay is not exempt from the Fair Labor Standards
Act overtime provisions, inchude justification of how the premium pay or
grant is responsive to workers performing essential work during the public
health emergency. This could include a description of the essential workers'
duties, health or financial risks faced due to COVID-19 but should not
include personally identifiable information. This requirement applies to EC
4.1, and 4.2.

For infrastructure projects (EC 5) or capital expenditures in any expenditure
category, narrative identifying the projected construction start date
(month/year), projected initiation of operations date (month/year), and
location (for broadband, geospatial location data).

8.1.3.7.1. For projects over $10 million:

8.1.3.7.1.1. Certification that all laborers and mechanics employed by

Contractors and Subcontractors in the performance of such
project are paid wages at rates not less than those prevailing,
as determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor in accordance
with subchapter IV of chapter 31 of title 40, United States
Code (commonly known as the "Davis-Bacon Act"), for the
corresponding classes of laborers and mechanics employed on
projects of a character similar to the Agreement work in the
civil subdivision of the State (or the District of Columbia) in
which the work is to be performed, or by the appropriate State
entity pursuant to a corollary State prevailing-wage-in-
construction law (commonly known as "baby Davis-Bacon
Acts"). If such certification is not provided, a recipient must
provide a project employment and local impact report
detailing (1) the number of employees of Contractors and sub-
contractors working on the project; (2) the number of
employees on the project hired directly and hired through a
third party; (3) the wages and benefits of workers on the
project by classification; and (4) whether those wages are at
rates less than those prevailing. Recipients must maintain
sufficient records to substantiate this information upon
request.

8.1.3.7.1.2. A Subrecipient may provide a certification that a project

includes a project labor agreement, meaning a pre-hire
collective bargaining agreement consistent with section 8(f)
of the National Labor Relations Act (29 U.S.C. 158(f)). If the
recipient does not provide such certification, the recipient

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 41 of 63



must provide a project workforce continuity plan, detailing:
(1) how the Subrecipient will ensure the project has ready
access to a sufficient supply of appropriately skilled and
unskilled labor to ensure high-quality construction throughout
the life of the project; (2) how the Subrecipient will minimize
risks of labor disputes and disruptions that would jeopardize
timeliness and cost-effectiveness of the project; and (3) how
the Subrecipient will provide a safe and healthy workplace
that avoids delays and costs associated with workplace
illnesses, injuries, and fatalities; (4) whether workers on the
project will receive wages and benefits that will secure an
appropriately skilled workforce in the context of the local or
regional labor market; and (5) whether the project has
completed a project labor agreement.

8.1.3.7.1.3. Whether the project prioritizes local hires.

8.1.3.7.1.4. Whether the project has a Community Benefit Agreement,
with a description of any such agreement.

8.1.4. Subrecipient also agrees to comply with any reporting requirements established by the

US Treasury, Governor’s Office and the applicable State agency. The State of New
Mexico may need additional reporting requirements after this agreement is executed. If
there are additional reporting requirements, the State will provide notice of such
additional reporting requirements via Exhibit G - CSFRY Reporting Modification Form,

9. PROCUREMENT STANDARDS.

9.1.

9.2.

Procurement Procedures. A Subrecipient shall use its own documented procurement
procedures which reflect applicable State, local, and Tribal laws and applicable
regulations, provided that the procurements conform to applicable Federal law and the
standards identified in the Uniform Guidance, including without limitation, 2 CFR
200.318 through 200.327 thereof.

Domestic preference for procurements (2 CFR 200.322). As appropriate and to the
extent consistent with law, the non-Federal entity should, to the greatest extent
practicable under a Federal award, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition,
or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not
limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The
requirements of this section must be included in all subawards including all
Agreements and purchase orders for work or products under this award.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 42 of 63



- 9.3.

Procurement of Recovered Materials. If a Subrecipient is a State Agency or an agency
of a political subdivision of the State, its Contractors must -comply with section 6002
of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items
designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part
247, that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent
with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the
item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal
year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that
maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement
program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

10. ACCESS TC RECORDS.

10.1.

A Subrecipient shall permit Prime Recipient and its auditors to have access to
Subrecipient’s records and financial statements as necessary for Recipient to meet the
requirements of 2 CFR 200.332 (Requirements for pass-through entities), 2 CFR
200.300 (Statutory and national policy requirements) through 2 CFR 200.309 (Period
of performance), and Subpart F-Audit Requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

11. SINGLE AUDIT REQUIREMENTS.

11.1.

If a Subrecipient expends $750,000 or more in Federal Awards during the
Subrecipient’s fiscal year, the Subrecipient shall procure or arrange for a single or
program-specific audit conducted for that year in accordance with the provisions of
Subpart F-Audit Requirements of the Uniform Guidance, issued pursuant to the Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996, (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507). 2 CFR 200.501.

11.1.1. Election. A Subrecipient shall have a single audit conducted in accordance with

Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.514 (Scope of audit), except when it elects to have
a program-specific audit conducted in accordance with 2 CEFR 200.507 (Program-
specific audits). The Subrecipient may elect to have a program-specific audit if
Subrecipient expends Federal Awards under only one Federal program (excluding
research and development) and the Federal program’s statutes, regulations, or the
terms and conditions of the Federal award do not require a financial statement audit
of Prime Recipient. A program-specific audit may not be elected for research and
development unless all of the Federal Awards expended were received from
Recipient and Recipient approves in advance a program-specific audit.

11.1.2. Exemption. Ifa Subrecipient expends less than $750,000 in Federal Awards during

its fiscal year, the Subrecipient shall be exempt from Federal audit requirements for
that year, except as noted in 2 CER 200.503 (Relation to other audit requirements),
but records shall be available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the
Federal agency, the State, and the Government Accountability Office.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 43 of 63



11.1.3.

Subrecipient Compliance Responsibility. A Subrecipient shall procure or
otherwise arrange for the audit required by Subpart F of the Uniform Guidance and
ensure it is. properly performed and submitted when due in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance. Subrecipient shall prepare appropriate financial statements,
including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards in accordance with 2 CFR
200.510 (Financial statements) and provide the auditor with access to personnel,
accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as
needed for the auditor to perform the audit required by Uniform Guidance Subpart
F-Audit Requirements.

12, GRANT PROVISIONS FOR SUBRECIFIENT AGREEMENTS.

12.1. In addition to other provisions required by the Federal Awarding Agency or the State,
Subrecipients shall comply with the following provisions. Subrecipients shall include

all

of the following applicable provisions in all Subcontractors entered into by it

pursuant to this Grant.

12.1.1.

12.1.2.

12.1.3.

[Applicable to federally assisted construction Agreements.] Equal Employment
Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all Agreements
that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction Agreement” in 41 CFR
Part 60-1.3 shall include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-
1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment
Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as
amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating
to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part
60, Office of Federal Agreement Compliance Programs, Equal Employment
Opportunity, Department of Labor.

[Applicable to on-site employees working on government-funded construction,
alteration and repair projects.] Davis-Bacon Act. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended
(40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). See Exhibit E.

Rights to Inventions Made Under a grant or agreement. If the Federal Award
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR 401.2 (a) and the Prime
Recipient or Subrecipient wishes to enter into an Agreement with a small business
firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or
performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that “funding
agreement,” the Prime Recipient or Subrecipient must comply with the
requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Agreements
and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the
Federal Awarding Agency.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 44 of 63



'1214

12.1.5.

12.1.6.

12.1.7.

12.1.8,

Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended. Agreements and subgrants of amounts in
excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal awardees
to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued
pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be
reported to the Federal Awarding Agency and the Regional Office of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A Agreement
award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government
wide exclusions in SAM, in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180
that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and
12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM
Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise
excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or
regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549,

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352). Contractors that apply or
bid for an award exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier
certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds
to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining
any Federal Agreement, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each
tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in
connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from
tier to tier up to the non-Federal award.

Never Agreement with the enemy (2 CFR 200.215). Federal awarding agencies
and recipients are subject to the regulations implementing “Never Agreement with
the enemy” in 2 CFR part 183. The regulations in 2 CFR part 183 affect covered
Agreements, grants and cooperative agreements that are expected to exceed
$50,000 within the period of performance, are performed outside the United States
and its territories, and are in support of a contingency operation in which members
of the Armed Forces are actively engaged in hostilities.

Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or
equipment (2 CFR 200.216). The State is prohibited from obligating or expending
loan or grant funds on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services -
or equipment pursuant to 2 CFR 200.216.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 45 of 63



12.1.9. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. The Subgrantee, Contractor, Subcontractor, .

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, :
which prohibits recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a
program or activity, denying benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a
person on the basis of race, color, or national origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as
implemented by the Department of Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Pait
22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement
{or agreement). Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English
Proficiency” in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42
U.S. C. § 2000d et seq., as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title
Vlregulations, 31 CRF Part 22, and herein incorporated by reference and made part
of this Agreement or agreement.

13. CERTIFICATIONS.

13.1.

13.2.

Subrecipient Certification. Subrecipient shall sign a “State of New Mexico Agreement
with Recipient of Federal Recovery Funds™ Certification Form in Exhibit E and submit
to State Agency with signed grant agreement.

Unless prohibited by Federal statutes or regulations, the State may require Subrecipient
to submit certifications and representations required by Federal statutes or regulations
on an annual basis. 2 CFR 200.208. Submission may be required more frequently if
Subrecipient fails to meet a requirement of the Federal award. Subrecipient shall
certify in writing to the State at the end of the Award that the project or activity was
completed or the level of effort was expended. 2 CFR 200.201(3). Ifthe required level
of activity or effort was not carried out, the amount of the Award must be adjusted.

14. EXEMPTIONS,

14.1.

14.2.

These Federal Provisions do not apply to an individual who receives an Award as a
natural person, unrelated to any business or non-profit organization he or she may own
or operate in his or her name.

A Subrecipient with gross income from all sources of less than $300,000 in the previous
tax year is exempt from the requirements to report Subawards and the Total
Compensation of its most highly compensated Executives.

EVENT OF DEFAULT AND TERMINATION.

14.3.

14.4.

Failure to comply with these Federal Provisions shall constitute an event of default
under the Grant and the State of New Mexico may terminate the Grant upon 30 days
prior written notice if the default remains uncured five calendar days following the
termination of the 30-day notice period. This remedy will be in addition to any other
remedy available to the State of New Mexico under the Grant, at law or in equity.

Termination (2 CFR 200.340). The Federal Award may be terminated in whole or in
part as follows:

14.4.1. By the Federal Awarding Agency or Pass-through Entity, if a Non-Federal Entity

fails to comply with the terms and conditions of a Federal Award;

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 46 of 63



14.4.2. By the Federal awarding agency or Pass-through Entity, to the greatest extent
authorized by law, if an award no longer effectuates the program goals or agency
priorities;

14.4.3. By the Federal awarding agency or Pass-through Entity with the consent of the
Non-Federal Entity, in which case the two parties must agree upon the termination
conditions, including the effective date and, in the case of partial termination, the
portion to be terminated,

14.4.4. By the Non-Federal Entity upon sending to the Federal Awarding Agency or Pass-
through Entity written notification setting forth the reasons for such termination,
the effective date, and, in the case of partial termination, the portion to be

- terminated. However, if the Federal Awarding Agency or Pass-through Entity
determines in the case of partial termination that the reduced or modified portion
of the Federal Award or Subaward will not accomplish the purposes for which the
Federal Award was made, the Federal Awarding Agency or Pass-through Entity
may terminate the Federal Award in its entirety; or

14.4.5. By the Federal Awarding Agency or Pass-through Entity pursuant to termination
provisions included in the Federal Award.

CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR NON-FEDERAL ENTITY CONTRACTS
UNDER FEDERAL AWARDS

Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, ail
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance
with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR
Part, 19641965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive
Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41
CFR part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity,
Department of Labor.”

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment
of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704,
as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of
the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and faborer on
the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is
permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times
the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements
of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic
must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary,
hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials
or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission
of intelligence.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 47 of 63



Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the
definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR section 401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient
wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the
substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or rescarch
work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the
requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and
Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and
any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. Confracts and subgrants of
amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to
agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean
Air Act (42 U.S.C. 74017671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33
11.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional
Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A contract award (see 2 CFR
180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for
Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement
Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p.
235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred,
suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory
or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549,

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352). Contractors that apply or bid for an award
exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it
will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in
connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C.
1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in
connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up
to the non-Federal award.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 48 of 63



EXHIBIT D |
AGREEMENT WITH SUBRECIPIENT OF FEDERAL RECOVERY FUNDS

Section 602(b) of the Social Security Act (the Act), as added by section 9901 of the American
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), Pub. L. No. 117-2 (March 11, 2021), authorizes the Department of
the Treasury (Treasury) to make payments to certain Subrecipients from the Coronavirus State
Fiscal Recovery Fund. The State of New Mexico has signed and certified a separate agreement
with Treasury as a condition of receiving such payments from the Treasury. This agreement
is between your organization and the State and your organization is signing and certifying the
same terms and conditions included in the State’s separate agreement with Treasury, apply to
your organization. Your organization is referred to as a Subrecipient.

As a condition of your organization receiving federal recovery funds from the State, the
authorized representative below hereby (i) certifies that your organization will carry out the
activities listed in section 602(c) of the Act and (ii) agrees to the terms attached hereto. Your
organization also agrees to use the federal recovery funds as specified in bills passed by the
Legislature and signed by the Governor.

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned official certifies that the authorized representative
has read and understood the organization’s obligations in the Assurances of Compliance and
Civil Rights Requirements, that any information submitted in conjunction with this assurances
document is accurate and complete, and that the organization is in compliance with the
nondiscrimination requirements.

Subrecipient Organization Name: City of Hobbs
Subrecipient Organization Representative: Manny Gomez
Title: City Manager

Signature

Date:

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 49 of 63



1.

3.

. Agreement with Subrecipient of Federal Recovery I'unds
Terms And Conditions

Use of Funds.

a. Subrecipient understands and agrees that the funds disbursed under this award

may only be used in compliance with section 602(c) of the Social Security Act
(the Act) and Treasury’s regulations implementing that section and guidance.

b. Subrecipient will determine prior to engaging in any project using this assistance

that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability to ensure proper
planning, management, and completion of such project.

Period of Performance. The period of performance for this subaward is shown on page
one of this Agreement. Subrecipient may use funds to cover eligible costs incurred, as
set forth in Treasury’s implementing regulations, during this period of performance.

Reporting. Subrecipient agrees to comply with any reporting obligations established by
Treasury as they relate to this award. Subrecipient also agrees to comply with any
reporting requirements established by the Governor’s Office and State Agency. The State
will provide notice of such additional reporting requirements via Exhibit G — Reporting
Modification Form.

Maintenance of and Access to Records
a.Subrecipient shall maintain records and financial documents sufficient to
evidence compliance with section 602(c), Treasury’s regulations implementing
that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing.

b.The Treasury Office of Inspector General and the Govermment Accountability
Office, or their authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to
records (electronic and otherwise) of Subrecipient in order to conduct audits or
other investigations.

c. Records shall be maintained by Subrecipient for a period of five (5) years after
all funds have been expended or returned to Treasury, whichever is later.

5. Pre-award Costs. Pre-award costs, as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.458, may not be paid
with funding from this award.

6. Administrative Costs. Subrecipient may use funds provided under this award to cover
both direct and indirect costs. Subrecipient shall follow guidance on administrative
costs issued by the Governor’s Office and State agency.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 50 of 63



7. Cost Sharing. Cost sharing or matching funds are not required to be provided by
Subrecipient.

8. Conflicts of Interest. The State of New Mexico understands and agrees it must maintain a
conflict of interest policy consistent with 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c) and that such conflict of
interest policy is applicable to each activity funded under this award. Subrecipient and
Contractors must disclose in writing to the Agency or the pass-through entity, as
appropriate, any potential conflict of interest affecting the awarded funds in accordance
with 2 C.F.R. § 200.112. The Agency shall disclose such conflict to Treasury.

9. Compliance with Applicable L.aw and Regulations.

a. Subrecipient agrees to comply with the requirements of section 602 of the Act,
regulations adopted by Treasury pursuant to section 602(f) of the Act, and
guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing. Subrecipient also agrees to
comply with all other applicable federal statutes, regulations, and executive
orders, and Subrecipient shall provide for such compliance by other parties in any
agreements it enters into with other parties relating to this award.

b. Federal regulations applicable to this award include, without limitation, the following:

i.  Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, other than such
provisions as Treasury may determine are inapplicable to this Award and
subject to such exceptions as may be otherwise provided by Treasury.
Subpart F — Audit Requirements of the Uniform Guidance, implementing
the Single Audit Act, shall apply to this award.

il.  Universal Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM), 2 C.F.R.
Part 25, pursuant to which the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2
C.F.R. Part 25 is hereby incorporated by reference.

iii.  Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information, 2 C.F.R.
Part 170, pursuant to which the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2
C.F.R. Part 170 is hereby incorporated by reference.

iv. OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Government wide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonprocurement), 2 C.F.R. Part 180, including the
requirement to include a term or condition in all lower tier covered
transactions (Agreements and Subcontractors described in 2 C.F.R. Part
180, subpart B) that the award is subject to 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and
Treasury’s implementing regulation at 31 C.F.R. Part 19,

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 51 of 63



v.  Subrecipient Integrity and Performance Matters, pursuant to which the
award term set forth in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII to Part 200 1s
hereby incorporated by reference.

vi.  Government wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace, 31 C.F.R, Part 20.
vii.  New Restrictions on Lobbying, 31 C.F.R. Part 21.

viii.  Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of
1970 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4601-4655) and implementing regulations.

ix.  Generally applicable federal environmental laws and regulations.

c. Statutes and regulations prohibiting discrimination applicable to this award
include, without limitation, the following:

i.  Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and
Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.IL.R. Part 22, which prohibit
discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin under
programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance;

ii.  The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42
U.S.C. §8 3601 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the
basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, familial status, or
disability;

iii.  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §
794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any
program or activity receiving federal financial assistance;

iv.  The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et
seq.), and Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23,
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of age in programs or activities
receiving federal financial assistance; and

v.  Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42
U.S.C. §8§ 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
disability under programs, activities, and services provided or made
available by state and local governments or instrumentalities or agencies
thereto.

Remedial Actions. In the event of Subrecipient’s noncompliance with section 602 of

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 52 of 63



10. the Act, other applicable laws, Treasury’s implementing regulations, guidance, or
any reporting or other program requirements, Treasury may impose additional
conditions on the receipt of a subsequent tranche of future award funds, if any, or
take other available remedies as set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. In the case of a
violation of section 602(c) of the Act regarding the use of funds, previous payments
shall be subject to recoupment as provided in section 602(e) of the Act and any
additional payments may be subject to withholding as provided in sections
602(bY(6)(A)(i1)(11L) of the Act, as applicable.

11, Hatch Act. Subrecipient agrees to comply, as applicable, with requirements of the Hatch
Act (5 U.8.C.§§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328), which limit certain political activities of
State or local government employees whose principal employment is in connection with
an activity financed in whole or in part by this federal assistance.

12, False Statements. Subrecipient understands that making false statements or claims in
connection with this award is a violation of federal law and may result in criminal,
civil, or administrative sanctions, including fines, imprisonment, civil damages and
penalties, debarment from participating in federal awards or Agreements, and/or any
other remedy available by law.

13. Publications. Any publications produced with funds from this award must
display the following language: “This project is being supported, in whole or in
part, by federal award number SLERF0126 awarded to the State of New Mexico
by the U.S. Department of the Treasury.”

14. Debts Owed the Federal Government.

a. Any funds paid to the Subrecipient (1) in excess of the amount to which the
Subrecipient is finally determined to be authorized to retain under the terms
of this award; (2) that are determined by the Treasury Office of Inspector
General to have been misused; or (3) that are determined by Treasury to be
subject to a repayment obligation pursuant to sections 602(e) and
603(b)(2)(D) of the Act and have not been repaid by the Subrecipient shall
constitute a debt to the federal government.

b. Any debts determined to be owed to the federal government must be paid
promptly by Subrecipient. A debt is delinquent if it has not been paid by the
date specified in Treasury’s initial written demand for payment, unless other
satisfactory arrangements have been made or if the Subrecipient knowingly

| or impropetly retains funds that are a debt as defined in paragraph 14(a).

Treasury will take any actions available to it to collect such a debt.

15, Disclaimer.
a. The United States expressly disclaims any and all responsibility or liability to
Subrecipient or third persons for the actions of Subrecipient or third persons

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 53 of 63




resulting in death, bodily injury, property damages, or any other losses
resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any other losses
resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any Agreement,
or Subcontractor under this award.

b. The acceptance of this award by Subrecipient does not in any way establish
an agency relationship between the United States and Subrecipient.

16. Protections for Whistleblowers.

a. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, Subrecipient may not discharge, demote,
or otherwise discriminate against an employee in reprisal for disclosing to any of
the list of persons or entities provided below, information that the employee
reasonably believes is evidence of gross mismanagement of a federal Agreement
or grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal
Agreement or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety,
or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal Agreement (including
the competition for or negotiation of an Agreement) or grant.

b. The list of persons and entities referenced in the paragraph above includes the
following:
i. A member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress;
ii.  An Inspector General;
iii.  The Government Accountability Office;
iv. A Treasury employee responsible for Agreement or grant oversight or
management;
v. An authorized official of the Department of Justice or other law
enforcement agency;
vi. A court or grand jury; or
vil. A management official or other employee of Subrecipient, Contractor,
or Subcontractor who has the responsibility to investigate, discover,
or address misconduct.

c. Subrecipient shall inform its employees in writing of the rights and remedies
provided under this section, in the predominant native language of the workforce.

17. Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States. Pursuant to Executive Order 13043,
62 FR 19217 (Apr. 18, 1997), Subrecipient should encourage its Contractors to
adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for their employees
when operating company-owned, rented or personally owned vehicles,

36. Reducing Text Messaging While Driving. Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, 74 IR
51225 (Oct. 6, 2009), Subrecipient should encourage its employees, Subrecipients, and

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 54 of 63



Contractors to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving, and
Subrecipient should establish workplace safety policies to decrease accidents caused by
distracted drivers.

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS
REQUIREMENTS

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the
Treasury, the Subrecipient provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial
assistance may include federal grants, loans and Agreements to provide assistance to the
Subrecipient’s beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value,
Federal training, a loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the
intention of providing assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass
Agreements of guaraniee or insurance, regulated programs, licenses, procurement
Agreements by the Federal government at market value, or programs that provide direct
benefits.

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available
through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that the Subrecipient may
request in the future.

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the
assurances apply to all of the operations of the Subrecipient’s program(s) and activity(ies), so
long as any portion of the Subrecipient’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in
the manner prescribed above.

1. Subrecipient ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act

of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the benefits
of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal financial
assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national origin
(42 U.S.C. § 2000d ef seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI
regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order
13166, directives, circulars, policies, menioranda, and/or guidance documents.

Subrecipient acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services
for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally
assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have
Limited English proficiency (I.LEP). Subrecipient understands that denying a person access
to its programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin
discrimination prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the
Department of the Treasury’s implementing regulations. Accordingly, Subrecipient shall
initiate reasonable steps, or comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to
ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities.
Subrecipient understands and agrees that meaningful access may entail providing
language assistance services, including oral interpretation and written translation where
necessary, to ensure effective communication in the Subrecipient’s programs, services,
and activities.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 55 of 63



3. Subrecipient agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons when
Subrecipient develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and activities.
As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR
6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for
LEP persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.

4. Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances constitutes a
condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon
Subrecipient and Subrecipient’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in
which such assistance is provided.

5. Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that it must require any sub-grantees, contractors,
subcontractors, successors, transferees, and assignees to comply with assurances 1-4
above, and agrees to incorporate the following language in every Agreement or agreement
subject to Title VI and its regulations between the Subrecipient and the Subrecipient’s
sub-grantees, Contractors, Subcontractors, successors, transferees, and assignees:

The sub-grantee, Contractor, Subcontractor, successor, transferee, and assignee shall
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits Subrecipients of
federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying benefits
of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national
origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Departmnent of the Treasury’s
Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and
made a part of this Agreement (or agreement). Title VI also includes protection to
persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any program or activity receiving federal
Sfinancial assistance, 42

US.C. § 2000d et seq., as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI
regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein incorporated by reference and made a part
of this Agreement or agreement.

6. Subrecipient understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is provided or
improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the Treasury,
this assurance obligates the Subrecipient, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the
transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose
for which the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the
provision of similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this
assurance obligates the Subrecipient for the period duri mg which it retains ownership or
possession of the property.

7. Subrecipient shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review activities by the
Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may include
investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement
agreements that may result from these actions. The Subrecipient shall comply with
information requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.

8. Subrecipient shall mainfain a complaint log and inform the Department of the Treasury of
any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and
limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 56 of 63



implementing regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or
proceedings based on the complaint, pending or completed, including outcome.
Subrecipient also must inform the Department of the Treasury if Subrecipient has received
no complaints under Title V1. ‘

9, Subrecipient must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or court’s
findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance,
including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the Subrecipient and the
administrative agency that made the finding. If the Subrecipient settles a case or matter
alleging such discrimination, the Subrecipient must provide documentation of the
settlement. If Subrecipient has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency
finding of discrimination, please so state.

10. If the Subrecipient makes sub-awards to other agencies or other entities, the Subrecipient
is responsible for ensuring that sub-Subrecipients also comply with Title VI and other
applicable authorities covered in this document State agencies that make sub-awards must
have in place standard grant assurances and review procedures to demonstrate that that
they are effectively monitoring the civil rights compliance of sub- Subrecipients.

The United States of America has the right to seek judicial enforcement of the terms of this

assurances document and nothing in this document alters or limits the federal enforcement
measures that the United States may take in order to address violations of this document or
applicable federal law.

EXHIBIT E

DAVIS-BACON ACT REQUIREMENTS
(IF APPLICABLE)

Overview

Section 1606 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act {ARRA) of 2009, Pub. L. No. 111-
5, 123 Stat. 115 (Feb. 17, 2009) (the “Recovery Act”), requires grant award recipients,
subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors to comply with the wage requirements of the Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq.) and related acts, stating:

Notwithstanding any other provision of law and in a manner consistent with other provisions in
this Act, all laborers and mechanics employed by contractors and subcontractors on projects
funded directly by or assisted in whole or in part by and through the Federal Government pursuant
to this Act shall be paid wages at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a character
similar in the locality as determined by the Secretary of Labor in accordance with subchapter IV
of chapter 31 of title 40, United States Code. With respect to the labor standards specified in this
section, the Secretary of Labor shall have the authority and functions set forth in Reorganization
Plan Numbered 14 of 1950 (64 Stat. 1267; 5 U.S.C. App.) and section 3145 of title 40, United
States Code.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 57 of 63



Scope of the Davis-Bacon Act The Davis-Bacon Act prevailing wage requirements apply  to
laborers and mechanics employed under contracts or subcontracts in excess of $2,000 for
construction, alteration, or repair activities (including but not limited to painting and decmatmg)
that are funded, in whole or in part, under BTOP grant awards. In general:

e Laborers and mechanics — Are workers whose duties are manual or physical in nature,
including apprentices, trainees and helpers, but do not include workers whose duties are
primarily managerial, administrative, executive, or clerical. See 29 C.F.R. section 5.2(m).

o The $2,000 threshold - Pertains to the amount of the prime construction contract, not to
the amount of individual subcontracts. Accordingly, if the prime construction contract
exceeds $2,000, all construction work on the project (including subcontracts) is covered
by the Davis-Bacon Act. See 29 C.F.R. section 5.5(a)(6).

e Construction, alteration, or repair activities — Are those occurring at the “site of the work”
that involve the alteration, remodeling, or installation of items fabricated off-site; painting
and decorating; manufacturing or furnishing of materials, articles, supplies, or equipment
on the site of the building or work; and, in certain cases, transportation between the site of
the work and other points. See 29 C.F.R. section 5.2(j).

o Site of the work — Is the physical place or places where the building or work called for in the
contract will remain, and any other site where a significant portion of the building or work is
constructed, provided that such site is established specifically for the performance of the
contract or project, and includes job headquarters, tool yards, batch plants, borrow pits, etc., if
they are dedicated exclusively, or nearly so, to performance of the contract or project, and are
adjacent or virtually adjacent to the site of the work. The site of the work does not include
permanent home offices, branch plant establishments, fabrication plants, tool yards, etc., of a
contractor or subcontractor whose location and continued operation are determined wholly
without regard to a particular Federal or Federally assisted contract or project. See 29 C.F.R.
section 5.2(1).

e Application to Governmental Agencies - Governmental agencies, such as states or their
political subdivisions, are not subject to the Davis Bacon Act requirements when construction
work is being performed by their own employees on a “force account” basis. See 29 C.F.R.
section 5.2(h).

Davis-Bacon Act prevailing wage requirements are likely to apply to construction and related
activities undertaken in connection with Infrastructure Round 1 and Comprehensive Community
Infrastructure (CCI) Round 2 projects. In many cases, Davis-Bacon Act prevailing wage
requirements will also apply to activities under BTOP grants for Sustainable Broadband Adoption
(SBA) and Public Computer Centers (PCC), when construction and related activities (including
minor renovation of facilities) can be segregated from the other work contemplated by the grant,
See 29 C.F.R. section 4.116; F.A R, section 22.402(b).

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 58 of 63



Davis-Bacon Act Requirements

Required contract provisions (appearing at 29 CF.R. section 5.5) and the applicable wage
determination(s) for the activities contemplated by a construction project must be included in any
contract or subcontract to which the Davis-Bacon Act applies providing, among other items, that:

¢ Laborers and mechanics must be paid the full amount of wages and bona fide fiinge
benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) at least once a week;

¢ No paycheck deductions or rebates are permitted, except as permitted under Department
of Labor (DOL) regulations (29 C.F.R. sections 3.5-3.6);

e Wage and fringe benefit rates must be no less than those contained in DOL wage
determination for the labor classification for the work actually performed.

The recipient is responsible for ensuring that the required contract provisions appeat in all
contracts and subcontracts entered into by recipients, subrecipients, contractors, and
subcontractors for construction, alteration and repair activities covered by the Davis-Bacon Act
and related acts. Applicable wage determinations included in the contract must be verified by the
recipient within 10 days of the contract date.

In cases where state wage rates (determined under state statutes often called “Mini-Davis-Bacon
Acts”) are higher than the Federal wage rates, the state wage rates take precedence and should be
included in contracts in lieu of the lower, Federal wage rates. In cases of construction projects on
tribal lands, the recipient should contact its assigned Federal Program Officer (FPO) for guidance
on the interplay among the Davis-Bacon Act, state Mini-Davis-Bacon acts, and the Tribal
Employment Rights Ordinance (TERO).

Contracts for amounts over $100,000 that are covered by the Davis-Bacon Act must include
additional standard clauses (also appearing in 29 C.F.R. section 5.5) providing, among other
things, that overtime for laborers and mechanics must be paid at a rate 1.5 times the basic rate of
pay for time worked in excess of 40 hours per week.

In addition, the DOL Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) must be prominently posted at the site of
the work. Refer to: (www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/posters/fedprojc.pdf 1321).

Davis-Bacon Wage Rate Determinations

DOL conducts statewide surveys seeking payment data on wage and fringe benefit rates from
construction contractors and other interested parties, such as labor unions. Wage determinations
arc issued by locality, typically on a county-by-county basis. Davis-Bacon Act wage
determinations are published on DOL’s Wage Determinations OnLine (WDOL) website
accessible at: www.wdol.gov. The Davis-Bacon Act prevailing wages are determined by DOL
based on wages paid to various classes of laborers and mechanics employed on specific types of
construction projects in an area.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 59 of 63



If DOL has not published a wage determination for work that is needed to complete a BTOP
construction project, the recipient may seek a Conformance. The recipient must submit a
Conformance request using Standard Form (SF) 1444. Please go to www.wdol.gov/library.aspx
to obtain a copy of the form and instructions.

To complete the form, the recipient must describe the work to be done (identified with a
classification that is used in the subject area in the construction industry) and propose a wage rate
that bears a reasonable relationship to existing wage determinations. Typically, the rate must not
be less than the wage determination for an unskilled laborer and, for a skilled craft, must be at
least equal to the lowest wage determination for any other skilled craft.

Infrastructure and CCI recipients should submit the completed SF-1444 through Grants Online as
an “Other Action Request.” The SF1444 will be routed to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA) Grants Officer and transmitted to the DOL Wage and Hour Division for
review and approval. The Wage and Hour Division has committed to act on Conformance requests
within 30 days.

SBA and PCC recipients should submit completed SF-1444 Conformance requests through the
Post-Award Monitoring (PAM) System. To do so, the recipient should create a report package of
the type “POR: PAM Other Request.” After filling out and attaching the Request Template,
recipient should attach the completed SF-1444 form using the “Add File” button. The SF-1444
will be routed to the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Grants Officer and
transmitted to the DOL Wage and Hour Division for review and approval. The Wage and Hour
Division has committed to act on Conformance requests within 30 days.

Recordkeeping and Monitoring Obligations

Recipients, subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors must prepare weekly certified payroll
documentation using Form WH347 (available at: www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347.pdf), properly
completed for laborers and mechanics performing activities covered by the Davis-Bacon Act
requirements of the Recovery Act. Subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors must submit this
information to the BTOP grant award recipient on a weekly basis within seven days of the regular
payment date of the subrecipient’s, contractor’s or subcontractor’s payroll period.

A recipient must review the weekly certified payroll documentation it receives from its
subrecipients, contractors and subcontractors on an ongoing basis. See 29 C.F R. sections 3.3-3.4.
If a subrecipient receives-the original payroll documents, the subrecipient should review these
documents and forward the original documents to the recipient on a weekly basis within the time
period described above.

The recipient must maintain in its files the original Davis-Bacon Act payroll records it prepares
for itself, as well as those prepared by subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors, The recipient
is not required to submit any of the payroll documents to the BTOP Grants Office unless the
assigned Grants Officer makes a request for such records. The payroll records must be maintained
so as to be easily accessed by BTOP Grants Officers and by other duly authorized officials. The

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 60 of 63



recipient must retain these records as provided in the Department of Commerce (DOC) Uniform
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, 15 C.F.R. section 14.53 or

24.42, as applicable, generally for the later of three years after closeout of the award, or until any
litigation, claim, or audit is resolved.

Enforcement and Penalties

Violation of the requirements of Section 1606 of the Recovery Act and the Davis-Bacon Act and
related acts is a serious offense. Compliance is subject to audit during OMB Circular A-133 audits
(including program-specific audits) of BTOP grant recipients and subrecipients, as well as audits
and investigations by the DOC Office of Inspector General, the Government Accountability Office
(GAO), the DOL Wage and Hour Division, and other duly authorized officials. A violation of the
Davis-Bacon Act wage requirements may lead N'TTA to impose appropriate enforcement action in
connection with a BTOP grant award, up to and including suspension or termination of the award.
In addition, contracting parties are subject to payment of back wages, and suspension or debarment
from future contracts for a period of up to three years. Monetary damages may also apply.
Falsification of certified payroll records or the required kickback of wages may subject a violator
to civil or criminal prosecution, the penalty for which may include fines and/or imprisonment.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 61 of 63



EXHIBIT F
FLIGIBLE AND RESTRICTED USES.OF CSLFRF FUNDS

As described in the CSLFRF statute and summarized above, there are four enumerated eligible
uses of CSLFRF award funds. As a recipient of an award under the CSLFRF program, your
organization is responsible for complying with requirements for the use of funds. In addition to
determining a given project’s eligibility, recipients are also responsible for determining
subrecipient’s or beneficiaries® eligibility and must monitor use of CSLFRF award funds.

To help recipients build a greater understanding of eligible uses, Treasury’s Interim Final Rule
establishes a framework for determining whether a specific project would be eligible under the
CSLFRF program, including some helpful definitions. For example, Treasury’s Interim Final Rule
establishes:

e A framework for determining whether a project “responds to” a “negative economic
impact” caused by the COVID-19 public health emergency;

e Definitions of “eligible employers”, “essential worlk,
pay” for cases where premium pay is an eligible use;

b1

eligible workers”, and “premium

o A definition of “general revenue” and a formula for calculating revenue lost due to the
COVID-19 public health emergency;

e A framework for eligible water and sewer infrastructure projects that aligns eligible uses
with projects that are eligible under the Environmental Protection Agency’s Drinking
Water and Clean Water State Revolving Funds; and,

s A framework for eligible broadband projects designed to provide service to unserved or
underserved households, or businesses at speeds sufficient to enable users to generally
meet household needs, including the ability to support the simultaneous use of work,
education, and health applications, and also sufficiently robust to meet increasing
household demands for bandwidth.

Treasury’s Interim Final Rule also provides more information on four important restrictions on
use of CSLFRF award funds: recipients may not deposit CSLFRF funds into a pension fund;
recipients that are States or territories may not use CSLFRF funds to offset a reduction in net tax
revenue caused by the recipient’s change in law, regulation, or administrative interpretation; and,
recipients may not use CSLFRF funds as non-Federal match where prohibited. In addition, the
Interim Final Rule clarifies certain uses of CSLFRF funds outside the scope of eligible uses,
including that recipients generally may not use CSLFRF funds directly to service debt, satisfy a
judgment or settlement, or contribute to a “rainy day” fund. Recipients should refer to Treasury’s
Interim Final Rule for more information on these restrictions.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 62 of 63



EXHIBIT G
CSFRF SUBRECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT
1. CSFRF SUBRECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT WORKBOOK

1.1 The CSFRF Subrecipient Quarterly Report Workbook must be submitted to the
STATE within ten {(10) calendar days following each quarter ended September,
December, March and June.

Subrecipient Agreement — City of Hobbs
Page 63 of 63



L CITY OF HOBBS

%
?_{0 6 5 5 COMMISSION STAFF SUMMARY FORM

NEW MEXICO MEETING DATE: Januar\/ 8, 2024

SUBJECT: Resolution to Execute a Grant Agreement with the New
Mexico Aging and Long Term Services Department

DEPT. OF ORIGIN:  Recreation Department

DATE SUBMITTED: January 2, 2024

SUBMITTED BY: Doug McDaniel, Recreation Director

Summary:

The City of Hobbs has received funding in the amount of $60,500.00 from the New Mexico
Aging and Long Term Services Division. The grant will be used to purchase a Hot Shot
Vehicle to be used for the delivery of the Hobbs Senior Center's Meals on Wheels. The
grant appropriation will be administered by the State of New Mexico Aging and Long Term
Services Department. This appropriation does not require matching funds. The grant has a
reversion date of June 30, 2026.

Fiscal Impact: Reviewed By: MM

Grant Agreement Amount: $60,500.00
Munis Funds 214021-44901-00378 $60,500.00

Future Funding (BAR/Fund 170) $25,000.00

The grant funds are included in the FY24 Budget in the above object code. A request will
be made in an upcoming BAR to request an additional $25,000 to fully equip the Hot
Shot Vehicle (food/storage racks, cold storage, hot storage, vehicle safety lights), and if
approved these funds will be included in Fund 170-additional A BAR will be made to
include the revenue from the grant, $60,500.00, in the FY24 Budget with an associated
expenditure of funds in the same amount.

Attachments:
Resolution, Grant Agreement

Legal Review: Approved As To Form: KW% /k_/

City Attorney
Recommendation:
Motion to approve the resolution
Approved For Submittal By: CITY CLERKS USE ONLY
W COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN
\- - Resolution No. Continued To:

Dep ent Director _Ordinance No. Referred To:
_—|| Approved Denied
Other File No.

City Mariager




CITY OF HOBBS

RESOLUTION NO. 7433

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO
AGING AND LONG TERM SERVICES DEPARTMENT
FOR GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER A22G-5325
FOR HOT SHOT VEHICLE FOR MEAL DELIVERY

WHEREAS, a Fund 89200 Capital Appropriation Project has been awarded to the City of
Hobbs; and

WHEREAS, this grant appropriation in the amount of $60,500.00 is to purchase a Hot Shot
Vehicle for Meal Delivery for the Hobbs Senior Center and the Meals on Wheels Program; and

WHEREAS, the City of Hobbs Senior Center is identified as the Grantee and the Grant
will be administered by the New Mexico Aging and Long Term Services Department; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
HOBBS, NEW MEXICO, that the Mayor be and hereby is authorized and directed to take all
necessary and appropriate action to effectuate this Resolution for a Grant Agreement with the
State of New Mexico, Aging and Long Term Services Department for Grant Agreement Number
A22(G-5325, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorperated herein.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8" day of January, 2024.

SAM D. COBB, Mayor

ATTEST:

JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

AGING AND LONG-TERM SERVICES DEPARTMENT
FUND 89200 CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this _ day of ,
20, by and between the Aging and Long-Term Services Department, hereinafier called the
“Department” or abbreviation such as “ALTSD”, and City of Hobbs, hereinafter caltled the
“Grantee”, This Agreement shall be effective as of the date it is executed by the Department.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2022, Chapter 55, Section 10, Paragraph 24, the Legislature
made an appropriation to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available
to the Grantee pursuant to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting the
grant of, funds from this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, State Agency on Aging (28-4-1 to 28-4-9 NMSA 1978): successor agency,
Aging and Long-Term Services Department (9-23-1 to 9-23-12 NMSA 1978) may enter into
grants and contracts as appropriated by law.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations
contained herein, the parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, AMOUNT OF GRANT AND REVERSION
DATE

A. The project that is the subject of this Agreement is described as follows:

A22(G-5323  $60,500.00 APPROPRIATION REVERSION DATE: 30-JUN-2026
Laws of 2022, Chapter 55, Section 10, Paragraph 24, sixty thousand, five hundred dollars,
($60,500.00), to purchase and equip vehicles for the Hobbs senior center in Hobbs in Lea county.

The Grantee’s total reimbursements shall not exceed sixty thousand, five hundred dollars
($60,500.00) (the “Appropriation Amount™) minus the allocation for Art in Public Places (§
00, if applicable, zero dollars which equals ($60,500.00).

In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as defined
herein and/or the purpose of the Project, as set forth in this Agreement, and the corresponding

! The AIPP amount is “an amount of money equal to one percent or two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000),
whichever is less, of the amount of money appropriated for new construction or any major renovation exceeding one
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000).” Section 13-4A-4 NMSA 1978.

Page 1 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

appropriation language in the laws cited above in this Article I(A), the language of the laws cited
herein shall control.

This project is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the “Project”; the
information contained in Article I(A) is referred to collectively throughout the remainder of this
Agreement as the “Project Description.” Attachment A sets forth additional or more stringent
requirements and conditions, which are incorporated by this reference as if set forth fully herein.
If Optional Attachment A imposes more stringent requirements than any requirement set forth in
this Agreement, the more stringent requirements of Attachment A shall prevail, in the event of
irreconcilable conflict. The Grantee shall reference the Project’s number in all correspondence
with and submissions to the Departiment concerning the Project, including, but not limited to,
Requests for Payment and reports.

ARTICLE I1. LIMITATION ON DEPARTMENT’S OBLIGATION TO MAKE GRANT

DISBURSEMENT TO GRANTEE

A. Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, for permissible purposes within the scope
of the Project Description, the Grantee shall only be reimbursed monies for which the
Department has issued, and the Grantee has received a Notice of Department’s Obligation to
Reimburse? Grantee (hereinafter referred to as “Notice of Obligation™). This Grant Agreement
and the disbursement of any and all amounts of the above referenced Adjusted Appropriation
Amount are expressly conditioned upon the following:

(i) Trrespective of any Notice of Obligation, the Grantee’s expenditures shall be made on or
before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, an Early Termination Date (i.e., the goods
have been delivered and accepted or the title to the goods has been transferred to the
Grantee and/or the services have been rendered for the Grantee); and

(i) The total amount received by the Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of: (a) the Adjusted

Appropriation Amount identified in Article I{A) herein or (b) the total of all amounts

stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing that the Department has received and

accepted the Grantee’s Third-Party Obligation(s), as defined in subparagraph iii of this

Article TI(A); and

(iii)The Grantee’s expenditures were made pursuant to the State Procurement Code and
exccution of binding written obligations or purchase orders with third party contractors or
vendors for the pravision of services, including professional services, or the purchase of
tangible personal property and real property for the Project, hereinafter referred to as

“Third Party Obligations”; and

(iv) The Grantee’s submittal of timely Requests for Payment in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Article IX of this Agreement; and

(v) Tn the event that capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be sold, leased, or
licensed to or operated by a private entity, the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement:

a. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance with
law; or

2 “Reimburse” as used throughout this Agreement includes Department payments to the Grantee for invoices
received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor, if the invoices comply with the
provisions of this Agreement and are a valid Hability of the Grantee,

Page 2 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

b. if no'oversight entity is required to approve the transaction, the Department must
approve the transaction as complying with law.
Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to
Articles II{A)(v)(a) and TI{A)(v)(b) herein, the Department may, in its sole and absolute
discretion and unless inconsistent with State Board of Finance imposed conditions,
reimburse the Grantee for necessary expenditures incurred to develop the Project
sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement commercially feasible,
such as plan and design expenditures; and
(vi)The Grantee’s submission of documentation of all Third Party Obligations and

amendments thereto (including terminations) to the Departiment and the Departiment’s
issuance and the Grantee’s receiving of a Notice of Obligation for a particular amount in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the following:

a. The Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party
Obligations and amendments thereto (including terminations) as soon as
possible after execution by the Third Party but prior to execution by the
Grantee.

b. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that if it chooses to enter into a Third Party
Obligation prior to receiving a Notice of Obligation that covers the
expenditure, it is solely responsible for such obligations.

¢. The Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue to Grantee a
Notice of Obligation for the particular amount of that Third Party Obligation
that only obligates the Department to reimburse Grantee’s expenditures made
on or before the Reversion Date or an Early Termination Date. The current
Notice of Obligation form is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2.

d. The date the Department signs the Notice of Obligation is the date that the
Department’s Notice of Obligation is effective. After that date, the Grantee is
authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the Notice of
Obligation, execute the Third Party Obligation and request the Third Party to
begin work. Payment for any work performed or goods received prior to the
effective date of the Notice of Obligation is wholly and solely the obligation of
the Grantee.

B. The Grantee shall implement, in all respects, the Project. The Grantee shall provide
all necessary qualified personnel, material, and facilities to implement the Project. The Grantee
shall finance its share (if any) of the costs of the Project, including all Project averruns.

C. Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those specified in the Project
Description.

D. Unless specifically allowed by law, Project funds cannot be used to reimburse
Grantee for indirect Project costs.

ARTICLE III. NOTICE PROVISIONS AND GRANTEE AND DEPARTMENT
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Page 3 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

Whenever written notices, including written decisions, are to be given or received, related to this
Agreement, the following provisions shall apply.

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their official
representative(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee: Hobbs

Name: Sam Cobb

Title: Mayor

Address: 200 E Broadway St, Hobbs, NM 88240
Email: scobb@hobbsnm.org

Telephone:  575-391-7890

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal Officer or
Fiscal Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee: Hobbs

Name: Doug McDaniel

Title: Recreation Director

Address: 200 E Broadway St., Hobbs, NM 88240,
Email: dmedaniel@hobbsnm.org

Telephone:  575-397-9293

The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as the Points of Contact
for matters related to this Agreement.

Department: Aging and Long-Term Services Department

Name: Monica Cordova/Elizabeth Chavez

Title: Project Coordinator/Capital Outlay Bureau Chief

Address: 2550 Cerrillos Road, Santa Fe, NM 87505

Email: monica.cordova@altsd.nm.gov /elizabeth.chavez(@altsd.nm.gov

Telephone:  505-709-7982 / 505-365-3804

The Grantee and the Department agree that either party shall send all notices, including written
decisions, related to this Agreement to the above-named persons by email or regular mail. In the
case of mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been given and received upon the date of the
receiving party’s actual receipt or five calendar days after mailing, whichever shall first occur. In
the case of email transmissions, the notice shall be deemed to have been given and received on
the date reflected on the delivery receipt of email.

ARTICLE IV. REVERSION DATE, TERM, DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. As referenced in Article I(A), the applicable law establishes a date by which Project
funds must be expended by Grantee, which is referred to throughout the remainder of this
Agreement as the “Reversion Date.” Upon being duly executed by both parties, this Agreement

Page 4 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VERICLE
Hobbs

shall be effective as of the date of execution by the Department. It shall terminate on June 30,
2026, the Reversion Date unless Terminated Before Reversion Date (“Early Termination™)
pursuant to Article V herein.

B. The Project’s funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if
applicable, Early Termination Date of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, it is not
sufficient for the Grantee to encumber the Project funds on its books on or before the Project's
Reversion Date or Early Termination Date. Funds are expended and an expenditure has occurred
as of the date that a particular quantity of goods are delivered to and received by the Grantee or
title to the goods is transferred to the Grantee and/or as of the date particular services are
rendered for the Grantee. Funds are nof expended, and an expenditure has not occurred as of the
date they are encumbered by the Grantee pursuant to a contract or purchase order with a third

party.

ARTICLE V. EARLY TERMINATION

A. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Completion of the Project or
Complete Expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation or Violation of this Agreement

Early Termination includes:

(1) Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date; or

(ii)  Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount
before the Reversion Date; or

(iiiy  Termination for violation of the terms of this Agreement; or

(iv)  Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not limited
to, fraud, waste, abuse, and conflicts of interest.

Either the Department or the Grantee may early terminate this Agreement prior to the Reversion
Date by providing the other party with a minimum of fifteen (15) days’ advance, written notice
of early termination. Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim
against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this
Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V(A).

B. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Non-appropriation

The terms of this Agreement are expressly made contingent upon sufficient
appropriations and authorization being made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the
performance of this Agreement. Throughout this Agreement the term “non-appropriate” or
“non-appropriation” includes the following actions by the New Mexico Legislature:
deauthorization, reauthorization or revocation of a prior authorization. The Legislature may
choose to non-appropriate the Appropriation referred to in Article I and, if that occurs, the
Department shall early terminate this Agreement for non-appropriation by giving the Grantee
written notice of such termination, and such termination shall be effective as of the effective date
of the law making the non-appropriation. The Department’s decision as to whether sufficient
appropriations or authorizations are available shall be accepted by the Grantee and shall be final.

Page 5 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22(G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the
Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by
the Department pursuant to Article V(B).

C. Limitation on Department’s Obligation to Make Grant Disbursements to
Grantee in the Event of Early Termination

In the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by either party, the Department’s
sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the
limitations set forth Article II.

ARTICLE VI. SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. The Department may choose, in its sole and absolute discretion, to provide written notice
to the Grantee to suspend entering into new and further obligations. Upon the receipt of such
written notice by the Grantee:

(i) The Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written

obligations with third parties; and

(i)  The Department wilt suspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of Obligation

under this Agreement; and

(iii)  The Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan in

accordance with Article VI(D) herein.

B. In the event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department’s sole and absolute
obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth in
Article 1I herein.

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect
unless or until the date the Grantee receives written notice given by the Department informing
the Grantee that the Suspension has been lifted or that the Agreement has been Early Terminated
in accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the Department will consider
further requests for Notice of Obligation.

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension

In the event that the Department chooses, in its sole and absolute discretion to direct the
Grantee to suspend entering into new or further writien obligations with third parties pursuant to
Article VI(A), the Department may, but is not obligated to, require the Grantee to develop and
implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds for the Suspension. Such
corrective action plan must be approved by the Department and be signed by the Grantee. Failure
to sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and deadlines set forth in the signed corrective
action plan, is hereby deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement for purposes of Early
Termination, Article V(A)(iii). The corrective action plan is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any
other equitable or legal remedy, including but not limited to Early Termmation.

ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENT

Page 6 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



S Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
o HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrumentin
writing duly executed by both the parties hereto. '

ARTICLE VIII. REPORTS

A. Database Reporfing

The Grantee shall report quarterly Project activity by entering such Project information as the
Department and the Department of Finance and Administration may require, such information entered
directly into a database maintained by the Department of Finance and Administration (Budget &
Formulation Management System), Additionally, the Grantee shall certify on the Request for Payment
form (Exhibit 1) that updates have been maintained and are current in the database. The Grantee hereby
acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates into the database will delay or potentially
jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give Grantee a minimum of thirty (30)
days’ advance written notice of any changes to the information the Grantee is required to report.

Quarterly reports shall be due on the last day of the month that is 30 days priot to the end of the
quarter following execution of this Agreement by the Department and ending during the quarter of the
submission of the final request for reimbursement for the Project, or the following quarter.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Projeect Inspection
During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the
Grantee must maintain records pursuant to Article VIII, the Department may:

(i) request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary;
and

(ii)  conduct, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite inspections of the
Project.

Grantee shall respond to such requests for additional information within a reasonable
period of time, as established by the Department.

ARTICLE IX. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES AND DEADLINES

A. The Grantee shall request payment by submitting a Request for Payment, in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit 1, Payment requests are subject to the following procedures:

(i) The Grantee must submit a Request for Payment; and

(ii) Each Request for Payment must contain proof of payment by the Grantee or
liabilities incurred by the Grantee showing that the expenditures are valid or are
liabilities incurred by the Grantee in the form of actual unpaid invoices received by
the Grantee for services rendered by a third party or items of tangible personal
property received by the Grantee for the implementation of the Project; provided,
however, that the Grantee may be reimbursed for unpaid liabilities only if the
Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance
with any special conditions imposed by the Department,

(ili)  In cases where the Grantee is submitting a Request for Payment to the Department
based upon invoices received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party
contractor or vendor, if the invoices comply with the provisions of this Agreement
and are a valid liability of the Grantee, the Grantee shall make payment to those
contractors or vendors within five (5) business days from the date of receiving

Page 7 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grani Agreement #A22G-5323
' HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobhs

reimbursement from the Department or such shorter period of time as the
Department may prescribe in writing. The Grantee is required to certify to the
Department proof of payment to the third-party contractor or vendor within ten
(10) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department.

B. The Grantee must obligate 5% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount within six
months of acceptance of the grant agreement and must have expended no less than
85% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount six months prior to the reversion date.

C. Deadlines
Requests for Payments shall be submitted by Grantee to the Depariment on the earlier
of:

(i)  Immediately as they are received by the Grantee but at a minimum thirty (30) days
from when the expenditure was incurred, or liability of the Grantee was approved
as evidenced by an unpaid invoice received by the Grantee from a third party
contractor or vendor; or

(i)  Twenty (20) days from date of Early Termination; or

(iii) Twenty (20) days from the Reversion Date.

D. The Grantee’s failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article IT and Article
IX herein will result in the denial of its Request for Payment or will delay the processing of
Requests for Payment. The Department has the right to reject a payment request for the Project
unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures in the Request for Payment are for
permissible purposes within the meaning of the Project Description and that the expenditures and
the Grantee are otherwise in compliance with this Agreement, including but not limited to,
compliance with the reporting requirements and the requirements set forth in Article 1l herein to
provide Third Party Obligations and the Deadlines set forth in Article IX herein. The
Department's ability to reject any Request for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu of| any
other legal or equitable remedy available to the Department due to Grantee's violation of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE X. PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS; REPRESENTATIONS
AND WARRANTIES

A. The following general conditions and restrictions are applicable to the Project:

(1) The Project’s funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state laws,
regulations, policies, and guidelines, including, but not limited to, the State
Procurement Code (or local procurement ordinance, where applicable).

(iiy  The Project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico Public
Works Minimum Wage Act, Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1978, as
applicable. Every contract or project in excess of sixty thousand dollars ($60,000)
that the Grantee is a party to for construction, alteration, demolition or repair or
any combination of these, including painting and decorating, of public buildings,

Page 8 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



(iii)

(iv)

(v)

@
(i1

Grant Agreensent #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

public works or public roads and that requires or involves the employment of
mechanics, laborers or both shall contain a provision stating the minimum wages
and fringe benefits to be paid to various classes of laborers and mechanics, shall
be based upon the wages and benefits that will be determined by the New Mexico
Department of Workforce Solutions to be prevailing for the corresponding classes
of laborers and mechanics employed on contract work of a similar nature in the
locality. Further, every contract or project shall contain a stipulation that the
contractor, subcontractor, employer or a person acting as a contractor shall pay all
mechanics and laborers employed on the site of the project, unconditionally and
not less often than once a week and without subsequent unlawtul deduction or
rebate on any account, the full amounts acerued at time of payment computed at
wage rates and fringe benefit rates not less than those determined pursuant to
Section 13-4-11 (B) NMSA 1978 to be the prevailing wage rates and prevailing
fringe benefit rates issued for the project.

The Project may only benefit private entities in accordance with applicable law,
inchuding, but not limited 1o, Article IX, Section 14 of the Constitution of the
State of New Mexico, the “Anti-Donation Clause.”

The Grantee shall not for a period of 10 years from the date of this agreement
convert any property acquired, built, renovated, repaired, designed or developed
with the Project’s funds to uses other than those specified in the Project
Description without the Department's and the Board of Finance’s express,
advance, written approval, which may include a requirement to reimburse the
State for the cost of the project, transfer proceeds from the disposition of property
to the State, or otherwise provide consideration to the State.

The Grantee shall comply with all federal and state laws, rules and regulations
pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In accordance with all such laws,
rules and regulations the Grantee agrees to assure that no person shall, on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be
excluded from employment with Grantee, be excluded from participation in the
Project, be denied benefits or otherwise be subject to discrimination under, any
activity performed under this Agreement. If Grantee is found to be not in
compliance with these requirements during the life of this Agreement, Grantee
agrees to take appropriate steps to correct any deficiencies. The Grantee's failure
to implement such appropriate steps within a reasonable time constitutes grounds
for terminating this Agreement.

The Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:

The Grantee has the legal authority to receive and expend the Project’s funds.
This Agreement has been duly authorized by the Grantee, the person executing
this Agreement has authority to do so, and once executed by the Grantee, this
Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of the Grantee, enforceable
according to its terms.

Page 9 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Habbs

(iii)  This Agreement and the Grantee's obligations hereunder do not conflict with any
law or ordinance or resolution applicable to the Grantee, the Grantee's charter (if
applicable), or any judgment or decree to which the Grantee is subject.

(iv)  The Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description, including,
but not limited to, the amount and Reversion Date, is consistent with the
underlying appropriation in law.

(v) The Grantee’s governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a
resolution, motion, or similar action authorizing the person identified as the
official representative of the Grantee to sign the Agreement and to sign Requests
for Payment.

(vi)  The Grantee shall abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of interest,
governmental conduct and whistleblower protection. The Grantee specifically
agrees that no officer or employee of the local jurisdiction or its designees or
agents, no member of the governing body, and no other public official of the
locality who exercises any function or responsibility with respect to this Grant,
during their tenure or for one year thereafier, shall have any interest, direct or
indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be
performed or goods to be received, pursuant to this Grant. Further, Grantee shall
require all of its contractors to incorporate in all subcontracts the language set
forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflicts of interest.

(vii)  No funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of this or
any agency or body in connection with the awarding of any Third Party
Obligation and that the Grantee shall require certifying language prohibiting
lobbying to be included in the award documents for all subawards, including
subcontracts, loans and cooperative agreements. All subrecipients shall be
required to certify accordingly.

ARTICLE XI. STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS;
PROJECT RECORDS

A. The Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements relating to
the Project’s funds. The Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting principles, and, if
feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund with a separate organizational code, for the
funds to assure separate budgeting and accounting of the funds.

B. For a period of six (6) years following the Project's completion, the Grantee shall
maintain all Project related records, including, but not limited to, all financial records, requests
for proposals, invitations to bid, selection and award criteria, contracts and subcontracts,
advertisements, minutes of pertinent meetings, as well as records sufficient to fully account for
the amount and disposition of the total funds from all sources budgeted for the Project, the
purpose for which such funds were used, and such other records as the Department shall
prescribe,

C. The Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the
Department of Finance and Administration, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon request.

Page 10 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

‘With respect to the funds that are the subject of this Agreement, if the State Auditor or the

Department of Finance and Administration finds that any or all of these funds were improperly
expended, the Grantee may be required to reimburse to the State of New Mexico, to the

‘originating fund, any and all amounts found to be improperly expended.

ARTICLE XII. IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines that part or all of the Appropriation Amount was improperly
reimbursed to Grantee, including but not limited to, Project funds reimbursed to Grantee based
upon fraud, mismanagement, misrepresentation, misuse, violation of law by the Grantee, or
violation of this Agreement, the Grantee shall return such funds to the Department for
disposition in accordance with law.

ARTICLE XIH. LIABILITY

Neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party's acts or
omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this
Agreement is subject to immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

ARTICLE X1V. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Grantee and
Department concerning the subject matter hereof. The Agreement supersedes any and all prior or
contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions, communications, and
representations, written or verbal.

ARTICLE XV. REQUIRED NON-APPROPRIATIONS CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS
FUNDED IN WHOLE OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT

The Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include a “non-
appropriations™ clause in all contracts between it and other parties that are (i) funded in whole or
part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the effective date of
this Agreement that states: ' ‘

“The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization
being made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. If
sufficient appropriations and authorization are not made by the Legislature, the City of Hobbs
may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written notice of such
termination. The City of Hobbs’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available
shall be accepted by the Contractor and shall be final. Contractor hereby waives any rights to
assert an impairment of contract claim against the City of Hobbs or the Aging and Long-Term
Services Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of immediate or Early Termination
of this Agreement by the City of Hobbs or the Department.”

Page 11 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22(G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

ARTICLE XVI. REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN
WHOLE OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include the following termination
clause in all contracts that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this
Agreement and (ii) entered into after the effective date of this Agreement:

“This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available under an Aging and Long-
Term Services Department Grant Agreement. Should the Aging and Long-Term Services
Department early terminate the grant agreement, the City of Hobbs may early terminate this
contract by providing Contractor written notice of such termination, In the event of termination
pursuant to this paragraph, the City of Hobbs] only liability shall be to pay Contractor for
acceptable goods delivered and services rendered before the termination date.”

Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the

Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by
the Department.

ARTICLE XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA.

A. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall:
1. submit all reports of annual audits and agreed upon procedures required by
Section 12-6-3(A)-(B) NMSA 1978 by the due dates established in 2.2.2 NMAC, reports of
which must be a public record pursuant to Section 12-6-5(A) NMSA 1978 within forty-five days
of delivery to the State Auditor;

2. have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal year approved by its
budgetary oversight agency (if any);

3. timely submit all required financial reports to its budgetary oversight
agency (if any); and

4. have adequate accounting methods and procedures to expend grant funds

in accordance with applicable law and account for and safeguard grant funds and assets acquired
by grant funds.

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of Paragraph A of this
Article XVII, the Department may take one or more of the following actions:
1, suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI(A) of this
Agreement;
2. require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action
plan pursuant to Article VI(D) of this Agreement to remedy the non-comphance;
3. impose special grant conditions to address the non-compliance by giving

the Gr antee notice of such special conditions in accordance with Article IIf of this Agreement;
the special conditions shall be binding and effective on the date that notice is deemed to have
been given pursuant to Article III; or

4. terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V(A) of this Agreement.

Page 12 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

ARTICLE XVIIl. SEVERANCE TAX BOND AND GENFRAL OBLIGATION BOND
PROJECT CLLAUSES

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the under lymg appl opriation for the Project is
a severance tax bond or general obligation bond appropriation, and that the associated bond
proceeds are administered by the New Mexico State Board of Finance (SBOF), an entity separate
and distinct from the Department. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that (i) it is Grantee’s sole
and absolute responsibility to determine through SBOF staff what (if any) conditions are
currently imposed on the Project; (ii) the Department’s failure to inform Grantee of a SBOF
imposed condition does not affect the validity or enforceability of the condition; (iii) the SBOF
may in the futare impose further or different conditions upon the Project; (iv) all SBOF
conditions are effective without amendment of this Agreement; (v) all applicable SBOF
conditions must be satisfied before the SBOF will release to the Department funds subject to the
condition(s); and (vi) the Department’s obligation to reimburse Grantee from the Project is
contingent upon the then current SBOF conditions being satisfied.

B. Graniee acknowledges and agrees that the SBOF may in its sole and absolute
discretion remove a project’s assigned bond proceeds if the project doesn’t proceed sufficiently.
Entities must comply with the requirement to encumber five percent (5%) of Project funds within
six months of bond issuance as certified by the grantee in the Bond Questionnaire and
Certification documents submitted to the SBOF. Failure to comply may result in the bond
proceeds reassignment to a new ready project. If this should occur this grant agreement will be
suspended until the entity has demonstrated readiness as determined by the SBOF and the
Department.

C. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is subject to the SBOF’s Bond
Project Disbursements rule, NMAC 2.61.6, as may be amended or re-codified. The rule provides
definitions and interpretations of grant language for the purpose of determining whether a
particular activity is allowable under the authorizing language of the agreement.

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY}

Page 13 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pal ties have duly executed this Agreement as of the date

of execution by the Department.

GRANTEE

Signature of Official with Authority to Bind Grantee

Entity Name
By:

(Type or Print Name)
Its:

(Type or Print Title)
Date

AGING AND LONG-TERM SERVICES DEPARTMENT

By:

Its: Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Date

Page 14 of 19

Revised 4-20-18



bt Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
[ HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

EXHIBIT 1

ALTSD CAPITAL OUTLAY GRANT
MONTHLY / FINAL REPORT FORM & REQUEST FOR PAYMENT

MONTHLY REPORTOD  PROJECTTITLE: PAY REQUEST NO.

1D 2A T Ik g TP ihe Tanh)

DATE:
Granlze: Grant Humber: Reporiing Period: Grant Expiration Date:

Addrass: Preparer’s Name & Phong Number:
Gy Slate 2

Pizase provide a detailed status of project referenced above. Please check the box that would best explain the project phase.
Bonds Sold O Plan/Design O Bi Documenis O Consliudion'lmgrovemantsRenavaiion in Process O

Purchase in Process O Subsiantial Completion O Projed Complele O Qfher Please sperdyin namatve secfen) O

Frovide a projed update znd the anlidpated timeTne for commencemeant and compietion for each phase. (Afzch extra sheat Fnesdad)

ReauesTroR PAYMENRT

VENDOR INVOICE DETAIL jAfizch exfra shesl Fresdsd)
Grant Amount: =

. E—— '] Vendor Hame Ampuntof Amount
AIPP Amount [fagatesat) o o LS A
Fundz Requested to Date: ke - is Gu:!t

Armount Requested This Payment:

Grant Balance:

FINAL REPORT O

Fizcal Year Expenditure Period Ending

(check omz)

(dan-Jun) O {JulDec) O

Fiscal Year Amount Requested This Payment:

| MONTHLY REPORT: | herely certify that the zfarementioned Capital Qutiay Project funds are being expended in accordance with all
requirements of the Grant Agreement, 2ndin compliance with all other applicable requiremznts.

[ FINAL REPORT: | hershy certify that the aforementioned Capital Qutlay Project funds have bzen completed 2nd funds were expended in
accordznce with all requirements of the Grant Agreement, and in compliance with all other applicable statef regulatery requirements. The
remzining balznce is requested to be reverted to the appropriate funding sourcs.

(| PROCUREMENT METHOD: Grantee received spproval from ALTSD and Matice of Qbligation was issued and signed prior to reimbursement
request.

CERTIFICATION: Under penalty of law, | hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and telief, the above information is correct; expenditures are
proparty documented, are valid expenditures or zctual receipts; and comply with MM S12te Frocurement Code NMSA 13-1-21 through 13-1-18%; and that
the grant activity isin full compliance with Article ¥, Sec. 14 of the New Mexico Constitution known 25 the “anti-donation™ clause.

Grantee Flscal Officer Sighature & Frinted Name Grantee Reprezentative Signature & Printed Name [Frapares]

STATE AGENCY USE ONLY

| carify fhat fhe ALTSD Finzrcial and vandar fie infermaion 2grea with the above subentiad infarmafon.

ALTED Fisesl Nata &1 TSN Caniia! Projscis Bireau Dste

o ) ] 3 SRR S )

Page 15 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee #

DATE:

TO: Department Representative:
FROM: Grantee:
Grantee Official Representative:

SUBJECT: Notice of Obligation to Reimbusse Grantee
Grant Numbet:
Grant Termination Date:

As the designated representative of the Department for Grant Agreement number
entered into between Grantee and the Department, T certify that the Grantee has submitted to the
Department the following third party obligation executed, in writing, by the third party’s authorized
representative:

Vendor or Contractot:
Third Party Obligation Amouat:

Vendor or Contractot:
Third Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:
Third Party Obligation Amount:

I certify that the State is issuing this Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee for peimissible
purposes within the scope of the project description, subject to all the terms and conditions of the
above teferenced Grant Agreement.

Grant Amount (Minus AIPP if applicable):

The Amount of this Notice of Obligation:

The Total Amount of all Previously Issued Notices of Obligation:
The Total Amount of all Notices of Obligation to Date:

Note: Contract amonnts may exceed the fotal grant amonnt, but the invoices paid by the grant will not exceed the
grant amoiit.

Depattment Rep. Approver:
Title:

Signature:

Date:

1 Administrative and/or Indirect Cost — generally, the legislation authosfzing the issuance of bonds prohibits the use of
its proceeds for indirect expenses (e.g. penalty fees or damages other than pay for work performed, attorney fees, and
administrative fees). Such use of bond proceeds shall not be allowed unless specifically authorized by statute.

Page 16 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VERICLE
Hobbs

The capital outlay oversight requires grantees” accounting methods and procedures, including
their internal control framework, to be scrutinized, so as to safeguard State capital outlay appropriations
and assets acquired with such appropriations.

This Capital Outlay Special Grant Condition(s) Attachment A is necessary pursuant to Executive
Order 2013-006 (2.A.2.a-¢, if applicable), due to the Grantees’ material weaknesses, significant
deficiencies, or findings that raised concerns as to the ability to expend grant funds in accordance with
applicable law in the organization’s FY2022 audit. The Special Conditions identified below apply to the
authorized agent, Hobbs.

Procurement - All purchases or contracts the Grantee enters that shall use funding from the
Department capital appropriations grant must be approved by the Department prior to the initiation of
implementing purchasing documents. The Grantee shall receive such prior approval via official
correspondence from the Department, which may be through letter or email. The Grantee shall submit the
following to the Department in pursuit of prior approval: purchasing policies and procedures, CFO
certification, documentation of management and program approval, policies and procedures governing
purchasing and contracting, a copy of the current procurement and contracting policies, and
documentation regarding informing staff responsible for purchasing and contracting on such policies and
procedures.

Budget - Provide documentation of approval of your current budget from DFA Local
Government or other authoritative agency. Provide policies and procedures on who is responsible for and
how annual budgets (expenditures and revenue) are established, monitored and adjusted. Provide a
corrective action plan on how budget issues identified in your audit will be/have been addressed. Also
include documentation on how staff responsible for budgeting is informed on budget policies and
procedures.

Capital Assets - Provide a complete list of inventory including inventory control numbers and
current focation. Provide policies and procedures on capital assets and inventory and specify how the
proposed purchased items will be included, tagged, and tracked in capital asset inventory. Also include
documentation on how staff responsible for capital assets is informed on capital asset policies and
procedures.

Travel and Per Diem - Provide policies and procedures on travel and per diem. Also include
how staff who travel and those responsible for travel reimbursement are informed on travel and per diem
policies and procedures.

Timely Audits — Provide policies and procedures on annual audits. Provide documentation on
how and who is responsible for insuring that annual audits are completed timely. Also include
documentation on how staff responsible for the annual audit is informed on audit policies and procedures.

Cash Management — policies and procedures on cash management of federal funds. Provide
procedures used to draw and disburse federal funds. Provide procedures to reconcile draw amounts,
deposits and disbursements; and to prepare federal cash reporting documents to ensure compliance with
federal regulations.

The <Grantee> was required to and has provided sufficient documentation regarding [insert
specific names of the Special Condition(s)], as referenced in the Hobbs’s 2022 Audit file. Therefore, the
criteria to enter into this agreement have been met,

Page 17 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22(G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VERICLE
Habbs

PROJECT DESCRIPTION FORM

SCOPE OF WORK (SOW)
(Please email this completed form to ALTSD in MS Word format)

1. Name of Grantee/ I'iscal Agent:  City of Hobbs Senior Center
. Project Title: Hot Shot Vehicle for Meal Delivery
3. Grant Agreement Number: A22G-5323

4. Background Narrative: The Hobbs Senior Center delivers meals to our homebound
clients. OQur current vehicles are 9 years old. This vehicle will replace one of our older
models, so there will be no delay or cancellation of our services from lack of
transportation.

5. Work Plan: We plan to use this vehicle for delivery of our meals to homebound clients.

6. Budget Detail:
Project Cost Activities (These are only Other Funds State Funds
examples. Insert activities specific to the
proposed project.)

Architect/Engineer

Construction

Renovation

Improvements for Code Compliance

Equipment

*NOTE: Equipment purchased with capital
appropriations must be valued at $10,000.00 or more.
Meals Equipment

*NOTE: Equipment purchased with capitai
appropriations must be valued at $10,000.00 or more.

Vehicle Purchase . $57,500.00
Other Costs (specify} - $3,000.00
AITPP (if applicable)

Totals $60,500.00

7. Performance Measures: Hobbs Senior Center will deliver an average of 57 meals per
day with this vehicle. Maintenance will be kept and documented with the City of Hobbs
Garage Facility.

8. Results Expected: Hobbs Senior Center will provide seamless delivery service of meals
to our most vulnerable and homebound clients.

Page 18 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



Grant Agreement #A22G-5323
HOBBS SENIOR CENTER-VEHICLE
Hobbs

Time Frame/ Milestones: Upon full execution of the Grant Agreement the foHowing tasks will commence ta meet the fime frame/milestones.
(These are only examples. Inser! milestones specific to the proposed project.)

REP/Quotes Secured January 2024

Bid Closing

Bid Award to Contractor/Vendor February 2024

Choose the appropriate project-type from below: Type the number of months
appropriate to the project-
e

Meals Equipment — Purchase and Install

Equipment - Purchase and Install

Construction

Renovation

Code Compliance projects

Vehicles — Purchase and Equip August 2025

Project Completion & Review

Submit Exhibit § — Monthly / Final Report Form & Request for Payment September 2025
according to contractual requirements as set forth in Articles VIII & IX
of the Grant Agreement

10. Responsible Staff (include Project Manager and Fiscal Contact):

Name: Doug McDaniel

Title: _Recreation Director

Address: 200 E. Broadway St. Hobbs, NM 88240
Email: dmcdaniel@hobbsnm.org

Phone: 575.397.9293

Name: Toby Spears
Title: Finance Director

Address: 200 E. Broadway St. Hobbs, NM 88240
Email: tspears@hobbsnm.org
Phone: 575.397.9239

NOTICE: The Grant Application, if approved for funding by the Aging and Long Term Services Department {ALTSD) and any
attachments to the Grant Application are incorporated by reference into the scope of work. In the event of a conflict between any
of the documents that are part of the Agreement, the ALTSD Cabinet Secretary, at the sole discretion of ALTSD, shall resolve
that conflict.

Page 19 of 19 Revised 4-20-18



CITY OF HOBBS

65 COMMISSION STAFF SUMMARY FORM
i lo 5 MEETING DATE: January 8, 2024

NEW MEXICO

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION APPROVING THE VACATION\REPLAT LOCATED
SOUTHEAST OF THE INTERSECTION OF HARDEN & LINAM BEING BLOCK 37
OF THE NEW HOBBS ADDITION.

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning Division
DATE SUBMITTED: January 2, 2024
SUBMITTED BY: Kevin Robinson — Planning Department

Summary: The Property Owner is requesting the vacation\replat of Block 37 of the New Hobbs Addition
located southeast of the intersection of Harden & Linam with the alleyway vacation comprising +/- 2,613 square
feet of public property. This vacation, if approved, will allow the transfer of fee simple ownership to the vacated
property to the adjacent property owner. The staff has placed a value on the vacated property of $5,226.00 to
be paid by the property owner prior to recordation. The Planning Board reviewed this issue on December 19,
2023 and voted 4 to 0 to recommend approval.

= . UEDOFah (..Ol'l’a| ui::-u‘rly igll:ub]l..acww_il\.uulul
Fiscal Impact: Reviewed By: Date: 2024.01.02 11:43:06 -07'00

Finance Department

The municipality will be compensated $5,227.00; the value of the vacated property, prior to recordation and
conveyance of the Vacated Property.

Attachments: Resolution, Vacation Plat and Planning Board Minutes.

Legal Review: Approved As To Form:

Valerie S. Chacon .3::

'w

City Attorney

Recommendation:
Consideration of Approval of the Resolution to approve the Vacation\Replat, as recommended by the
Planning Board.

Approved For Submittal BY' CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY
COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN
% L / Lecrocin
s Resolution No. Continued To:
Dep artment Director Ordinance No. Referred To:
i Approved Denied

Other File No.

F Cither




CITY OF HOBBS

RESOLUTION NO. _ 7434

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE VACATION\REPLAT LOCATED
SOUTHEAST OF THE INTERSECTION OF HARDEN & LINAM BEING BL.OCK
37 OF THE NEW HOBBS ADDITION.

WHEREAS, The adjacent property owner is requesting the vacationreplat of Block
37 of the New Hobbs Addition located southeast of the intersection of Harden & Linam;
and

WHEREAS, the Vacation\Replat was then reviewed and recommended for
approval by the City of Hobbs Planning Board at the December 19, 2023 meeting; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that the vacation\repiat will not
adversely affect the interests or rights of persons in contiguous territory or within the
subdivision and the title of those lands in the vacated area may be transferred in fee
simple to the owner of the adjacent lots thereto upon remuneration.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
CITY OF HOBBS, NEW MEXICO, that

1. The City of Hobbs hereby approves the Vacation\Replat as attached hereto
and made a part of this Resolution.

2. The City officials and staff are directed to do any and all acts necessary to
carry out the intent of this Resolution.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 8" day of January, 2024.

SAM D. COBB, Mayor
ATTEST:

JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk



N G

wurface SR
‘& Easement ~ (3
BTt

%®
ou

Lot 8-21 UG RIS

$00°26'50"E 69.39'

Contreras, Joel R OO ‘
Book 2179 Page 602 TUNG 3y S—
! : DN @SN .
O () : : § :
N SOV B RN T A N o
o . 0443ac | N
2 : ; ; ; ' g N
3 - - : N —
/ s // R R
5 / ‘Church Building’ : 4 3 ks 2
z 4821 Occuplded sq.ft. : / = Y g ;
' // 5 o L
A / // // // // // / =z - % = = .
~ $89°32'28"W 299.89' ‘ " T ;% g 55% ¥
/S Tl
________________ 5 . _
':':':':'ff':':':':':':':':‘:':':':':':':':':':':':':':':':':':f‘:':':':':':‘:':':f':':':':':'::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::f:::::::::::::::::::::::::f:: 8 _{lﬁ_{_




By

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of New Mexico:
County of Lea:

On this day of
me, and

me known to be the person(s) described in and whe
instrument and acknowledged that they executed the s:
deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last

My Commission Expires:

Notary Public

CERTIFICATE OF MUNICIPAL APPROVAL

I, Kevin Robinson, Development Director for the City of

Mexico, do hereby certify that the foregoing plat in

County, New Mexico, was reviewed and deemed cor

Summary Process Regulations and that all properties r

the public are hereby accepted by the municipality
, 20

Kevin Robinson, Development Director

Jan Fletcher, City Clerk



sl CITY OF HOBBS
H 555 COMMISSION STAFF SUMMARY FORM

KIW MExICO MEETING DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FINAL PLAT FOR DESERT VISTA ESTATES
LOCATED IN SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 17 SOUTH, RANGE 38 EAST OF THE N.M.P.M. IN LEA COUNTY,
NEW MEXICO.

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning Division
DATE SUBMITTED:  January 2, 2024
SUBMITTED BY: Kevin Robinson — Planning Department

Summary: The Final Plat for Desert Vista Estates is submitted by Tammie Teague., the subdivision is located
northwest of the intersection of Kansas and Rolling Meadows, within the City of Hobbs ETJ. The Subdivision
will create 6 Lots from the parent parcel, the smallest being +/- 1.948 acres. The Planning Board considered
this item at the December 19, 2023 regular meeting and voted 4-0 to recommend approval.

£ nalfar S adaasa
grred-by

Fiscal Impact: Reviewed By; Deborah Corral co

Date: 2024.01.02 11:43:57 -07'00
Finance Department

This subdivision is located within the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of the City of Hobbs, each lot created is
accessible from a public ROW and served with private utilities.

Attachments: Resolution, Final Plat.

Legal Review: Dgeatgeedty Vi . crcen
Approved As To Form: “ere 3. Chacon e s
City Attorney
Recommendation:
Consideration to approve the Resolution approving Desert Vista Estates.
Approved For Submittal By: CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY
i - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN
‘Dheparfment Director Resolution No. Continued To:
Ordinance No. Referred To:
/)/7% {l Approved Denied
i Other File No.

City MW




CITY OF HOBBS

RESOLUTION NO.___7435

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FINAL PLAT FOR DESERT VISTA
ESTATES LOCATED IN SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 17 SOUTH, RANGE 38
EAST OF THE N.M.P.M. IN LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

WHEREAS, the property owner has submitted a Final Plat for Desert Vista Estates,
and

WHEREAS, the subdivision Final Plat was reviewed and approved by the Hobbs
Planning Board at the December 19, 2023 regular meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
THE CITY OF HOBBS, NEW MEXICO, that

1. The City of Hobbs hereby grants Final Plat Approval for Desert Vista
Estates, and

2, The City officials and staff are directed to do any and all acts necessary to
carry out the intent of this Resolution.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 8t day of January, 2024,

S>ANM D. COBB, Mayor
ATTEST:

JAN FLETCHER, CITY CLERK



Vi

Projet
t.ocatio

W Kansas St

e 3669 ~———
SN N N N

HOBBS, NM

coordinates were obtain
ground scale factor of
located at N32°44'29.4.
North can be obtained by
0°38'09.0" at the control

|

=
S

L1 Y625 MW0LEFO0N

N

&

/

5 et &

mopeo

4

FRET 1S, Smopes

i

i
4
:

il

L

e
Nl

Sjoy

A SR \ 2=

I: 3

R S e e | | E e - SR IS SEAE RSP SEE IS RI ST SSY S be g pt )/ s i I N L) o I\ I T W P O, - KON & s....
d A

e W

NAGC1Q'ROF 298204 T

B

CONOANDARAL NG TOr

3
3

N
N
=

£

ammie L Teague
ok 2017, Page 89-

f

..“.Nn\... A \.\
LriaNe _Ovmmﬂ Mulb b ¥.00N

S, £ 2901 L PN 1008 K 5E il it LA,

B

Wi

£6'PL1 M.OELV.00N :

=

1
— b0'9Y ) Mulbib b 00N

L7




State of New Mexico:
County of Lea;

On this day of . 20 , before me,
, to me known to be the person{s) described in
and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that they
executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

My Commission Expires:

Notary Public

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE CITY PLANNING BOARD

The plat, restrictions and dedication reviewed and approved on the day of
. 20___ A.D., by the City Planning Board of Hobbs, New Mexico.

Chairman: William M. Hicks 1l

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of New Mexico:
County of Lea:

This instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

20 A.D., by William M. Hicks Il

My Commission Expires:

Notary Public

On this day of ,
Fletcher to me known to be the person(s) describe
foregoing instrument and acknowledged that they e
free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year |z

My Commission Expires;

Notary Public

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE LEA COUN1

[The Preliminary Plat was approved by the County Planni
13, 2023 and the Board of Commissioners on May 2¢
23-MAY-139R].

Be it known that this Final Subdivision Plat, was sul
Commissioners, assembled at a meeting on

20__ AD., by resolution No.
and accepted by a majority of the board.

Attest;

Keith Maynes, I3

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of New Mexico:

~



	Agenda - January 8, 2024
	1.	Minutes of the December 18, 2023, Regular Commission Meeting
	3.	Resolution No. 7430 - Stating the Reasonable Notice Procedures for the City of Hobbs Pursuant to the New Mexico Open Meetings Act
	4.	Consideration of Approval of the Paid Time Off (PTO) Payout for Calendar Year 2023
	5.	Resolution No. 7431 – Authorizing the Execution of a Grant Agreement with the New Mexico Aging and Long Term Services Department in the Amount of $10,000.00 for the Hobbs Senior Center
	7.	Resolution No. 7432 – Authorizing the Execution of a Grant Agreement with the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration in the Amount of $600,000.00 for the New Mexico Regional Recreation Centers & Quality of Life Grant 
	8.	Resolution No. 7433 – Authorizing the Execution of a Grant Agreement with the New Mexico Aging and Long Term Services Department in the Amount of $60,500.00 for the Hobbs Senior Center
	9.	Resolution No. 7434 – Approving the Vacation/Replat of Block 37, New Hobbs Addition, Located Southeast of the Intersection of Harden and Linam
	10.	Resolution No. 7435 – Approving the Final Plat for Desert Vista Estates as Requested by Tammie Teague, Located Northwest of the Intersection of Kansas and Rolling Meadows Within the City of Hobbs Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

